Public Document Pack

EaSt James Ellis
I'Ie\rtS/ Head of Legal and Democratic Services
Council

MEETING : HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT
COMMITTEE

VENUE : COUNCIL CHAMBER IN THE HARLOW CIVIC CENTRE,
THE WATER GARDENS, COLLEGE SQUARE, HARLOW
CM20 TWG

DATE : MONDAY 10 FEBRUARY 2025

TIME : 6.30 PM

PLEASE NOTE TIME AND VENUE

MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE

Councillors D Swords (Chairman), S Boulton (Vice Chairman), B Crystall (East
Herts District Council), N Bedford (Epping Forest District Council),

L Wagland (Essex County Council)

(Note: Substitution arrangements must be notified by the absent Member to
Democratic Services 24 hours before the meeting)

CONTACT OFFICER:
T Larsen, Democratic Services,
Tel: 01992 564243. email:
democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

This agenda has been printed using 100% recycled paper

www.eastherts.gov.uk


mailto:democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

A Member, present at a meeting of the Authority, or any committee, sub-
committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of the Authority, with a
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) in any matter to be considered or being
considered at a meeting:

. must not participate in any discussion of the matter at the meeting;

. must not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the meeting;

. must disclose the interest to the meeting, whether registered or not,
subject to the provisions of section 32 of the Localism Act 2011;

. if the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending
notification, must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within
28 days;

. must leave the room while any discussion or voting takes place.

Public Attendance

East Herts Council welcomes public attendance at its meetings and
meetings will continue to be live streamed and

webcasted. For further information, please email
democratic.services@eastherts.gov.uk or call the Council on 01279
655261 and ask to speak to Democratic Services.

The Council operates a paperless policy in respect of agendas at committee
meetings and the Council will no longer be providing spare copies of
Agendas for the Public at Committee Meetings. The mod.gov app is
available to download for free from app stores for electronic devices. You
can use the mod.gov app to access, annotate and keep all committee
paperwork on your mobile device.

Visit Political Structure, Scrutiny and Constitution | East Herts District
Council for details.

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings

Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees
using whatever, non-disruptive, methods you think are suitable, which may


https://www.eastherts.gov.uk/councillors-and-committees/political-structure-scrutiny-and-constitution
https://www.eastherts.gov.uk/councillors-and-committees/political-structure-scrutiny-and-constitution

include social media of any kind, such as tweeting, blogging or Facebook.
However, oral reporting or commentary is prohibited. If you have any
questions about this please contact Democratic Services (members of the
press should contact Communications@eastherts.gov.uk). Please note that
the Chair of the meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a
number of reasons, including disruption caused by the filming or the nature
of the business being conducted. Anyone filming a meeting should focus
only on those actively participating and be sensitive to the rights of minors,
vulnerable adults and those members of the public who have not
consented to being filmed.



mailto:Communications@eastherts.gov.uk

AGENDA

1.  Webcasting Introduction

This meeting is to be webcast and theChairman will read the
following announcement:

“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be
broadcast live to the internet (or filmed) and will be capable of repeated
viewing (or other such use by third parties).

Therefore, by participating in this meeting, you are consenting to being
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for

webcasting and/or training purposes.

Please also be aware that if technical difficulties interrupt the meeting that
cannot be overcome, | may need to adjourn the meeting.

Members are reminded to activate their microphones before speaking”.

2. Apoloqgies for Absence

To be announced at the meeting.

To report non-attendance before the meeting, please contact the EFDC
Democratic Services to ensure your absence is properly logged.

3. Substitute Members

To report on the appointment of any substitute members for the meeting.

4. Declarations of Interest

Members of the Joint Committee to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary


mailto:democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
mailto:democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Interests or Personal Interest in any item on this agenda.

Minutes - 22 July 2024 (Pages 8 - 48)

To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the HGGT Joint
Committee held on Monday 22" July 2024.

Matters Arising and Outstanding Actions

Matters arising and outstanding actions from previous meetings.

Requests to Address the Joint Committee

1. Any member of the public or a representative of an outside
organisation may address the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
(HGGT) Joint Committee on any agenda item (except those dealt
with in private session as exempt or confidential business) due to be
considered at a meeting.

2. The following rules shall apply to such requests:
(i) requests must relate to any existing agenda item;

(i) requests must not raise new business for the
meeting concerned,;

(iii) A question may only be asked if notice has been given by
delivering it in writing or by electronic mail to the Democratic
Services team at Epping Forest District Council
on democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
at least 4 working days before the meeting. Each question
must give the name and business address of the questioner.

The full provisions are contained within Parts 21 and 22 of the Inter-
Authority Agreement.


mailto:democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy and Updated Action Plan (Pages 49 -
128)

To review and propose any recommendations to the Quality-of-Life
Monitoring strategy and Updated Action Plan.

HGGT Water Lane Strategic Site - "Proposals for the Way Forward" (Pages
129 - 149)

To review and propose any recommendations to the HGGT Water Lane
Strategic Site - "Proposals for The Way Forward”.

HGGT 3-Year Business Plan (Pages 150 - 172)

To review and propose any recommendations to the HGGT 3 — Year
Business Plan.

HGGT Programme Management Report (Pages 173 - 180)

To note the progress updates of the HGGT 2024/25 Work Programme.

Any Other Business

Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972 requires that the
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the
Proper Officer, before urgent business not specified in the agenda may
be transacted.

Date of the Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Joint
Committee will be held on 15t April 2025.

Exclusion of the Public and Press




15.

Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the
meeting for the items of business set out below on grounds that they will
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the
following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as amended)
or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):

Agenda Subject Exempt Information
Item No Paragraph Number
15 Exempt HGGT 3
Programme

Management Report

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006,
which came into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to
consider whether maintaining the exemption listed above outweighs
the potential public interest in disclosing the information. Any member
who considers that this test should be applied to any currently
exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at
least 24 hours prior to the meeting.

HGGT Programme Management Report

To review and propose any recommendations on the progress updates
of the HGGT 2024/25 Work Programme.



Agenda Item 5

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
HGGT JOINT COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES

Monday 22 July 2024, 6.30 pm — 8.28pm
Council Chamber in the Civic Centre, The Water Gardens, College Square,
Harlow CM20 1WG

Members Councillors D Swords (Chairman) S Boulton (Vice-Chairman),
Present: B Crystall, N Bedford,and L Wagland

Officers In Richard Cassidy (EHDC Chief Executive), Nigel Richardson (Service
Attendance: Director (Planning Development)), Colin Haigh (HCC Director of

Growth), Yvonne Rees (HDC Chief Executive), Jonathan Schifferes
(ECC Head of Housing),

Gary Woodhall (Team Manager - Democratic & Electoral Services),
Therese Larsen (Democratic Services Officer), Amanda Apcar (Principal
Planning Lawyer) and Naisha Polaine (Harlow and Gilston Garden
Town Director)

A RECORDING OF THIS MEETING IS AVAILABLE FOR REPEATED VIEWING

13 WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be
broadcast on the Internet.

14 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
No apologies for absence were received.
15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
No declarations of interest were made.
16 MINUTES
Resolved:

(1) That the minutes of the HGGT Joint Committee held on 11 June 2024 be taken as read
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

17 MATTERS ARISING AND OUTSTANDING ACTIONS

There were no matters arising or outstanding actions from the last meeting of the HGGT
Joint Committee held on the 11 June 2024.

18 REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE JOINT COMMITTEE
One request to address the Joint Committee had been received:

- ClIr Edwards was given 3 minutes to address the Joint Committee.

District Council

@ €E Epping Forest ﬁ _H_O_Ilgwl p
& e - corc e R 4

................................

Page 8


https://harlow.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcast_interactive/889493
https://harlow.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcast_interactive/889493

HGGT Joint Committee Monday 22 July 2024

Clir Edwards started by talking about Agenda Item 11 ‘Re-imagining How We Can
Travel Differently’; in particular the sustainable transport network and the yet to be
agreed town centre south link.

Clir Edwards expressed concern regarding the changes being made to the transport
network plans first being envisioned by HGGT, to a now very different transport
solution that in his opinion will cause huge issues for Harlow Town.

Clir Edwards also talked about the long-term revenue funding for the transport
infrastructure.

Clir Edwards pointed to the report where it mentions ongoing revenue of between 21 to
48 million pounds being spent on transport, and he queried where this revenue will be
raised.

- CliIr Swords thanked ClIr Edwards for being the first ever public speaker to address the
Joint Committee.

19 HGGT ANNUAL REVIEW

Naisha Polaine, HGGT Director, introduced a report on the HGGT Annual Review
presenting the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Annual Review for 2023-24.
This was the sixth Annual Review, and it recorded a number of significant steps
taken in the delivery of the adopted HGGT Vision during the last year. It also sets
out the ambitions for the year to come.

The HGGT initiative published an Annual Review each year which sets out the
achievements and progress of the 5-Council partnership towards its vision to
promote healthy, sustainable communities and co-ordinate and facilitate the
delivery of 16,000 new homes by 2033, and 7,000 new homes in the years after
that along with associated transport, community and environmental infrastructure.

It was important that the progress of the 5-Council partnership led HGGT initiative
was reported through the Annual Review in an accessible public facing record.
The Annual Review would also be used to support future funding bids, inform
project communications, and increase the visibility and prominence of the
initiative across the wider community.

The HGGT Annual Review 2023-24 highlighted the progress that the 5-Council
Partners were making in the planning and delivery of the Harlow and Gilston
Garden Town initiative. Delivery highlights include the start of the Garden
Town’s North to Centre Sustainable Transport Corridor; the Latton Priory Design
Code and the Masterplan Guidance for East of Harlow. At the heart of any
sustainable and lasting town-led regeneration was a thriving town centre and
Harlow had now begun significant town centre regeneration. Lastly, the Discover
Harlow Engagement Hub had opened this year providing a place that local
people and visitors could find out more about the work detailed above and talk to
the HGGT and Harlow Regeneration Teams.

The Joint Committee commented on and agreed the recommendations in the report.
Resolved:

(1) That as set out in Appendix A of the report, the HGGT draft Annual Review for 2023/24
be agreed.

@ Epping Forest P ']
“@ @ District Council = L‘E['Q,W, "

Essix County Councll

www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk Workder oowther v T fer Hertfordshire| Page 9



HGGT Joint Committee Monday 22 July 2024

(2) That authority be delegated to the Director of HGGT, in consultation with the Chairman
and Vice-Chairman of the Joint Committee, to make minor changes and publish the
final version of the HGGT 2023/24 HGGT Annual Review on the HGGT website.

20 HGGT QUALITY REVIEW PANEL ANNUAL REPORT

Kevin Steptoe, Garden Town Lead for East Herts Council and Lead for Place-shaping and
Engagement Workstream in the HGGT Team, introduced Lucy Block and Peter Maxwell
from Frame Projects.

Block and Maxwell shared a presentation on the role of the Quality Review Panel (QRP) in
helping deliver growth and regeneration across the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town.
Example schemes and emerging issues were noted, as well as next steps and
recommendations made to Local Authorities and Developers. The presentation provided
an update to the Joint Committee regarding the work of the QRP over the last year and to
highlight issues that were considered to require further attention in either policy
development or through the delivery of development proposals.

The Joint Committee asked questions and commented on the presentations:

¢ The Joint Committee commented that it was positive that the area of expertise had
been expanded and was pleased about the encouragement to design code but
would like the panel to expand on this some more.

e The Joint Committee commented that in some instances it seemed requests from
Authorities and from local people had been ignored, and that Authorities should
have been consulted.

o Maxwell explained that the parameter scope needed to be clear about what could
be built where and be specific to each location.

¢ The Review Panel would challenge and use best practice for long term planning
with the help of the Authorities Planning Departments.

¢ The Joint Committee requested that the Terms of Reference be shared.

e Block explained that the Terms of Reference covered the remit of the Panel, as
well as issues that the Panel needed to be aware of, and feedback and
consultation. The Panel did not want to undermine the Joint Committee or any of
the authorities.

e The Joint Committee asked if the Panel was finding that applicants were paying
enough attention to the ICB and Health Authorities desires. The Joint Committee
asked if the Panel had found any challenges with regards to the Authorities
capabilities.

o Maxwell replied that sometimes applications had come in for a certain number of
homes, rather than the purpose of these homes and what was trying to be
achieved. Better applications included areas for green space, sustainable transport
etc. There was room for improvement.

o Block added, regarding capacity in Authorities, an up-dating and up-skilling session

had been set up for Wednesday 24t July 2024 with all the authorities. This would
hopefully lead to confidence in bringing schemes forward.

The Joint Committee agreed the recommendations of the report.
Resolved:

(1) That the HGGT QRP Annual Report 2023/24, as set out in Appendix A of the report-,
and particularly the emerging issues and next steps to address these in Section 6, be

agreed.
@ Epping Forest = HOHOW 'l
e District Council = LA .
P ag e 1 0 www.eppingforestde.gov.uk i) iorkins 4 Hamrdshim




HGGT Joint Committee Monday 22 July 2024

(2) That authority be delegated to the Director of HGGT, in consultation with the Chairman
and Vice-Chairman of the Joint Committee, to make any minor changes and publish
the final version of the HGGT QRP Annual Report 2023/24 HGGT.

21 HGGT STEWARDSHIP CHARTER

Kevin Steptoe, Garden Town Lead for the East Hertfordshire District Council and
Lead for Place-shaping and Engagement Workstreams, presented a report to the
Joint Committee on how the 5-Council partners should consider the approach to
be taken to ensure effective stewardship of the new communities created for the
Garden Town. In this respect stewardship comprised the inclusive, proactive, and
responsive planning, placemaking and care of new places. It was decided that
Stewardship Guidance should be produced, providing direction to landowners,
developers, community representatives and other stakeholders. This Guidance
took the form of the Stewardship Charter, of six high level principles that set the
expectations to achieve stewardship outcomes.

The draft Charter was subject to public consultation in the latter half of 2023.
Feedback received during that consultation had been fully considered along with
other inputs impacting on the Charter as set out in this report. Following the
consultation a range of amendments had been made to the draft Charter
bringing it into a final draft. The Charter could now be agreed by the Joint
Committee.

The Joint Committee commented on the presentation:
e Praise and endorsement were given for the work put into this report and the
Chartership in general.
e It was recognised what an important piece of work the Chartership was for future
developments and the standard of houses delivered to residents.
¢ [t was mentioned that the Planning Authorities now needed to be robust when
accepting development proposals, and whether those proposals were fulfilled.

The Joint Committee agreed the recommendations of the report.
Resolved:

(1) That the result of the consultation exercise and consequential amendments to the draft
Stewardship Charter as set out in paras 3.1 to 3.11 of this report be agreed.

(2) That the final Stewardship Charter, as set out at Appendix G be agreed.

(3) That authority be delegated to the HGGT Director to make further minor amendments
to the final Stewardship Charter as may be required and to update the Charter
Foreword in the final version of the Charter in consultation with the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman of the Joint Committee.

22 "RE-IMAGINING HOW WE CAN TRAVEL DIFFERENTLY" - A HGGT FRAMEWORK
(HGGT MODAL TRANSITION DELIVERY FRAMEWORK)

Naisha Polaine, HGGT Director, introduced Rob Goodall from ARUP Group
Limited. Goodall presented to the Joint Committee on how to develop and
approve the HGGT Transport Strategy and oversee the implementation of the
Transport Strategy. This includes the delegated function to develop and maintain
an overarching programme plan of key activities required to deliver the HGGT
modal shift targets.

@ Epping Forest Ty "
Hﬂﬁfia District Council —- _H_Q r'QW, P
A2 el R — Page 11




HGGT Joint Committee Monday 22 July 2024

The Framework would enable the 5-Council partners to programme and plan
those initiatives working with the modal shift assumptions in planning permissions
for the HGGT sites. It would also assist in seeking funding, where required, from
other public and private sources. The HGGT’s 5-Council partners were also
required, as part of the Housing Investment Grant (HIG) funding provided by
Homes England, to evidence that progression towards achieving the modal
transition target was being made.

The Joint Committee asked questions and commented on the presentation:

e The Committee noted that modal shift in transport was difficult, but modal shift
including existing residents would be even more difficult to achieve.

¢ A request for an undertaking of a review of the new government and its new
legislation and agenda was made, and it was proposed that Polaine and the HGGT
lead officers would be delegated authority to undertake minor amendments
following the review.

e Polaine suggested that a first version of the Framework be published and updated
once further details regarding the new Governments legislation and agenda are
available.

e |t was suggested that adoption of the report may be on a rolling basis following the
review of Government changes.

¢ A comment was made that due to the scale of the proposed Garden Town in 10
years’ time, active travel was an enormous challenge and required pioneering
solutions.

The Joint Committee agreed the recommendations of the report.
Resolved:

(1) That the Framework ‘Re-Imagining How we Can Travel Differently’ (The Framework),
as set out in Appendix A of the report, be agreed.

(2) That consideration of the Framework in the evidence base for the execution of
highways and transport planning decisions and developer contributions by the HGGT
Council partners be agreed.

(3) That the working together of the HGGT Council partners to continue to develop an
overarching programme plan of key activities required to deliver modal shift, informed
by the Framework, be agreed.

(4) That a progress update be reported to the Joint Committee in Spring 2025.
23 HGGT PROGRAMME MANAGEMENT REPORT

The Chairman proposed to move this Agenda item into private session and
debate the entire HGGT Programme Management Report as one item together
with Agenda item 16. This was seconded by Clir Boulton and agreed by the Joint
Committee.

24 ANY OTHER BUSINESS

It was noted that there was no other business for consideration by the Joint Committee.

@ Epping Forest P ']
’@ @ District Council  JES Harlow -

Essex County Council —
www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk Workine weether for Farfon Hertfordshire|



HGGT Joint Committee Monday 22 July 2024

25 DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING

The Joint Committee noted that their next meeting would be on Tuesday 22 October 2024
at 6.30pm.

26 EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
Resolved:

That, in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
public and press be excluded from the meeting for the item of business set out below
as it would involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Act indicated and the exemption is
considered to outweigh the potential public interest in disclosing the information:

Agenda Exempt Information
Item No Subject Paragraph Number
12 HGGT Programme Management 3
Report (Exempt)

27 HGGT PROGRAMME MANAGEMENT REPORT (EXEMPT)
Agenda Item 12 and 16 amalgamated.

Naisha Polaine, HGGT Director, presented the HGGT programme Management Report:
The purpose of the Joint Committee was to provide unified leadership to deliver the
ambitious spatial growth proposals set out in the Local Plans of HDC, EHDC and EFDC
supported by ECC and HCC to align and maximise opportunities for new and existing
residents and communities.

The HGGT Joint Committee held the responsibility to deliver the agreed HGGT
Vision to promote healthy, sustainable communities and co-ordinate and facilitate
the delivery of 16,000 new homes in the HGGT by 2033, and 7,000 new homes
in the years after that, along with associated transport, community, and
environmental infrastructure.

This report provided the Joint Committee with oversight of progress against its
agreed programme of work for 2024/25 which aimed to progress delivery of its
HGGT Vision.

The Joint Committee asked questions and debated the report:
¢ The debate centred around engagement with the Government for support and
revenue.
o A discussion followed as to what exactly should be asked of the Government, and
the way in which the ask should be made.

The Joint Committee agreed to the recommendation in the report.

@ Epping Forest —
HE{ZEQ District Council —- L‘E['Qﬁ, P
U v sppingforestdo.govok e AT ol i e et P ag e 1 3



H\_/ District Council -~ /
P ag e 14 www.eppingforestde.gov.uk i Wowiiee sopether for Hlarfew Hertfordshire|

HGGT Joint Committee Monday 22 July 2024

Resolved:

(1) That the Programme Management Report, as set out in Appendix A of the report,
providing progress updates against the agreed HGGT 2024/25 annual work
programme be agreed.

(2) That the HGGT Master Programme for Delivery featured in the HGGT Level 0
Integrated Programme Dashboard, as set out in - Appendix A of the exempt
Programme Management Report be agreed.

(3) That the 9 programme risks and proposed mitigation actions in the Level 0 Strategic
Risk Register featured in the HGGT Level 0 Integrated Programme Dashboard, as set
out in Appendix A of the exempt Programme Management Report, be noted and
agreed.

@ @ Epping Forest = Harlow

Council [



HARLOW & GILSTON GARDEN
TCWN QUALITY REVIEW PANEL

Pe.ter Maxwell - Chair of the panel
Lucy 3lock - Frame Projects

22 ..., 2024

LLLLLLLLLLLLLL
nnnnnnnnnn



FRAME PROJECTS TEAM

De@h Denner Lucy Block Yingli Tang
Director Associate Panel Coordinator

HARLOW & GILSTON GARDEN TOWN GUALITY REVIEW PANEL - JOINT COMMITTEE MEETING JULY 2024




NPPF

SECTION 12 - ACHIEVING WELL DESIGNED PLACES

'Lo.ui planning authorities should ensure that they have access to,
an .ake appropriate use of, tools and processes for assessing and
improving the design of development... there is a range of tools
inc'udihg workshops to engage the local community, design advice
anc. «riew arrangements...These are of most benefit if used as
ecriy s possible in the evolution of schemes...In assessing

apr cations, local planning authorities should have regard to the
outcome from these processes, including any recommendations
maae py design review panels.'

(National Planning Policy Framework, paragraph 138)




DESIGN REVIEW PRINCIPLES

'Design Review is focused on
out?@es for people. It

ex s how a building or
pI@can better meet the
ne of the people who will

usmnd of everyone who
wil affected by it. It does

thi: onstructively
el vouring to improve the
qualk#d of architecture, urban

degi landscape and
hing;y design.'

(Design Review Principles and
Practice, chapter 1, page 7)

Design Review is:

Independent

Proportionate
ul;«-:l‘l«:al:iﬂm:ma\ﬁ ":JLZJZ‘W

Accountable
oo Pt et

o et b

Transparent

s paers ot s,
oo oecanos v
ks ety e .




VALUE OF DESIGN REVIEW

- E identification of design
iss efore the scheme is fixed

. thructive feedback to inform
on g pre-app discussions

« F up reviews (in either
fo or chairs review format)

. CGDbe included as part of PPAs
t(iﬂoblish expectation upfront

O

Applicant / design team
Council / Local Authority

@ Guality review panel (GRP)

ARDEN TOWN QUALITY R

| planning committee /
application decision maker

* report to application decision
maker including QRP comments,

application assessment may
include formal GRP comments

planning application

debrief meetings - - - - -

. report of GRP ! planning officers

may recommend

! a follow up QRP
‘ QRP meeting meeting to

| review revised

| proposals or the
invitation to QRP ! submitted
meeting booked and | scheme
preparation :

scheme referred to GRP -~~~ '
by planning officers

pre-application consultation

design development




MEMBERSHIP

Chaired by Peter Maxwell, Director
hn at the London Legacy
De pment Corporation, the

P includes 25 professional

m ers, including:

. cmects / masterplanners

. designers / town planners
. cape architects

. age / townscape experts

. lopment experts

. slamjnobmty experts

. sw infrastructure experts

« inClusive design experts

- transport / infrastructure experts
« stewardship experts




TYPES OF REVIEW

For: &l review: Chair's review:

+ Cwair + 4 panel members « Chair + 1 panel member

« 1422~ commonly used format « Recommended for smaller

» Recemmended for schemes with development proposals, or
grcuiar impact schemes previously presented

at a formal review

Wnr-shop review:

« Chair + 2 panel members
+ Mare discursive in nature than

a formal review

«+ Can be used for larger
masterplans / complex sites to
focus on key thematic issues




SCHEMES REVIEWED

20 reviews, from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024
-8 W@n HGGT and 12 in EFDC, and 11 returning schemes

Applicant type
= Private developer

* Public/private partnership
* Local authority

Typemoposul Design stage
Masterplan = Pre-application
Pojicy decument « Draft document
Exfocote = Submitted

mem PPA masterplan

Midee U

Education

Residential (up to 50)

Residential (50+)




PROPOSALS REVIEWED
GASDEN TOWN AREAS

. Centre - 1

. on Villages - 4
« E&3Cof Harlow - 0
. Lm Priory - 2

. Vw Lane -0

+ %olicy document

N
w

LATTON  1otorion
PRIORY

HARLOW & GILSTON GARDEN T




LESSONS LEARNED

Progress meeting - February 2024

« Me 3tng with HGGT officers, Frame Projects and Panel Chair, to
diz7iss adjustments to the review process and address issues around
perrormance, as well as gaps in panel expertise.

Ant.Lul report - April 2023 to March 2024

« Tc. evaluate effectiveness of the review process, including
g.atitative information on schemes reviewed, and feedback from
penal members, applicants and local planning authority
rerresentatives

Annua' meeting - TBC

+ Oopcrtunity for updates on planning policy and development coming
forward in the HGGT areq, as well as sharing lessons learnt and
celebrating successful projects




STRATEGIC
IVI_/%STERPLANS

. Irmase in the number of

‘@egic sites coming to the
PER)! over the last year.

. Smond complexity of
S lgic sites

. B@oke formats / extended

. Smg the complex

masterplans into thematic
sections.




CHARACTER
AND IDENTITY

« Chdllenge of placemaking within
o] i-rural setting and for
n extensions

« D pment of stronger design
g nce, for example district
lesign codes

. Amioncl best practice
rgferences for design teams and
CEH officers, as well as the

p members.




SUSTAINABILITY
A_NUD TRANSPORT

. Pml working to support the
@tions for modal shift and
p(@otion of active travel

. Gmawcreness of issues
a ld climate resilience,
ﬁmversity and sustainable

d@oge

. AMcnt responses to low
n and passive design more
variable




nuving taken a number of schemes to
n* Quality Review Panel, | can only
_weak highly of the process and value
wie've experienced from it. The panels
ire ade up of members from different
L essional backgrounds and with a
« e of skills that complement each

2

T+ invaluable, constructive feedback
s helped us to develop well-rounded
sr d improved proposals. Engaging with
the QRP more than once during the pre-
apolication process  really maximises
*he benefits. We will continue to utilise
this service as it's extremely effective
ne' would really encourage others to
do the same.

Ben Spencer
GS8



o
jab)

Q
@D
N
(o]

GARDEN
TOWN
GUIDANCE

ARUP

HGGT Joint Committee Board
Meeting

Summary Presentation

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel
Differently

22"d July 2024
Rob Goodall, Associate Director, Arup

22 Way| SINUIN



; | ARUP
sPresentation Purpose

Summary

* Overview of Arup’s report — ‘Re-imagining how we can travel differently’
developed on behalf of, and in conjunction with, HGGT and all partners

« Highlighting of challenges/risks and opportunities of approach to travel
behaviour in Harlow and Gilston

¢¢ obed

 Share the recommendations and the delivery pathway

« Seek approval on final documentation



: ARUP
1. Introduction



Z2€ abed

Gz obed

Introduction

Arup has been commissioned by Harlow

and Gilston Garden Town (HGGT) to produce a study
iInto how travel behavior could be influenced or re-
Imagined.

The purpose of this work Is to set out how the objectives
established in the HGGT Transport Strategy (2022) could
be achieved under different scenarios.

Across the HGGT area, 2023 surveys have indicated that
there is currently a 23% sustainable travel mode share.

Arup have devised a methodology of prioritised
Interventions and how travel behaviour could change to
meet the stated objectives.

ARUP

To Stansted Airport /
Cambridge

an

¥ Station ™ t——.

EAST OF
HARLOW

T e‘Har
‘v =
WATER
LANE ‘ ‘ _A_,,»" Harlow
v Q -
&P l" V-\'""-.:u En:‘eerfrise
LATTON To London Sustainable
PRIORY Transport
o




| ARUP
Introduction

Purpose and Approach to Delivery

The key purposes of this work are to use it as:

0 A tool to leverage s106 funding contributions from Developers to support achievement of the modal objectives.
;g A mechanism to obtain funding from governmental departments.
(@)
@

% A pathway to discharge the conditions of the Housing Infrastructure Grant.

9 A technical base and supporting information for Local Transport Plans (whether they are existing and/or emerging).

It is important to note that interventions contained within this work are currently unfunded, and therefore a clear objective will be to
use it as a “hook” to leverage financial support.

cc abed



ARUP
2. Context



HGGT Context

HGGT objectives and funding conditions

Transport Strategy objectives

50% of all trips starting and/or ending in the existing settlement
area of Harlow Town should be by active and sustainable
travel modes

60% of all trips starting and/or ending in the new Garden
Communities of Harlow & Gilston Garden Town should be
by active and sustainable travel modes

Key takeaways:

» Harlow residents will need to the change the way they travel to
achieve the agreed objectives.

* New strategic sites will need to establish how the objectives will be
achieved.

Gg offed

ARUP

Grant Determination Agreement (GDA) Part 1 - Transport
Monitoring

« 3.1 The Grant Recipient shall provide:

—  3.1.1 further transport monitoring and evaluation if requested
by the Department for Transport, including, but not limited to,
the monitoring and evaluation of travel plans including
sustainable and active modes;

—  3.1.2 details of potential approaches to meeting this
requirement

Key takeaways:

» Clear and effective Monitoring and Evaluation Plan is required
showing the baseline information and the pathway to achieving
the requirements.

« This work will need to set out the range of potential approaches
to meet the requirements, for both existing Harlow residents and
those in the future.




ARUP
3. The Challenge



Delivering Growth

HGGT Planned Development
HGGT growth in number of homes
2040

2033

o€ abed

If

2023

- 10,000 20,000 30,000 40,000 50,000 60,000 70,000

H Harlow B Gilston Villages
B East Harlow ® Latton Priory
® Water Lane

N.B. 2033 Harlow homes is an approximation from 16,000 total

- A key pillar of the planning and development approach for
2 HGGT is the significance of sustainable transport modes and
@ how a change towards their use can be delivered and

9 achieved.

N
A

1

& ¥

© HGGT IDP 2023

] SGA
LI oSN 5
-----

______
..

.
el
-
"

)i Tron woors

N b (withn axisting seghbourhoods|
-

- New neqhbairheods end vitoges

/7 vand only 10 be developed fer potensal

W, oo

E Morlow Town Cantre and local conres

T indumricd aeven

£ v Tames | it /
0 gttt e
a Sannchle Tranasert Conridor
‘I"" [poremncl exreaveni
&t Y New / improved soed fiver croving
PLLRLD P New / Improved padesmion and crche ek



: _ _ ARUP
sBaseline Transport Profile

The challenge — mode shares

70%

60%
Strategic sites need to have a far
higher share of active and
sustainable modes than the

50%

& Near doubling of the use of existing patterns of travel in

Q sustainable modes within 0 Harlow

) 40% . . + '

W the existing town will be 37 /O This will require a new style of
required. development which favours

30% sustainability and delivers a step

t Change achieved through change in mobility patterns.

existing measures (indicative)

Percentage of Sustainable Trips

20%

10%

In line with the HGGT Transport Strategy:

« Active and sustainable transport = walk, cycle, bus, train
mToday mFuture mSrategic Sites » Non-sustainable transport = vehicle passenger or driver

0%

10



ARUP

Baseline Transport Profile

The challenge — demand

« Asignificant increase in the number of

trips to be made by sustainable modes:

— 490,267 (+216%) trips per day if
there is no reduction in the trip rate
(trips per person per day)

— +48,157 (+115%) trips per day if
there is a reduction in the trip rate
(trips per person per day)

» The capacity of the active and public
transport network will need to match
this anticipated demand

The reduction in the non-sustainable

mode share results in non-sustainable
trips reducing moderately from 2021

with the growth projections

6E abede

160,000 100%

140,000

120,000

100,000

40,000

60,000

Active and sustainable mode share

40,000

? —_—
= 2
0 [
-

o -
il *x
~ =
0w "
“l_ -
o

& I
+ +

20,000

0 0%

2021 2040 (same trip rate as 2021) 2040 (reduced frip rate)

s Population = Trips by sustainable mode wm Trips by non-sustainable mode =———Mode share

2021 trip rate: 1.95 trips per person

Reduced trip rate: 1.61 trips per person (1% reduction per year) 1



e ARUP
4. Reimagining Travel



ARUP

Themes

e

the Cost




: ARUP
5. Scenarlios



og abed

¢ abed

Scenarios

Strategy, Programmes and Interventions

Three scenarios have been developed
to provide an indication of potential
pathways to achieving the HGGT
objectives.

Scenario

Summary

Falling behind
achieving the

objectives for HGGT
(BAU)

No significant changes
beyond committed
infrastructure and
developer funding for
new infrastructure and
only a small behavioural
change programme in
place.

Trailing the target
timeframes but
progressing towards
the objectives for
HGGT
(Ambition)

Delivery of some targeted
interventions has been
achieved, however more
controversial and higher
cost schemes not
delivered.

ARUP

On track to achieve
the objectives for
HGGT
(Exemplar)

Difficult decisions
regarding the delivery of
more controversial and
higher cost schemes have
been made which
reinforces growth in
active and public
transport through
improved services and
land use change.




&5Ccenarios ARUE

D )
AExemplar Scenario: Harlow

] ) By 2040:
Trip type Walk Cycle Rail | Bus Car Car passenger -

. . . . . . 9 10,389 additional total
In this scenario, the objective for the HGGT area is achieved by Commuting and business A v S daily trips
2035 and overall vehicle trips across HGGT are below today's level, Education or egucaton A A v § 52,472 additional daily

) ) - . esco j-"  trips by active and
ensuring traffic and congestion levels do not increase. Shopping and Ietoure Rem TS by active abd
Using available resources, HGGT successfully delivers interventions Hinor change B Vajor change = gigaaf' fower daiy tips
that contribute to the objectives in the short term and in response to : ——

. . . N 27% increase in active and
this approach, the HGGT area continues to receive significant
funding from Local and Central Government to deliver further

_Ul mprovements Active and sustainable modes 1

Q_) . . . . . I M Walk [l Cycle |l Bus [ Train [l Car M Car passenger

QThe timely delivery of interventions, such as STCs and improved

oPublic transport, increases public support for further interventions

~hand support,for the ongoing cost of subsidised .pUb'|IC transport. The 2023 ot 2oz 2030 235
HGGT area’s roads become less congested which in turn enables the ek e
re-prioritisation of road space in the high streets and town centre to 'l’l§7% . 25% .
development and supporting active transport. Lower traffic and passenger -

.. 174,364 177,171 184,021 183,864
greater bus priority supports the bus networks performance and trips trips trips trips
makes the HGGT area a more attractive place to walk and cycle.

. . . : 5% S0%
Working from home has a sustained impact on how often people ety s S — oo s s
choose to commute and local travel increases substantially, typically e - Town cente parcng reatocaon - Continued bs see improvemert
by walking or cycling. E-bikes are particularly popular for travel to - Tatgeled engagement promatng [ TTE e e e
mobility hubs over middle distances, combined with an improved - obily Huts

bus network supported by DRT in lower density areas. | oremsen SR

Cycle hire scheme

E-bike Scheme



Scenarios

Exemplar: Strategic Sites

In this scenario, the objective for the strategic sites is achieved by
2035.

The strategic sites are designed in such a way that supports high
active and public transport travel for all trip types, growing the
active and sustainable mode share quickly from 15% to 47% to
2030. The objective is further advanced up to 2035 due mostly to
-gimplementation of parking policies which discourage short
gvehicle trips and high-quality walking and cycling routes.

glnitially lower rates of public transport take up are seen as service

O9levels builds as demand increases. Developments are attractive to
new and existing residents partially because of the sustainable
lifestyle they deliver for residents.

Short trips are concentrated on walking and cycling, this includes
access to schools, retail and local leisure facilities. Cycling
occurs along dedicated cycle routes and local streets and safe
storage is provided at key locations.

For journeys into Harlow and onwards, many residents use the
_Uhigh-quality turn up and go local bus provision utilising the STCs
ayor an expanded DRT to get to the town centre and for regional
S connections via the train or bus station.

D
6]

ARUP

By 2040:

Trip type Walk Cycle Rail / Bus

Car Car passenger

Commuting and business

o 68,320 additional total
daily trips

Education or education
escort

£ 40,992 additional daily

Shopping and leisure

% ... trips by active and
*= sustainable modes

Minor change Il ajorchange

Active and sustainable modes

[ |
M Walk [l Cycle |l Bus [ Train [l Car [ Car passenger

2025 2030

47%

—
As per Harlow interventions ,plus:

Residential Travel Plans

Villages DRT

27,328 additional daily
trips by car modes

60% active and sustainable
mode share

2035

—_—
As per Harlow interventions, plus:

Designed in mitigation to new
developments

Strategic Sites Parking Policy



ARUP
0. Summary



Short Medium Long
2023 | 2024 | 2025 2006 | 2027 | 2028 | 203334 |2035-2040
usingll 35457 | 36845 | 37,206 | 37657 | 38182 30,106 26 ¢ 30419 | 39,809
Targst Mods Sharg| O £ 4 % L2 a3 %

Sustainabla Trip Demand| B0 73,

MNon-Sustainabla Trip Damand

L 117473 |

Combined Delivery Pathway

Strategic Sites : :
Po2250 ¢ 4,

Target Moda Sharal

The delivery themes pathway has been overlaid with s op Doran : T T TR
the existing HGGT work plan (key site delivery and e iLl BN N

D Lation Priory @
i i ‘W alarLanE -

infrastructure delivery and enablement timeframes). o o et ¥ T

Gitston Vilages 1-6 @

- i e

This ties together the schemes that are already — e
Development Linked Infrastructune (R) L ] Ear&!hridgc Rd Junction Upgrade E . S.eﬁrgﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁnmg%

planned with the recommended supporting et I N ooy s Sasp

Eastern Slort Crossing

interventions required to meet the modal transition S S S S

® STC North te Cerjtre (Burnt bl 1o .Ed“b“ 9"""‘“'”“"‘* rd Way
Harlow Town Gankre Bus Station) prada

g-? 0 bj eCt i Ves . STC Developments ® STC East to Wast lHarlon-

Torwm Contre Bus Staﬂ on to

«Q ®5TC East o West
cD (UKHSA to Harlcw Town
Centre Bus Station)
: - r 8 5TC Conbroto Soutt
-b ' @ LCWIP Reuted ! ! ® Cycle Routs § !
o i ® LOWIP Routeid i i
’ Walking Zone 1 § L] ’:\'ﬂ_lﬂ Route 3 @ Cycle Route & H

- iCycle Route 4 ® Cycle Routa &

The scenario shown in the delivery pathway is most T T B o Crugheann? |

aligned to the Exemplar scenario. with continuous s 'Z"H

delivery and implementation of a range of Roads, Suesta and  Liamasthy Svoe

Maighbourhoods Active Meighbourhoods H

interventions and programmes to support the gradual Toun cene Py suseg__ :
and sustained change to active and public transport, e L™ B

Harlow Ticketing / Maas / Frce Cap i i ; n
—————t LMD —
Sheared Mobilly Framewoni 3 3 F
Mability Hubs :  c : :
: : —_—

Increasing Shared

Mobility and Acti
Jonllty and ACY® e Storag linksd 1o LOWIP

E-Bike Scheme

oHGGT will need to assess the deliverability of the —— =

Targsted Pathfinder Businesses

& supporting interventions under the delivery themes — ewanee  commneycromen

Programimes Business Engagament

Car Clubs

Marketing ang Comms Plan

i pathway with respect to their resource constraints. —  essresspe

iy 0 H H
Pricing and Parking Pa mg.Maﬂagamsnr Stralegy | i
\] Strategic Sites Parking Management Strategy H i
Sustainable Freight i . _ : H
andDeliveries P ITT 5 5
Monitering! Schama Monifonng : H 3 i

Ewvaluation FParipalc Travel Suney







H GA&ndf_ltem 8

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Agenda Iltem 8

Report to: HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT COMMITTEE

Title:

HGGT Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy and Updated Action Plan

Report Reference: JC-008-2024/25

Date: 10 February 2025
Report Author: Adeola Pilgrim - HGGT Quality of Life Lead
Enclosures: Appendix A - HGGT Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy

Appendix B — HGGT Quality of Life Action Plan

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

The HGGT Joint Committee is asked to:

A

B.

Agree the HGGT Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy as set out in Appendix A.

Agree the updated HGGT Quiality of Life Action Plan as set out in Appendix B.

Delegate authority to the Acting HGGT Director to make further minor amendments to the
final HGGT Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy and Action Plan as may be required for final
publication, in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Joint Committee.

Recommend to the HGGT Council partners that the HGGT Quality of Life Monitoring
Strategy and Action Plan are used as a benchmark for aligning the approach to community
engagement across the Garden Town area.

Executive Summary:

In 2022, the HGGT Quality of Life (QoL) project was agreed by all HGGT 5 Council partners as
a way of mapping quality of life and wellbeing, and to establish a baseline for measuring the
social impacts of growth and change across the HGGT geography. It was the culmination of the

A
e

@ Epping Forest e 3
@ District Council - __H_C_]_flgw. i
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk AR Wisrking topether for Harfow Hertfordshire| Page 49



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

5 Council partners work to identify the shared HGGT priorities for community engagement and
community-led stewardship.

This was done through the Your Quality of Life (YQoL) consultation, which was a public, digital-
led consultation where HGGT asked local residents about their quality of life, and what they
value, like, dislike or need.

Following the success of the YQoL Consultation in 2022, the HGGT partners recognised the
additional value that QoL monitoring and engagement has across all HGGT workstreams and
this resulted in the HGGT Board endorsing the Quality of Life Action Plan in February 2023. The
Action Plan set out recommendations and next steps for its implementation, including a
commitment to develop a HGGT Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy and to make consultation
data more digitally accessible.

Appendix A contains the HGGT QoL Monitoring Strategy which provides a guide for measuring
and tracking Quality of Life across the Garden Town, both within existing and new communities,
in years to come. The HGGT QoL Action Plan has also been updated to reflect progress and
further recommendations following development of the Monitoring Strategy, and is set out in
Appendix B.

The HGGT QoL Monitoring Strategy and Action Plan have been developed collaboratively by
the Quality of Life Foundation and the HGGT 5 Council partners.

Reasons for proposed Decision:

The Quality-of-Life Indicators are performance indicators that are used to measure and evaluate
health and wellbeing. The HGGT Joint Committee is tasked with monitoring reports on Quality
of Life indicators in Harlow and the new neighbourhoods. By undertaking Quality of Life
Monitoring, changes in quality of life can be monitored and the outputs from this can inform
future policy and planning decisions.

Other Options for Action:

It could be determined not to agree the HGGT Quiality of Life Monitoring Strategy and updated
Action Plan and to take no further action in relation to it. This option as a course of action is not
recommended. It would not support enabling the 5 Council partners to achieve the HGGT
Vision informed by monitoring the health and wellbeing of current and future residents and to
support better quality of life for the community. It would also leave landowners, developers,
community representatives and other stakeholders without further guidance from the 5 Council
partners of HGGT with respect to Quality of Life. With HGGT stewardship approach still under
development, and limited engagement and monitoring policy, Quality of Life Monitoring helps
secure enhancements to quality and social equity at scale through verifiable, data-driven

(East Epping Forest = ;
Hg{:g;a District Council ﬁ _H_OJ: |Q¥Y. m
Page 50 U www.eppingforestde.gov.uk e . ot Hertfordshire|

ki towerker for Harlow



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

approaches, which can be scaled further. All of these have been helpful in raising the profile of
the HGGT and support seeking further funding opportunities.

I. Introduction

1.1 Harlow and Gilston was designated as a Garden Town in January 2017. It will create new
communities in and around Harlow with 23,000 new homes, 20,000 new jobs and
transformational supporting infrastructure by 2033 and beyond. The Garden Town will
support regeneration of Harlow town centre and provide significant new job opportunities.

1.2 The HGGT 5 Council partners wanted to measure the impact of this long-term growth by
establishing a Quality of Life baseline for the Garden Town area. By establishing the
baseline, it enables monitoring of any changes to quality of life and social value in relation to
the baseline and allows adjustment to policy and planning. The HGGT Quality of Life project
therefore focuses on people’s quality of life in the town and surrounding areas and is part of
ongoing efforts to enhance the health and wellbeing of current and future residents and to
involve more local people in decisions affecting their area.

2. Background

2.1 In 2022, the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) PropTech
Round 2 Digital Engagement funding was awarded to HGGT for mapping quality of life and
wellbeing, to establish a baseline for measuring the social impacts of growth and change.
This was done through the YQoL consultation which presented a set of QoL indicator
questions to residents to understand how different areas of the Garden Town are performing.
The questions were themed under the headings of Community, Nature, Movement, Health,
Wonder and Control.

2.2 The engagement included over 1000 contributions and 49 in-person events, which was a
threefold increase in engagement compared to previous consultations. There was also an
increase in engagement with under-represented groups, including both younger and older
people, people from minority backgrounds and people with disabilities. Feedback from the
YQoL consultation has been summarised in reports and shared back with the community,
including a Community Feedback Report and the Reflections and Recommendations Report
which have fed into the QoL Action Plan. These have and will continue to enable community
feedback to influence both authority and developer-led proposals and policies, as well as
long-term stewardship and governance arrangements. It has also provided a baseline to
return to and inform approaches in the future.

@a? Epping Forest — HC]HOW

A
e

£ =
Hg{:g;a District Council ——— Council il
U www.eppingforestde.gov.uk e Wisrking topether for Harfow Hal'tfnl'dshire P ag e 5 1


https://hggt.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/QOLF-Community-Feedback-Report_151222-FINAL.pdf
https://hggt.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/230215_QOLF-Your-Quality-of-Life-Project-Recs-Report.pdf

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

2.3 The HGGT Quality of Life Action Plan was endorsed by the HGGT Board in February 2023.

3.1

It considers how to progress, resource and plan projects; develop potential wider
collaborations; and to ensure the most value and learning from the Quality of Life project is
drawn down and applied. It includes both short-term and longer-term actions and tasks, the
delivery of which is dependent on appropriate resource and funding. The HGGT 5 Council
partners have already begun delivering several actions, including opening the Discover
Harlow Hub; updating the HGGT Communications and Engagement Strategy; progressing
the Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy and developing a public facing digital dashboard.

HGGT Quality of Life Monitoring

Quality of Life Monitoring is the process of measuring responses to the same set of Quality
of Life questions over a period of time consistently and observing any changes in the
feedback. As new data is collected over time, it will identify positive or negative trends in
people’s responses - thus showing whether there is a positive or negative trend in residents’
perceived quality of life. The outputs from this can inform future policy and planning decisions,
such as for social value, stewardship, engagement, and design quality; indicate priorities for
investment; as well as monitor performance of development overall, in relation to quality of
life.

3.2 The primary purpose of the QoL Monitoring Strategy therefore is to enable future quality of

life assessments against the 2022 baseline data — and then again against future years,
including with future communities - so that quality of life data, aggregated over geographical
areas and time, can inform policy and planning decisions to support better quality of life for
the community.

3.3 The Monitoring Strategy has been developed through workshops and discussions with

officers from across the partnership representing a range of service areas. The Strategy
consists of nine main steps requiring different levels of input, expertise and resources. These
are summarised in Figure 1 below.

A s o .
District Council — Council 1

@ Epping Forest e Harlow

erts
oooooo G
P ag e 5 2 \\—/ www.eppingforestdc.gav.uk s Working topecher for Hartow Hertfordshire|



G obed

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON

GARDEN TOWN

> Step 1 - Review
methodologies and
programme

Step 9 — Review
Quality of Life
Monitoring Strategy

Step 8 -
Communicate
findings and actions

Step 2 — Prioritising

and aligning key
documents

Step 7 - Review and
approval process

Step 6 - Monitor and
evaluate outputs and
trends

v

Step 3 — Collect
Quality of Life Data
(every 3-5 years)

Step 4 - Sort data
into Quality of Life
indicators

Step 5— Input Data
Into the Tracker
6

Continue
approaches where Update strategic
positive results documents

occur, change

approaches where

negative

Example Impacts and/or Actions

Themes (such as
health equity, or
sense of control)
identified as
declining are
prioritised

Prioritise funding to
community projects
in areas of deficit

Figure 1: How Quality of Life Monitoring works, with example Impacts and/or Actions

(Easty Epping Forest
HE,F!SJ? District Council
\_/ www eppingforestde. gov.uk

Harlow

Council [l

A
Working oether for Faon Hertfordshire|

HGGT overall
Quality of Life is
improved by 23%;
feelings of safety are
improved by 3%



3.4 The HGGT AQuality of Life Action Plan outlines specific tasks and goals, with
recommendations for implementation, and is to be read alongside the Monitoring Strategy.
The Action Plan was formulated based on the Quality of Life Foundation’s recommendations
to HGGT for how to improve and measure quality of life and the desire to turn these into
actions for HGGT and potentially partners going forward. With sections A, B, C, S and D,
previously agreed by the HGGT Board in February 2023, these have since been updated to
reflect progress and next actions. Additional actions have also been recommended to support
QoL monitoring as well as the recommendations previously agreed by the HGGT Board.

3.5 The Quality of Life Action Plan is to be reviewed and updated at least annually, to report on
progress and reflect any recommendations which arise as a result of QoL monitoring. With
Your Quality of Life consultations recommended to take place every 3-5 years, the Monitoring
Strategy itself is reviewed with each consultation to ensure it remains relevant.

3.6 It will be important for each of the 5 Council partners to consider how their approach to
community engagement aligns with the QoL Framework as there is the potential for the
Quality of Life Consultation to replace or reduce the length of other surveys.

4. Programme and Next Steps

4.1 The Quality of Life projectis splitinto 4 phases. Phase 1 covered the YQoL Consultation and
Monitoring Baseline which have now been completed. The approval of the Monitoring
Strategy and updated Action Plan will round off Phase 2 of the project.

4.2 Phase 3 is currently progressing and involves integrating Quality of Life monitoring indicators
and consultation data into a digital consultation hub - the HGGT Data Dashboard. The
dashboard is the platform where Quality of Life Monitoring will be consulted on, reported and
shared back with the community. This will enable better sharing of consultation data across
HGGT and partner boundaries, and supports better engagement, transparency and
accountability with key stakeholders. Several outputs from Phase 3 have already been
delivered or being progressed. The integration of QoL monitoring data into the HGGT Data
Dashboard is now complete and expected to be accessible to the public by early 2025.

4.3 Phase 4 of the project will be defined through the updated Action Plan and is expected to
include a programme of both internal and external engagement covering elements such as
user training on the data dashboard and future YQoL Consultation. Although the next YQoL
consultation is not anticipated until 2026, some elements such as aligning further strategies
to QoL indicators can be progressed now, enabling further benefits to be experienced sooner.

4.4 The allocated budget for Phase 3 has been used up, with a few key tasks outstanding. Phase
4 is also currently unfunded, although, several elements can be progressed in the interim, as
HGGT in-house resource allows. The project will therefore benefit from further budget
allocations and funding opportunities. A key outcome the project is seeking to achieve is
scalability, for increased and accelerated impact, which could support future funding
opportunities.

Page 54



Implications:

Once approved, the Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy and Action Plan will form part of the
HGGT Quality Monitoring Framework. This will enable the 5 Council partners of HGGT to
monitor quality of life at different levels and for different groups which would in turn help to shape
policy and guidance, masterplans, development proposals, stewardship arrangements, etc.

The Quality of Life project is already having impact across several HGGT workstreams, with
references to the project embedded throughout the recently adopted HGGT Stewardship
Charter which in itself will support long term Quality of Life Monitoring across the garden town.

Whilst not a legislative requirement, it will also be a reasonable expectation of the local
community and other stakeholders that the 5 Council partners of HGGT seek to secure the
outcomes set out in the Monitoring Strategy and Action Plan.

Resource Implications

Whilst the delivery of actions identified within Monitoring Strategy and Action Plan would require
some funding, there are no direct financial implications to approving the recommendations
within this report.

Equalities and Diversity

Equality Impact Assessment

Is this a new policy (or decision) or a changetoan | Yes
existing policy, practice or project?
Describe the main aims, objectives and purpose of | To engage meaningfully and support
the policy or decision better quality of life for the community.
What outcome(s) are you hoping to achieve (ie Monitor and track quality of life data to
decommissioning or commissioning a service)? inform policy and planning decisions.
Does or will the policy or decision affect: Service users and the wider
e service users community will be able to understand
e employees how their neighbourhood affects their
e the wider community or groups of health and wellbeing and empower
people, particularly where there are them in the decisions affecting their
areas of known inequalities? local area.
7

Page 55



Will the policy or decision influence how
organisations operate?

Yes, by promoting inclusive engagement
and prioritising and enabling
underrepresented groups.

Will the policy or decision involve substantial
changes in resources?

No

Is this policy or decision associated with any of the
Council’s other policies and how, if applicable,
does the proposed policy support corporate
outcomes?

The HGGT Quality of Life is aligned with
strategic objectives and corporate
policies in place across the 5 Council
partners of HGGT.

What does the information tell you about those
groups identified?

N/A

Have you consulted or involved those groups that
are likely to be affected by the policy or decision
you want to implement? If so, what were their
views and how have their views influenced your
decision?

Feedback gathered from community and
resident responses have been
summarised in a Community Feedback
Report and built into the QoL Action Plan.

If you have not consulted or engaged with
communities that are likely to be affected by the
policy or decision, give details about when you
intend to carry out consultation or provide reasons
for why you feel this is not necessary:

N/A

Use this section to assess any potential impact on equality groups based on what you

now know.

Age, Disability, Gender, Gender reassignment,
Pregnancy/maternity, Marriage/civil partnership,
Race, Religion/belief, Sexual orientation

There is no impact on any protected
groups.

Does the EqlA indicate that the policy or decision
would have a medium or high

HGGT Vision Assurance

No

1. What principles of the HGGT Vision does this seek to achieve?

The project aims to address cross-cutting stewardship themes through meaningful, inclusive
engagement and by measuring quality targets based on the principles of healthy growth.

2. What steps have been taken to ensure the HGGT Vision is embedded into the project?

The HGGT Vision core principles for healthy growth align with the Quality of Life Foundation’s
Monitoring Framework themes which form the basis for the HGGT quality of life indicators.

Page 56




UALITY
H G golmou gF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

Quality of Life Monitoring
Strategy

02 October 2024

This Strategy has been developed collaboratively by the Quality of Life Foundation and the

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town (HGGT) team. The HGGT Quality of Life Action Plan has

similarly been collaboratively developed and sets out recommendations and next steps for
its implementation, and is to be read alongside this guide.

i Page 57



HGGT QUALITY

D Of LIFE
Contents
L [ 1 (oo 18 X oo OSSPSR P PSR RPPPI 1
2. Quality Of Life FrameEWOIK .........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e abb e e e e s aabaeeeeeaae 3
Bi HOW It WWOTKS ...ttt 4
4. USES ANd BENETILS .....ooiiiieiiie i 4
5. QoL Monitoring DelVErY TEAM........coii ittt e et e e e e e e e e e 6
6. Process and WOTKFIOW ..........uoiiiiiiiiiii ittt sttt b e s sbe e aeeas 8
7. Frequency and scale of CONSURALIONS ..........ocuuiiiiiii e 10
8. FUMNEI FESOUICES ...ttt e e e e e e e e s e e e e ann e e e e e eanees 10
(€10t o PR PPR 11
Appendices (A-H: Detailed Delivery Guidance; I-K: Background) ..........ccccoeveveceieeeceeeie e A-1
A. Detailed Step by Step Guidance and Delivery TImescales..........cooviorrinneinininneereeerees A-1
B. Quality of Life themes and SUD-thEmMES...........cccveiririircir s B-1
C. Quality of Life MONItOrNG TraCKer........ccoiriuiiiiiiiiriiriieeetscisie s C-1
D. Quality of Life Indicator QUESHONS........ccccoiimmirrinririirnineiseisecseiee st sssessnes D-1
E. Using QoL Indicators as a Document Alignment and Checking Tool ..........cccceoirineeneninnene E-1
F. Case Study — HGGT Stewardship Charter Recommendations ...........ccccoeevvrncincenennerenennnnnes F-1
G. Aligned Documents and Future Alignments Template..........ccocoeeveinireineenseereee e G-1
H. Engagement MEthOAOIOgY e H-1
l. Officer Feedback and how it has informed the Strategy..........cccoooeeeiiiecceieceeeee e, -1
J. 2022 Your Quality of Life Consultation — Establishing Baseline Data...........cccccoooeiiininninns J-1
K. 2022 Consultation DemographiCs ... sssssssssesssssessssessssessssesns K1

Page 58 i



UALITY
H G .gol.mou gF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

page left intentionally blank

i Page 59



HGGT

Revision History and Updates

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

Any changes to the strategy or its supporting Appendices will be supplied in both track change and a

clean version, with key changes noted in this document control sheet, following the example

below.
Date Version Key updates
02 Oct 2024 1.0 First issue
Page 60 iv



UALITY
H G golmou gF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

1. Introduction

1.1. Following the success of the HGGT Your Quality of Life (YQoL) Consultation in 2022 - where
the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town asked people across the area what they value and need about
the places they live and work - the HGGT Board endorsed the HGGT Quality of Life (QoL) Action Plan
in February 2023.

1.2. Several actions have already been delivered, such as opening the Discover Harlow Hub and
updating the HGGT Communications and Engagement Strategy. The QoL Action Plan also included a
commitment to developing the HGGT Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy (the Monitoring Strategy);
and developing digital tools to enhance community participation in planning.

1.3. The Monitoring Strategy is a guide to measure and track quality of life across the Harlow and
Gilston Garden Town area. Using the Quality of Life Foundation’s Monitoring Framework, national
benchmarks regarding health and wellbeing, and some of the Garden Town’s own questions, a bespoke
set of quality of life indicator questions was created and consulted on, providing a baseline to measure
against in the future.

14. The primary purpose of the Monitoring Strategy is to enable future quality of life assessments
against the 2022 baseline data — and then again against future years, including with future communities
- so that quality of life data, aggregated over geographical areas and time, can inform policy and
planning decisions to support better quality of life for the community.

1.5. The data provides an evidence base for community-led decision making and indicates issues
arising in the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town area, enabling more localised decisions, alongside
strategic performance oversight. As such, it is part of the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Partnership’s
ongoing efforts to ensure that the health and wellbeing of current and future residents is protected
and promoted during and after a period of extensive development.

1.6. Alongside this, Quality of Life Monitoring Indicators and consultation data have also been
integrated into the HGGT Data Dashboard — the platform where Quality of Life Monitoring will be
consulted on, reported on and shared back with the community. This will enable better sharing of
consultation data across HGGT and partner boundaries; and supports better engagement, transparency
and accountability with key stakeholders.

1.7. With Your Quality of Life consultations aligned with wider authority monitoring and strategic

objectives, and recommended to take place every 3-5 years, this Monitoring Strategy and the HGGT
Data Dashboard will form part of the HGGT Quality Monitoring Framework.

1 Page 61



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

Hertfordshire
County Council

East Herts District

Council

Essex County
Council

Harlow District

Council

Epping Forest
District Council

Gilston Area

v

Harlow and Gilston
Garden Town

V'S

l

Quality of Life

l

Harlow and Gilston Garden

Town Data Dashboard

Figure 1 — Partnering Authority Quality Monitoring Frameworks alongside HGGT Data Dashboard

- - - - = aligned relationship, where approaches are compatible

= direct relationship, where one or more organisations define the approach

Page 62




€9 abed

HGGT QUALITY

HARLOW & GILSTON OF LIFE

GARDEMN TOWN FOUNDATION

2. Quality of Life Framework
2.1. The Quality of Life Framework is an evidence-based framework from the Quality of Life Foundation that outlines six main themes, each with three
sub-themes, that we believe make up the necessary components of a happy and healthy life; and which align well with key strategic documents, including
the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Vision. For detailed definitions, please refer to Appendix A - Quality of Life themes and sub-themes

= Influence and contribution
« Safety
« Affordability and permanence

= Housing standards
« Air, noise and light
+ Healthy food choices

'+ Green and blue spaces

« Biodiversit

* Climate resilience and
:adnphﬂai‘l

= Distinctive design
« Culture
« Play and recreation

+ Walking, cycling and
wheeling

= Public transport

« Cars

+ Belonging
» Local businesses and jobs
» Local services

Figure 2 - Aligning the HGGT Vision to the Quality of Life themes.



UALITY
H G rgovIuSTON gF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

3. How it Works

3.1. Quality of life indicators are linked to all aspects of planning and development, and so Quality
of Life Monitoring data is relevant to all departments and geographies across the Harlow and Gilston
Garden Town area, and its partnering authorities.

3.2. As such, both developer and authority frameworks and strategies from various disciplines can
also be measured and benefit from consultations. This is achieved by linking their desired outcomes
with the Quality of Life Indicators in the Quality of Life Tracker, which is an editable spreadsheet that
tracks Quality of Life Indicators over time (see Appendix C - Quality of Life Monitoring Tracker). This
process is referred to in this Strategy as “aligning” documents.

3.3. Measurement and evaluation in this strategy involves collecting quality of life data via
community consultation every 3-5 years; sorting and inputting that data into a Tracker; and analysing
and reporting on changes and any decisions which result (see Figure 5 - How Quality of Life Monitoring
works, with example impacts and/or actions, see Figure 7 for timings).

3.4. Quality of Life Monitoring is therefore the process of measuring responses to the same set of
Quality of Life questions over a period of time consistently, and observing any changes in the feedback.
Changes in feedback will result in a net increase or decrease in scores, indicating changes in what
people value and need in different areas, or across the whole of the Garden Town.

3.5. If desired, the same survey can also be delivered locally to focus on specific areas; or select
questions can be delivered through a shorter survey, or through other surveys — such as Health Impact
Assessments, or Post Occupancy Evaluations - where indicator questions have been aligned.

3.6. As new data is added to the tracker over time, it will identify positive or negative trends in
people’s responses - thus showing whether there is a positive or negative trend in local residents’
perceived quality of life. The outputs from this can inform future policy and planning decisions, such
as for social value, stewardship, engagement, and design quality; indicate priorities for investment; as
well as monitor performance of the development overall, in relation to quality of life.

3.7. By making the data accessible through illustrative and engaging graphics via the HGGT Data

Dashboard, it provides greater accountability and transparency to how these factors have been
considered. Detailed delivery instructions and guidance are provided in Appendices A-H.

4. Uses and Benefits

41. The Quality of Life Indicators can be applied across a broad range of initiatives, policies and
frameworks, meaning quality of life can be consistently measured, benefitting all stakeholders with a
shared interest in quality of life. Some examples of these benefits and uses are shown below.

Page 64 4



HGGT quauty

HARLOW & GILSTON

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

42 In between Quality of Life Consultations, the Tracker can also be used as a checking tool for
authority and developer strategic documents and monitoring approaches, to support them be more
measurable for quality of life outcomes. This is particularly valuable in documents as they develop, prior
to being submitted for approvals, but can also be used retrospectively, as documents are due to be

updated.

4.3. By implementing this strategy, all Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Partners will have a

common language and Framework which supports achieving shared quality of life outcomes.

44, Further to this, Quality of Life Monitoring is scalable, so the approaches set out in this strategy
can be applied at any scale and within both existing and future communities

Uses and Benefits /8w | > 7 s G
Sl s |§|Es €T |¢88
© ‘= Qo 3 = a — o
o5 o g3 £ 3 2Tz g

£ o £ > o S5 450

65| 3 |2 | 5% |56 684
@< ya o= o o5

Enable community to participate more equitably | +/ VARV ARV v v

in the planning process, by sharing how their

quality of life informs decisions, and by making

that information accessible and transparent

Ensure planning decisions and developer v v

applications respond to community quality of life,

health and wellbeing issues

Tailor projects to reflect community feedback, | +/ v | Vv v v

values and needs

Communicate in a more informed way about the
issues that people care about, and why decisions
are being taken

Increase underrepresented groups participation
in the planning process

Increase transparency in why decisions are being | \/ v | VIV v
made, and certain areas prioritised to benefit
communities and quality of life

Identify further projects and opportunities to | v/ VARV S RV4 v
engage (i.e. a community project is funded to make
an area feel safer at night; or to comment on where
more seating is needed)

Demonstrate accountability, through accessible, | v/ v | VIV v v
data-backed decision-making processes,
highlighting what works and what doesn’t, about
the things people value

Build relationships and social capital with local | v/ v | VI IV v
communities, through long term dialogue, and
better communication practices about the things
people value

Increased community influence in planning | «/ v | VIV v v

decisions

<
<
<
<
<
<

<
<
A\
<
<
A\

5 Page 65



HGGT quau

HARLOW & GILSTON

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

Uses and Benefits 5 — s g
2o |0 0 | 22 Z % 38
ts 8 @ S S €S o PO M
& = o e} 2 S 2 3 Qw290

o | 3 € E 3 Eo | ££8<%

£ | ¢ 3 £ 2 ES5 | BE Y
R = | 6% SR g
e < (=} 0 = (] o5

Increased awareness of influence, and ofresulting v v

Actions and Impact

Supports others’ reporting and monitoring, | +/ v | VvV v v

where Quality of Life indicators align (i.e. POE
evaluations, stewardship outcomes, etc)

Share benefits/positive impacts in v'<£ | VvV v
communications and marketing material
Scale positive impacts to quality of life. The | \/ v | VvV VvV
approaches we've innovated are scalable, which
means, others can benefit too - locally, regionally
and nationally.

Demonstrates innovation and leadership in v v'<£ | VvV
developing and delivering social value, in the
context of growth and change

Establishes a way to measure key stewardship | v | VIV v v
outcomes, where no other framework currently
exists

Supports further funding and investment, via | v/ Vv v
funding grants and monitoring contributions, and
where new homes, health and wellbeing remain
high on political agendas, and where interest in
stewardship is increasing

<
<

Figure 3 - key benefits and potential uses to various stakeholder groups

5. QoL Monitoring Delivery Team

5.1. This Strategy sits across different levels and teams within Harlow and Gilston Garden Town and
requires varying levels of input and oversight across several departments. For example, engagement
officers will be actively involved in the collection of data via consultations and engagement with
residents; whereas senior management and officers will be more involved in interpreting the trends that
emerge from the data, going on to make strategic recommendations and decisions in response.

5.2. Key users who will be adding, tracking, evaluating and reporting the data are identified in the
table below, including skill requirements to undertake different aspects. This table should be used as a
guide for identifying the most appropriate team and whether further skills or resource are required or
may be resourced differently. Adjustment will be based on the structure and needs of delivery teams

and/or organisations.

Page 66 6



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

QoL Monitoring Team

Tier/role

Skills/experience

Adding and

Tracking Data

Evaluation
and Reporting

Quality of Life Monitoring Actions

Project Manager
(who may hold one
or more of the roles
below),

Liaising across five partner
authorities, with external
stakeholders and consultants

<

Championing and driving the project to
ensure delivery of the Strategy and Action
Plan, in collaboration with partnering
authorities and external stakeholders to
maximising impact.

Planning or Senior
Planning Officer

with experience in spatial
planning for health and
wellbeing

undertaking high-level
research and analysis of
engagement data and
feedback

Translating the trends that emerge over
time into directives, ideas and areas of
further research / investigation

Undertaking the regular evaluation of the
Quality of Life Monitoring methodology and
Tracker

Developing strategies and plans based on
feedback

Senior Engagement
Officer

leading and delivering
engagement and consultation
programmes at a variety of
scales and contexts and to
progress QoL Action Plan

Adding and tracking indicators input into
the Tracker over time

Data analyst (socio-
economic skillset)

developing outcomes based
socio-economic monitoring
and evaluation programmes

Inputting into future outcomes-based
monitoring and evaluation programmes

Data Visualisation
officer (or similar
skill set e.g. Graphic
Designer)

analysing and communicating
data visually to various
stakeholder groups with the
HGGT Data Dashboard Team

Translating hard data into informative,
easily accessible data-graphics to reach
every audience

Figure 4 - QoL Monitoring Team and Skills Requirements

Page 67




UALITY
H G rgovIuSTON gF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

6. Process and Workflow

6.1. The Strategy consists of nine main steps requiring different levels of input, expertise and
resources. For detailed guidance for each step, refer to Appendix A - Detailed Step by Step Guidance
and Delivery Timescales.

- Step 1 - Review methodologies and programme - This requires the review and
evaluation of past, present and future engagement methodology to minimise work, as
well as other planned engagement to coordinate approaches.

- Step 2 — Prioritising and aligning key documents. This step involves aligning strategic
documents or other consultations with the Framework by linking desired outcomes to the
Quality of Life indicators measured in the Tracker.

- Step 3 — Collect Quality of Life Data - Through repeat Quality of Life Consultations and
smaller scale surveys, where useful.

- Step 4 - Sort data into Quality of Life indicators - Aggregating feedback into groups to
give an overall number that broadly summarises sentiment in response to a question.”

- Step 5 — Input Data Into the Tracker - This shows changes over time, enabling users to
understand what areas need further focus and which areas are performing well.*

- Step 6 - Monitor and evaluate outputs and trends - Report on changes or trends that
emerge from data and make recommendations via an updated Action Plan. This increases
understanding of what actions need to be taken to adjust or maintain quality of life.

- Step 7 - Review and approval process — HGGT Senior Management Group (or other
Senior Officer Group) review recommendations and determine next steps via the updated
Action Plan.

- Step 8 - Communicate findings and actions — To share actions resulting from Your
Quality of Life consultation through visually engaging data graphics via reports and the
HGGT Data Dashboard.

- Step 9 — Review Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy - A review of the strategy to capture
lessons learned and carry them forward to future iterations.

*Note that steps 4 and 5 are likely to become redundant over time as data management
processes are improved and/or automated within the dashboard. In the interim, data is
managed through the Quality of Life Tracker an then uploaded.

Page 68 8



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON

GARDEN TOWN

3-5 years

Step 1 - Review
> methodologies and
programme

Step 9 — Review
Quality of Life
Monitoring Strategy

Step 8 - Communicate
findings and actions

Public access viaHGGT
Data Dashboard.

Map based!

(Using illustrative and
engaging graphics)

Quality of Life
data informs
decisions

69 abed

Step 7 - Review and
approval process

Continue approaches
where positive
results occur, change
approaches where
negative

pre-budget/resource reviews

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

Step 2 — Prioritising

and aligning key

documents

v

pre-reporting

Step 3 — Collect
Quality of Life Data
(every 3-5 years)

Step 4 - Sort data into
Quality of Life
indicators

Step 6 - Monitor and
evaluate outputs and

Step 5 — Input Data Into

6 the Tracker
trends

Update strategic
documents

Example Impacts and/or Actions
Prioritise funding to LIS (e

community projects in Bl by o

areas of deficit sense of control)
identified as declining

are prioritised

Figure 5 - How Quality of Life Monitoring works, with example impacts and/or actions, see Figure 7 for timings)

HGGT overall Quality
of Life is improved by
23%; feelings of
safety are improved
by 3%



H G G T QUALITY

HARLOW & GILSTON oF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

7. IFrequency and scale of consultations

7.1. Garden Town wide ‘Your Quality of Life’ (YQoL) consultations is to be completed on a three-
to-five-year cycle. This is to support alignment to typical cycles of large-scale housing development and
Local Plan consultations, maximising the impact of the findings; and to ensure that data can be reliably
benchmarked (anything beyond 5 years becomes less reliable).

7.2. Interim, smaller scale quality of life data collections through aligned surveys will add to this data,
developing a richer understanding of change in quality of life in those areas, (for example, via the annual
Harlow Residents Survey, or developer Post-Occupancy Evaluations, where aligned).

7.3. Frequency of data collection for smaller scale consultations will be determined by their
respective timelines and reviewed periodically. See Step 1 - Review data collection and engagement
methodology.

74. Where questions asked in smaller scale surveys are covered by the Quality of Life survey
questions (refer to Appendix C - Quality of Life Indicator Questions) there is potential for the Quality
of Life Consultation to replace the need for those surveys, or reduce the length of those surveys, during
those years.

7.5. Consistent consultations (i.e. every 3, 4 or 5 years) will reduce the effects of external factors
over time by reducing variability, therefore long term funding will be kept under review to support
this.

8. Further resources
e Your Quality of Life Community Feedback Report: Sets out insights and findings from the

consultation (digital and non-digital), to provide recommendations to HGGT around improving
quality of life, and the processes to do so, for and with local people.
e Your Quality of Life Reflections and Recommendation Report: Summarises Quality of Life

Foundation’s recommendations to the Garden Town. The Garden Town are already implementing
some of the recommendations and planning how to address the others in the HGGT Quality of Life
Action Plan.

e Stantec’s Better Places for a Better Quality of Life report discusses how this evidence-based

approach supports better decision-making and planning for social value and wellbeing, including
the opportunity for scalability and use elsewhere.

e Department for Levelling Up Housing and Communities (DLUHC) Case Study: The project was
selected as one of four case studies, highlighting the Your Quality of Life consultation’s inclusive
consultation approach and use of digital and physical outreach and engagement approaches.

e PropTech Engagement Fund 2 Report The detailed report to DLUHC, summarising the quality of
life mapping and monitoring project via digital and in-person engagement across the Harlow and

Gilston Garden Town.

Page 70 10


https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/community-life-survey-202021
https://media.localdigital.gov.uk/uploads/2023/08/07205013/PropTech-Innovation-Fund-Round-2-HGGT-Final-Report.docx.pdf
https://unstats.un.org/sdgs/indicators/indicators-list/
https://hggt.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/230215_QOLF-Your-Quality-of-Life-Project-Recs-Report.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/taking-part-survey
https://hggt.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/QOLF-Community-Feedback-Report_151222-FINAL.pdf
mailto:Mail@qolf.org

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Glossary

Baseline data is data that has already been
collected from previous consultations and populates
the Tracker, beginning with the 2022 Your Quality of
Life consultation.

HGGT Stewardship Charter:
Gilston

the Harlow and

Garden Town Principles and base

requirements for stewardship.

Masterplanning: The process of developing and
structuring elements of places and how they are used
(homes and neighbourhoods, green spaces,
transport links, historic areas) to identify priority
areas for action, recommendations for future growth

with a long-term, often dynamic, approach.

Natural Language Processing (NLP): An analysis
method that sifts through qualitative responses and
categorises them, allowing for quantitative analysis
of non-numerical datasets as well as allowing for
broad sentiment analysis of large, qualitative data.

Passive data: Data that is collected and collated
from existing data sources, typically from existing
national surveys. This data can include ONS Census
data on age, gender or employment, for example.

Primary data: Data that was collected over the
Quality of Life
Consultation. This includes both qualitative and

course of the original Your

quantitative data.

Qualitative data: Data that is more descriptive in
nature, that can also take a more narrative form.
Qualitative data is typically made up of non-
numerical feedback that is usually collected in
engagement programmes via interviews, open-
ended questions and focus groups. Examples of this
include descriptive questions asking about how

respondents feel or perceive things in their local area.

Quality of life: Quality of life refers to the impact that
the environment, both natural and built, has on

11

someone’s perceptions of how happy, healthy and
satisfied they are with their life.

Quality of Life Framework: A framework developed
by the Quality of Life Foundation made up of six
themes that influence and shape people and
communities’ quality of life. For more information
visit: https://www.qolf.org/framework/

Quality of Life Indicators: Performance indicators
that are used to measure and evaluate performance
and are derived by asking Quality of Life Questions.
Baseline data for these indicators in this document
have been derived from community consultation
programmes that match data from the Your Quality
of Life consultation, which was carried out by the
Quality of Life Foundation in the Harlow and Gilston
Garden Town area in the summer of 2022.

Quality of Life Indicator Questions: These are the
questions that are used to collect data to establish
the Quality of Life indicators. The questions were
originally asked as part of the Your Quality of Life
Consultation that the Quality of Life Foundation
carried out in the summer of 2022. The Quality of Life
Questions have been reviewed and updated as part
of the development of this strategy, ensuring that
benchmarks and questions are up to date.

Quality of Life Monitoring Digital User Guide: A
digital user guide for key stakeholders to be able to
access and use quality of life monitoring information
online.

Quality of Life Monitoring Methodology: This is the
monitoring methodology recommended by Quality of
Life Foundation, for use in the Harlow and Gliston
Garden Town, and forms part of the Monitoring
Strategy.

Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy (and User
Guide): This sets out how quality of life will be
monitored across the Garden Town, including how

Page 71


https://www.stantec.com/content/dam/stantec/files/PDFAssets/UK/better-places-quality-of-life-report.pdf

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

to update the strategy and use Quality of Life
indicators (also referred to as the User Guide).

Quality of Life Monitoring Tracker: This is a table
that tracks Quality of Life scores across the Harlow
and Gilston Garden Town Area, beginning in 2022.

Quantitative data: Data that is made up of discrete
and continuous points and categories, where sets
have unique values that can be expressed and
analysed directly as
quantitative data could include the number of people

numbers. For example,
living in a home or how many times someone catches

the bus per week.

Representative data: Datasets that can portray
similar make up and characteristics of a larger
population, without having to collect the data of the

Page 72

12

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

larger group. In this project, the notion of
representative data was more specifically aimed at
ensuring that feedback from minority groups is

proportionally captured and analysed.

Social value: When we talk about social value and
the built environment we are referring to the UK
Green Building Council’s definition: “... social value is
created when buildings, places and infrastructure
support environmental, economic and social
wellbeing, and in doing so improve the quality of life

of people.”

S$106 Schedules: a legally-binding agreement or
planning obligation between the local planning
authority and a landowner as part of the granting of

planning permission.



QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Appendices (A-H: Detailed Delivery Guidance; I-K: Background)

A. Detailed Step by Step Guidance and Delivery Timescales

The below process is based on the 2022 Consultation, including lessons learned, and to provide a guide
for delivery.

As the HGGT Data Dashboard is developed, further efficiencies will be gained. For example, where
indicator questions have been pre-aligned to strategies, steps 3-5 will become semi-automated.
Similarly, Al will be used to support evaluation and reporting, for example, to summarise recurring or

common themes.

Your Quality of Life Consultation Programme, undertaken every 3-5 years

Steps

Team member

Estimated time needed

Outcome

Step 1 - Review
methodologies and
programme

QoL Team

2-4 days

(6 months prior to budget
reviews to enable
resourcing)

Maintains validity and rigour of
the Tracker and engagement
approaches; ensures
monitoring programmes are
coordinated, aligned

Step 2 — Prioritising
and aligning key
documents

Planning officers

1-2 days (per strategy)

This activity can be
undertaken any time

Further strategies, policies and
other frameworks are aligned
to QoL indicators, increasing
impact

Step 3 — Collect
Quality of Life Data

Engagement and
outreach officers

12-16 weeks (consultation
period)

Community feedback gathered
relating to Quality of Life
Monitoring questions

Into the Tracker

Data analysts

Step 4 - Sort data Data analysts 2-4 days Feedback is grouped and
into Quality of Life aligned with the indicators
indicators

Step 5 — Input Data Planning officers/ 0.5 day A direct measure of how

Quality of Life has changed
since the last measurement

Step 6 - Monitor
and evaluate
outputs and trends

Planning officers/
Data analysts /
Socio-economic
experts

10 working days,
depending on specific
strategies, capacity and
resources alongside any
additional changes
required.

Recommendations guided by
measurable outcomes that
centre health and wellbeing of
communities

Page 73




HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON

GARDEN TOWN

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

Step 7 - Review and
approval process

Planning officers /
Data analysts /

1 day - 2 months
(depends on the

Decisions based on data and
evaluation and planning

Communicate
findings and actions

and graphics

Engagement and
outreach officers

7 days (digital and in
person)

Socio-economic recommendation) context, recorded in the
experts / Senior Quality of Life Action Plan
management teams

Step 8 - Data visualisation 2-3 days Reporting on and

implementing actions resulting
from Your Quality of Life
Consultation

Step 9 — Review
Quality of Life
Monitoring

QoL Team

one week (could be shorter
if following a template)

Review and update Strategy
to take on board lessons
learned

Interim activities, undertaken more frequen

t

y

Check emerging
authority and
developer strategic
documents and
monitoring
approaches against
the Tracker

Planning officers

1-2 days (per strategy)

As documents develop,
prior to being submitted for
approvals; and as
documents are due to be
updated.

Supports key documents to be
more measurable for quality of
life outcomes.

Figure 6 - Nine Steps of Quality of Life Monitoring and Delivery Teams

Page 74

A-2




HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

Your Quality of Life Consultation Programme, undertaken every 3-5 years (timeline shown in months to indicate )

Step

Step 1 - Review methodologies and programme
Step 2 — Prioritising and aligning key documents
Step 3 — Collect Quality of Life Data

Step 4 - Sort data into Quality of Life indicators
Step 5 — Input Data Into the Tracker

Step 6 - Monitor and evaluate outputs and trends
Step 7 - Review and approval process

Step 8 - Communicate findings and actions

Step 9 — Review Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy

Approx. Time Requirement (based on 2022 consultation, with some buffer)

2-4 days + approvals / resource

1-2 days per doc (any time pre-reporting)

12-16 week consultation

2-4 days

0.5 day

10 working days

1 day - 2 months

7 days digital and in person

2-3 days

= short timescales (e, resources, skills and programme in place within 3 mo's, 12 week consult, with
short data sorting, reporting and approval process)

= longer timescales (ie 6 mo's to resource, 16 week consult, with long data sorting, reporting and
approval process)

Figure 7 - Gantt view of Steps 1-9, with flexibility for delivery. Note Step 2 can be undertaken any time prior to reporting, and is shown here as quarterly

G, obed



H G G T QUALITY

HARLOW & GILSTON oF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

Step 1 - Review methodologies and programme

A1. Timing: Reviewing data collection and engagement methodology is not onerous, but requires
coordination across several teams, and will clarify to senior officers resources required to deliver the
programme. Methodology reviews are therefore undertaken at least six months in advance of any
budget and resourcing reviews for the years that Quality of Life Consultations will be held.

A2. To maintain the validity of the Tracker, and to keep the same level of rigour in data collection and
monitoring, the Tracker itself is evaluated at the end of each Quality of Life consultation, and at least
every 5 years.

A3. This will ensure that indicator questions and comparative datasets are up to date. The 5-year
timescale is designed to reflect best practice around the use of up-to-date data, and to compliment
national benchmark reviews, where data that is older than 5 years is often difficult to reliably benchmark
against.

A4. There is also significant research emerging in the health and wellbeing sector around the
impact of environments, with increasing numbers of publicly available data sets that may replace
benchmarks currently in use. Emerging research is to be kept under review and considered in the
evaluation of the tracker.

A5. Approach: To ensure a coordinated approach, avoiding duplication, consultation fatigue, and
ensure timing doesn’t compete, review the following:

[ ] Outreach and engagement approach, how data will be collected
[ ] Draft YQoL Consultation programme, integrated with wider HGGT and partner programmes,
including other consultations, to manage timing
[] Quality of Life Data collected since the last Your Quality of Life Consultation (ie, via other
consultations, where aligned)
[] Quality of Life Tracker
o check existing questions against emerging research and update any national datasets
o check for any new and relevant national survey questions which may be added

o forindicators that are infrequently updated over an extended period, evaluate whether this
is engagement related, or if no longer relevant

o ensure data inputted into the Tracker can be referenced back to the source
[] Further documents to align

o which documents will have the most impact, either by enhancing the document itself to
reflect quality of life outcome indicators, or through monitoring once aligned

o which surveys can be reduced or replaced (where surveys or consultations asking similar
questions, align them to the QoL Questions) (see Step 2 and Aligned Documents and
Future Alignments Template)

[] Quality of Life Action Plan taking on board any recommendations agreed

Page 76 A-4



H G G T QUALITY

HARLOW & GILSTON oF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

Step 2 - Prioritising and aligning key documents

A6. Timing: Documents are aligned ahead of Consultations; and where their review against
Quality of Life indicators supports document development to make them more measurable for quality of
life.

A7. Approach: As with Step 1, this is not an onerous task, but does require coordination across
several teams to identify emerging internal and external documents - and those due to be updated -
which would benefit being aligned.

A8. Aligning monitoring metrics linked to authority and developer commitments — such as S106
agreements, Design Coding, Equality Diversity and Inclusion strategies - will improve reliability of data
and enable enforcement

A9. If there is overlap between upcoming surveys’ questions and the Your Quality of Life Consultation
then the questions for Your Quality of Life consultation are prioritised. This is to maintain robustness
and benchmarking capabilities; will save additional time and resources on a local level; and increases
ability to monitor quality of life on the local scale.

A10. Prioritising further documents to align is based primarily on anticipated impact, time sensitivity and
resource capacity. Currently aligned and further documents to align and which have been identified so
far are listed in Appendix F -Aligned Documents and Future Alignments Template,

A11. Aligning is the process of linking the aims, objectives and outcomes identified within a framework,
policy or other strategic document to the Quality of Life indicator questions within the Tracker, so that
it's possible to evidence whether or not the outcomes are being achieved, and to gauge the quality of life
impact these plans and guidance have on the community.

A12. Aligning documents to the relevant Quality of Life indicators only requires a working understanding
of the documents in question, however the process can vary widely depending on the specificity of the
document being considered. Documents with defined and measurable quality of life outcomes will align
more readily.

A13. For a document with clearly defined outcomes that point to easily measurable outputs, this process
of aligning is envisioned to be undertaken by a Planning or Senior Planning Officer can take anything
between a few hours for simple documents, to a few days for more complex, extensive, detailed, or
highly specific outcomes.

A14. Aligning documents that do not have clear, measurable outputs requires some subjective

interpretation of strategic aims into outcomes, and so should be carried out by officers that have a deep
level of knowledge of Quality of Life monitoring, the materials they are aligning and any relevant

A5 Page 77



H G G T QUALITY

HARLOW & GILSTON oF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

context. Refer to Appendix E - Aligning documents and document reviews for more detailed information.

A15. Figure 2 demonstrates how the HGGT Vision is aligned with the Quality of Life Framework
themes. A similar diagram could be drawn up for any of the documents aligned e.g. the HGGT
Stewardship Charter. Other strategies may align more strongly to just one or two themes, or evenly
across all, depending on the scope of the document or strategy in question.

Step 3 — Collect Quality of Life Data

A16. Timing: For best practice, and therefore best results, Your Quality of Life Consultations should
be undertaken every 3-5 years. Smaller scale surveys which use the same questions can also contribute
to data in the interim.

A17. Approach: Community responses to Quality of Life Indicator Questions indicate how people feel
about their local environment, neighbourhood and their own homes (both positive and negative).

A18. The Tracker is a means of consolidating and quantifying those responses through directly derived
data, creating a clearer picture of the lived experiences of community within the HGGT area. Therefore,
Quality of Life data inputted into the Tracker should come exclusively from engagement with
communities and stakeholders. See Engagement methodology

A19. To enable ease of use for developers, officers and other stakeholders, data collection can be
carried out at a variety of scales, from neighbourhoods to a wider town-scale. However, it is essential
that there is consistency in the phrasing of the questions and multiple choice answers. This will enable
for more consistent measurement and, ultimately, comparison between data sets even at differing
scales.

A20. Your Quality of Life Consultations asks the full set of Quality of Life questions and aims for
the same level of uptake, if not to engage with a larger group. This is to allow for a full and comparable
set of Quality of Life Indicators to be collected consistently, and to align with Local Plan consultations
to maximise input and uptake.

A21. Feedback from smaller scale consultations can be fed into the Tracker in between full
consultations. To allow maximum flexibility, there is no minimum requirement on the number of
questions that need to be included in smaller consultations, and so can be targeted to a particular
community, demographic or geographical area.

A22. See Engagement methodology and the full list of questions for Your Quality of Life consultations
in the Quality of Life Monitoring Tracker.

Page 78 A-6



UALITY
H G 90:!:““0” gF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

Step 4 - Sort data into Quality of Life indicators

A23. Timing: immediately following consultation; and, once automated in the Data Dashboard, to
included mid-consultation updates to indicate level of engagement and any arising themes.

A24. Approach: Quality of Life data is tied to the Garden Town’s own key themes of healthy growth,
and can be benchmarked against previous years, other locations within the Garden Town, as well as
national datasets.

A25. QoL Indicators are devised by grouping responses to a survey question. For example, we ask
people how they feel about belonging to their immediate neighbourhood, providing four options to
choose from in response, using a sliding scale from strongly negative to strongly positive.

QoL Indicator Question 2022 Consultation Data
(data is for illustrative purposes only)

“How strongly do you feel you belong | Very Fairly Not very | Not strongly
to your immediate neighbourhood?” Strongly Strongly Strongly at all
Response % 33% 40% 15% 12%

Figure 8 — Example: 73% of respondents in 2022 felt that they, very or fairly strongly, belong to their
immediate neighbourhood.

A26. By asking this same question in future consultations in the same geographical area, it's possible
to see how people’s perceptions of belonging to their immediate neighbourhood change over time, thus
providing an indicator of how people’s sense of belonging is changing.

A27. Data can also be compared against national benchmarks and indicate sentiment about existing
quality of life. In this example, sense of belonging has decreased in the Garden Town in 2026 by 4%,
but increased in the years following, and remains 8-10% above the national average.

QoL Indicator Question Data
(data is for illustrative purposes only)

“How strongly do you feel you belong 2022 2026 2030 2034
to your immediate neighbourhood?” (Baseline)

Response % 73% 69% 74% 77%
Change - - 4% +5% +4%
Change from 2022 Baseline - - 4% +1% +5%
Compared to National Benchmark +10% +9% +9% +8%

(63% NB) (60 % NB) | (65 % NB) | (69 % NB)

Figure 9 - example of how changes in quality of life can be compared

A-7 Page 79



H G G T QUALITY

HARLOW & GILSTON oF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

A28. Gathering indicators involves grouping responses to indicator questions and evaluating the
change in the outputs. A positive change (i.e. percentage increase) typically translates into an
improvement in quality of life, whereas a negative change (i.e. percentage decrease) translates into an
area that is worsening.

Ask survey questions Aggregate responses Review changes
(Matching language from . {Matching —_— [Against previous
existing survey) existing data) data points)
A .

Repeat for continous measurement

Figure 10 - Gathering indicators can be summarised via the above steps - continuous measurement can be
achieved via repetition of the steps.

Step 5 — Input Data Into the Tracker

Navigating the Tracker

A29. The Tracker has nine main elements as shown in Figure 7 — Navigating the QoL Indicators
Tracker. It has been designed for ease of use and legibility, however, to ensure data is controlled,
editing the Tracker is limited to one Officer in the QoL Monitoring Delivery Team who has the appropriate
skills and training in how to use it; with viewing and commenting rights for other officers to access the
data.

A30. The Tracker includes reference to the documents that are aligned to it, and the methodology
behind some of these. These, along with any other relevant information - for example demographic data
or the Quality of Life themes - can be viewed through the tabs in the Tracker spreadsheet.

A31. The Tracker contains the Quality of Life Questions and the associated indicators, how they are
calculated, any national benchmarks and their source, as well as the capacity for the addition of new

data via consultations.

A32. Future iterations of the Tracker will be more interactive, via the introduction of the HGGT
Consultation dashboard.

Adding new data

A33. Timing. The Tracker will be updated whenever new Quality of Life data is collected.

A34. Approach. Once Quality of Life data is collected, an officer will review the Baseline Metric
column on an editable version of the Tracker to ensure feedback has been processed correctly before

Page 80 A-8



- G G T QUALITY

HARLOW & GILSTON oF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

adding it to the new column attributed to the year that data was collected, aggregating results. For
example, the percentage of responses that were “Fairly satisfied” and “Very satisfied”.

A35. Review data quality and representation, adding the relevant notation to the data before
inputting it into the Quality of Life Monitoring Tracker. Examples of key questions to consider and note
at this stage include:

a. Does your data have any answer categories or options missing due to a methodology
limitation?

b.  Did your questions directly quote the ones in the Quality of Life Monitoring Tracker that you
are drawing comparisons from? If using translations when collecting responses in your
survey, does the phrasing remain consistent and capture the same sentiments?

c. What geographical area is the question being applied to?

Are responses demographically representative of the geographical area you are surveying?

A36. Add date of data collection, project name for future reference and notes, as relevant from above,
and to allow for the identification and applicability of data sources more easily.

Managing the Tracker over time

A37. Save the Quality of Life Monitoring Tracker to [HGGT shared location]. When saving the
Quality of Life Monitoring Tracker, be sure to use the same naming convention used in the original file,
and ensure this is Read Only; editable by the Tracker ‘owner’ only.

A38. Where there are multiple versions of the Quality of Life Monitoring Tracker, a suffix denoting
a version number should be used to help differentiate between the files. For example:

e 260512_ Quality of Life Tracker_V01
e 260512_ Quality of Life Tracker_V02

A39. Following each Consultation a final version of the Tracker with new Consultation data should
be saved as a new file, with an updated date. For example:

e 260512_Quality of Life Tracker FINAL
e 300527_Quality of Life Tracker FINAL

A-9 Page 81



28 abed

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

1. Quality of Life theme
The Quality of Life theme used to
categorise and evaluate feedback.

2. Survey question

All questions are closed, multiple choice,
to allow for an easily quantifiable and
measurable result.

3. Aligned guidance, policy or
commitment

Numbers in the table relate to the
section/paragraph number of the aligned
strategy/policy which can be measured
by the respective QoL question.

Quality of Life

Theme Survey Question

Connected

Communities
Connected

10| Communities

Connected

1 2

Haw strongly do you feel you belang to your immadiate neighbsurhood?*
Generally, how satisfied are you with the local senices and amenities in your local area? 313656 51%

SDlamadn fn s lnnad ssnn sl bamathas ba Snsnsmm tha lnnal mann®

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

4. 2022 baseline data
Percentage of positive responses from
the 2022 survey

5. National benchmarks data

Where applicable, data from national
surveys is listed in this column. When the
row is highlighted in blue, the question
and its associated indicators have been
drawn from a national survey.

6. National benchmarks source
The source for the benchmark data and
date of data publication, to allow for the
periodic evaluation of benchmark sources
as new data releases are made.

Mappad 2022 Baseline

7. Baseline metric

How the data has been processed,
including guidance for processing further
data before adding it. Where there is
national benchmark data, the national
benchmark processing methodology is
followed.

8. 2025 Indicator

Example year showing how an indicator
could be added, following the process
noted in the Baseline metric column.

9. 2025 Indicator source

Another example column to list the source of the
data that forms the indicator for that year/period,
illustrating various consultations/surveys that could
be used to gather quality of life data

Guidance, Policy et National Benchmarks 2025 Indicator
or Commitment
Stewardship Cuality of Lifs Baseline Metric
HGGT Charter uM'; Data Average Source Indicator Source
(TEST) il

73% CErh bk L:;J&umr (2021 rotal percentage of “Very strongly” and “Fairly strongly” responses 5% SRy of "'2';2'3;"5”"3"“

Tolal percentage of “Satisfied” and “Very Satisfied” responses 50% Quality of L;;;Dnsu“a“a“

2128 E8 amar " Al rirrren Bt i Secrarmirs ¥ el Mderirarshs i ® rro i rcairoes | aner Quality of Life Consultation

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Figure 11 — Navigating the QoL Indicators Tracker



UALITY
H G rgovIuSTON gF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

Step 6 - Monitor and evaluate outputs and trends

A40. Monitoring takes place through the columns on the right hand side of the main sheet. The Tracker
has been set up to change colour based on whether the inputted data is higher (green), lower (red) or
equal (amber) to data inputted from the last consultation.

A41. The Red, Amber and Green system will help users understand how performance on a specific
indicator has gone either up or down. These are high-level indicators that will, over time, show if there
are any trends for specific questions that are being asked to collect the feedback.

2025 Indicator 2029 Indicator 2034 Indicator

Indicator Source Indicator Source Indicator Source

- - - - - - -

Quality of Life Consultation Quality of life Consultation Quality of Life Consultation

'?k o, o, 0,
17 75% 2025 78% 2029 79% 2034
. Quality of Life Consultation Quality of life Consultation Quality of Life Consultation
2 o, o, o,
in your local area? 50% 0025 54% 2029 58% 2034
. Quality of Life Consultation Quality of life Consultation . Quality of Life Consultation
o, 0, . o,
S 2025 < 2029 = 2034

Figure 12 - Example Quality Monitoring Tracker showing an increase across indicators over three
hypothetical evaluations

A42. In the above illustrative example, this set of indicators, corresponding to the Community
theme and stewardship placemaking commitments have mixed performance in the 2025 Quality of Life
survey, but then been on an upward trend in 2029.

A43. Reviewing the nationally benchmarked indicators in combination with qualitative community
feedback enables identification of local priorities and provides an evidence base for community-led
decision making. It indicates issues arising in the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town area, enabling more
localised decisions, alongside strategic performance oversight.

A44. This can help inform a wide range of guidance, policy and strategies, as well as on the ground
delivery of projects. These include (but are not limited to): stewardship, social value, design proposals,
interlinked quality monitoring approaches, future development briefs, resource allocation, planning
application determinations, and maintenance decisions. For example, where performing well, to
maintain approaches, or conversely, if trending downwards, what the causes may be and how to rectify
that.

A45. These findings, though indicative in nature, can be shared externally, through broad
summaries or general notes that point to trends and identify actions, such as:

A-11 Page 83



UALITY
H G rgovIuSTON gF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

e Headline indicators of performance across themes e.g. “We’ve improved our performance
on measures for Health and Nature in the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town area by 25%
since 2022”

e Headline directives around areas of focus, where performance has been trending
downwards e.g. “Feedback around Wonder and Community monitored from 2022-25
suggests that there is a downward trend in community-led approaches to placemaking in
some areas of the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town, with young people indicating the
lowest involvement. Further research and consultation is needed around these themes and
why they are underperforming; and engagement with young people prioritised.”

A46. As stated earlier, the Tracker is an indicative tool. Its indicators are made up of subjective opinions
and feedback, influenced by a wide array of factors, not all of which will be within the authority’s control.
It therefore does not provide accuracy across specific topics or sentiments around individual projects or
developments; however, as the Tracker accumulates more data and as more specific, outcomes-based
indicators linked to enforceable commitments form part of the monitoring, this will increase its accuracy
and ability to be used as evidence.

A47. When developing plans and policy directives, the Quality of Life Monitoring Tracker is
therefore to be used as a strategic tool with indicators that can guide towards action, but needs to be
considered within the context of wider policy and planning contexts.

A48. Once primary areas of focus are identified, the QoL Monitoring Team will dive deeper into existing
data and feedback via reports, including with HGGT Data Dashboard Team, and identify any follow up
recommendations or actions in the Quality of Life Action Plan.

Step 7 - Review and approval process

A49. Once trends and recommended actions are identified and reported on, the Action Plan will be
updated and approved by Senior Officers, to enable public reporting. For examples of the types of
actions or recommendations which will be reported on, refer to Figure 3 — How Quality of Life Monitoring
Works, with example actions and/or impacts and Figure 4 - key benefits and potential uses to various
stakeholder groups.

Step 8 - Communicate findings and actions

A50. Communicating findings, recommendations and any commitments made by the HGGT team
is an essential part of this strategy. Sharing findings will not only close the engagement loop, giving
respondents and residents an opportunity to reflect on their feedback, it will also provide HGGT
residents and stakeholders the opportunity to see how their feedback is contributing to decision- making,
supporting increased participation in future consultations.

Page 84 A-12



UALITY
H G rgovIuSTON gF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

A51. To make the data more accessible, data and analysis will be translated into clear data graphics
which will be shared via the HGGT Data Dashboard. See Figure 3 — How Quality of Life Monitoring
Works, with example actions and/or impacts.

A52. This will enable officers to analyse and communicate complexissues more easily both internally

and externally, widening audience reach, and increasing transparency for more effective communication
and decision-making.

Step 9 — Review Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy
A53. Following consultation, the Monitoring Strategy itself is reviewed to take on board any lessons
learned, while they are still fresh. This step involves the full team to feedback any significant challenges,

as well as elements that worked well.

A54. This, combined with the methodology reviews ahead of consultations, will ensure relevance and
best fit of content and overall approach for future consultations.

A-13 Page 85



9g obed

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

B. Quality of Life themes and sub-themes

The latest version of the Quality of Life themes and subthemes, which set out how these relate to various quality of life indicators, can be found online at

www.qolf.org/framework

Influence and contribution

When we feel a sense of control in our lives, we are better equipped to overcome any challenges
we might encounter. Having the ability to improve our area and address local problems can give us
a sense of stability and security. Our neighbourhoods should provide us all with the opportunity to
get involved in how decisions are made and set down roots in the long term.

At its most simple, a sense of influence and the ability to contribute to decisions affecting our environment can
give us the freedom to hang a picture on a wall in our home. But in a broader sense, it can also mean having the
opportunity to contribute our own knowledge or to have a say in how our neighbourhoods are run or planned. In
our homes, this can be through the provision of living spaces we can make our own and at a neighbourhood
scale this can be regular and active engagement in local decision-making or hands-on, long- term, community
stewardship.

Safety

Feeling safe inside our homes and within our neighbourhoods by day and night is fundamental to individual and
collective wellbeing. We should be able to live in our homes and neighbourhoods free from fear and free from
gender, ability, sexuality, class and identity-based harassment and violence. Our neighbourhoods should provide
safe environments for everyone, inside and outside our homes.

Affordability and Permanence

Affordability and permanence refers to the cost of living in a neighbourhood and the sense of rootedness we
have to where we live, whether we are a homeowner or tenant. This means considering how much rent, bills
and mortgages cost, and also the sense of stability that results from knowing we can pay these costs and have
a future where we live. Permanency can also be defined by our ability to adapt our homes to changing needs.
Adaption can actively support us to live either independently or interdependently, where principles of inclusive
design enable us to gain greater control and feel less pressured to move out of established communities.

B-1



https://media.localdigital.gov.uk/uploads/2023/11/28105757/PropTech-Innovation-Fund-Combined-case-studies.pdf

/8 abed

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Housing standards

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

Our health is crucial to our quality of life. Overcrowding, damp and mould within homes
are all detrimental to our health and wellbeing and can affect some communities more
than others. The difference in life expectancy between the most and least affluent areas
can be almost 20 years, even for adjacent neighbourhoods. Our housing and local
environments should equitably support communities to pursue healthy lifestyles, no
matter where we live.

Given that we spend the majority of our lives inside our homes, it is essential that they have a positive impact on
our health and wellbeing. This can be achieved through the amount of space, light and ventilation inside a home
and the level of comfort it can provide to residents of all ages all year round. Also important is the material
quality of the interior spaces and our ability to adapt these to our changing needs as we age.

Air, noise and light

The environmental quality of our neighbourhoods is important as proximity to areas of poorer air, noise and light
quality are associated with greater deprivation. Our neighbourhoods should provide environments that are
clean and without all kinds of pollution. This includes clean air, quiet neighbourhoods and how much artificial
light is present at night.

Healthy food choices

Access to affordable, healthy food options locally is a big part of happy and healthy neighbourhoods. This means
not only the availability of fresh and healthy produce, whether that is through local shops or grocery stores, but
also the ability for communities to grow their own food if they want to. Conversely, the proliferation of fast food
outlets serving only unhealthy food can exacerbate unhealthy lifestyles, particularly among young people.

Many studies have shown that contact with nature is good for our mood and aids our
recovery when we are ill, whether through interaction with our window boxes, local parks
or countryside. Everyone from all parts of society should have better access to nature
within their area, taking an active part in exploring and looking after it. We need homes
in which to live, but their creation and care inevitably impact the natural environment, so

B-2



g9g obed

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Green and blue spaces

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

in return we must respect the environment during construction of our homes and
neighbourhoods, particularly given the dual threats of climate change and biodiversity
loss. The good news is that, by and large, a neighbourhood that is healthier for people
will be healthier for the planet, too.

Green and blue spaces are natural and semi-natural areas, which includes local pocket parks, wild groves and
meadows as well as ponds, canals, lakes and coastlines. Our neighbourhoods should provide everyone with
access to a variety of different green and blues spaces, allowing us to feel more connected to nature in our
everyday lives and leaving space for wildlife, too. Green and blue spaces also provide opportunities for social
contacts and help to improve community cohesion.

Biodiversity

Biodiversity refers to the quality of the green and blue spaces around our homes and neighbourhoods, and the
variety of wildlife they encourage. Climate change is a primary driver of biodiversity loss, so we must recognise
the importance of providing environments where wildlife can thrive alongside residents and communities.

Climate resilience and adaptation

Because of climate change, our homes and neighbourhoods are increasingly vulnerable to extreme weather
events such as flooding or heatwaves. The places where we live, therefore, must be designed and delivered to
be climate resilient and to minimise their impact on the natural environment in the long term. To mitigate climate
change, our homes and neighbourhoods should provide us with the opportunity to live more sustainable and
environmentally friendly lifestyles with ease.

Happiness, fun and wonder play an important role in our quality of life. The physical
expression of this is seen in the design of our homes and neighbourhoods — not simply
the way they function, but also the way they look and how they feel. In addition, having
the ability to be creative and taking part in cultural expression gives us all an opportunity
to feel a sense of identity and pride in our community and to open ourselves to a diverse
range of cultures in turn. Importantly, play is also crucial to our health and wellbeing at

B-3



68 abed

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Distinctive design

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

any age, and having opportunities to play and pursue leisure and sporting activities is key
to our physical and mental health.

Our homes and neighbourhoods should be designed with care and attention to not only be useful and long lasting
but also to inspire and delight. This means buildings that are beautiful and streets and parks that are human-
scaled, visually varied and loved by residents for their character and design. Neighbourhoods can offen have
historical or heritage sites that are culturally significant, which may include landmarks, museums and buildings
that contribute to the story about the community's past and present.

Culture

In a neighbourhood context, culture can refer to cultural Institutions, such as concert halls and libraries, but it
can show itself in music and street art, and in the shared values, beliefs, practices, traditions and social
behaviours that characterise the community. Cultural events and celebrations, and local culinary traditions, all
provide opportunities for residents to come together, share their cultural heritage, and show pride in their
community.

Play and recreation

We all need places to unwind and play and to connect with our friends and neighbours. Play and recreation refers
to the opportunities for residents of all ages to be able to connect with themselves and with one another, whether
that is using a swing or slide, playing a sport, going to a cinema, chatting over a drink or taking a walk in the
countryside. Conserving these opportunities is essential to both physical and mental health and wellbeing.

Getting around

Having access to a car can contribute to people’s quality of life, but when everyone owns
a car roads become noisy and unsafe and parked cars often clog our streets and
pavements. There are significant health and wellbeing benefits to walking, wheeling and
cycling, and public transport is crucial in maintaining equitable and resilient
neighbourhoods. It is essential that we can choose how to get around, based on needs,
accessibility and affordability. This means having the infrastructure to get around using

B-4




06 obed

UALITY
H G EO:!-G,LSTON gF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

different options — by walking, cycling, using public transport or car shares, for example
— and having equitable access to a range of transport options.

Walking, cycling and wheeling A healthy neighbourhood is one that we can safely navigate by walking, cycling or wheeling (which includes
activities such as rollerblading, skateboarding and using a wheelchair or mobility scooter). This relates to the
infrastructure provided, the design of streets and the extent to which the space encourages and facilitates
residents’ movement, allowing for connectivity between key spaces such as schools, local amenities and
public transport. Our neighbourhoods should provide attractive, usable and safe walking, wheeling and
cycling routes for all.

Public transport Access to affordable, reliable and inclusive public transport is crucial in ensuring freedom of movement for
all, particularly to those who don’t have access to their own vehicle. Good public transport can provide easy
access to education, services and employment, and be better for the planet. We should have access to
affordable and reliable public transport in our neighbourhoods, allowing us to get around with ease, whether
that is to travel to work, travel with children or to meet friends or family.

Cars For many people, cars have become an integral part of everyday life. However, reducing our reliance on them
is critical to lower carbon emissions and air pollution. Over-reliance on cars also affects streets and
neighbourhoods, taking up space that could be used for play or nature. Our neighbourhoods should enable us
to use our cars less often, providing attractive, affordable and safe alternatives for getting around.

Belonging to a community is crucial to our personal, social and psychological wellbeing.
Our local communities can provide a shared sense of identity, connection and purpose,
and they can encourage the celebration of diversity, collective action and the sharing of
resources across differing cultures and languages. Together, we can get to know our
neighbours, chat to shopkeepers or just share a nod with fellow dog walkers. To facilitate
this, local spaces need to enable a variety of social connections to emerge, while
providing local job opportunities and a range of social services.

B-5




T6 abed

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

Belonging

Belonging refers to how connected we feel to our local communities and is a key way of combating loneliness,
with its consequent health and wellbeing risks. A sense of belonging could come in the form of joining community
events or a local social media group, or it could simply be about knowing our neighbours and saying hello.
Neighbourhoods should provide opportunities for people to connect with each other to allow a sense of belonging
to emerge.

Local businesses and jobs

Local businesses and jobs are the life-blood of neighbourhoods, providing activity and vitality. As well as a means
for living and working, they create a range of economic opportunities, whether through spending, investment or
generating income. Our neighbourhoods should provide a mixture of uses that are well- integrated, thoughtfully
designed and contribute to the local economy.

Services

Local services refers to spaces, facilities and social infrastructure such as community centres, schools and
educational facilities, town halls, care services and digital services. Access to these services and community
spaces are key in helping to combat social isolation, in providing essential moments of connection, and in helping
us to grow. Our neighbourhoods should therefore provide us with a variety of services that allow us to connect
with others and be cared for throughout our lives.

B-6




HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

C. Quality of Life Monitoring Tracker

QUALITY

OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

The Quality of Life Tracker, which contains the Quality of Life Indicator Questions and consolidated non-personalised data, can be viewed by officers from all

partnering authorities of the Garden Town, however the Tracker is only editable by relevant members of the QoL Monitoring Team. [insert link to live location].

For any questions about the Tracker, please contact a member of the HGGT QoL Monitoring Team.

- o prarrec sarns Aemrwm e pra s aemees Me Srmers i sk peReecn Sares [aw ne s swag

Mapped Guid. . Policy or C:
tl
Harlow
Quality of Life 2 S
F e S e Stamandehp et HGGT g's"“’fl
HGGT Charter Together Vision """"'l
(TEST) (DRAFT)  (Now2018) ~°F°r™'¢
bt M o v (2024~
(el SN 1. <rcnaly do you Feel you belong to yeur immediate neighbourhoad T - 14
Communities
Rttt <rr<lly, how satisfied are you with the local servises and amenities in your local area? 313656 3124,25 pozpas HLHPS
Communities HPS
Rt Pl iy local area pull together to imprave the local area” 3136.58 23,27.3.2,38
Communities o
Connected “lhave access to everuthing | need inmy day to dawlife within a 10 minute walk or wheel from P3.2.P3E.
S £ - 13.24.2.8.3.4, ANz
Communities  RUIGLE P63
ikttt 1 F=c =coes to plenty of oppontunities to le am new skills s asily and loclly” 58 12 =, IF4
Communities P227.
— P3.2, P36,
c i “There are plenty of goad quality local jobs in my area” 5558 12 P212,P213, IF1
b P217.P22.1
U8 LE U Ta what entent da you agree o disagres that yau persanally caninfluence decisians 116,23, 41, 4.3 27.38 P12 HELHPS
control alfecting your local area? 4.8
PR A this present mament, do you see yourself living in yaur area long term? - 15,16,33 P3.4,PaE
W | ared o, [know wha | can spesk to sbout the places | care sbout inmy local area” 1116233436 27,38 HPS
control 4.1,4.3-4.8,5.6
Fe 11-16.23,3.%+
“lhave asay in how local community projects are run” 3.6,4.1,4.3-4.8, 27,38 HP1
control 55
LI S “Thinking of yaur persanal safety, haw safe ar unsafe wauld you feel walking on your awn B S S PELEEE
control during the dayin a quiet street close to your hame?" E A PC3
Ll .. < < slking around my area after dark” = 2.4 P17.4 RELEC:
control PC3
LIRS How affordable s the amount you pay inrent or martgage? - 3.3 Pas
L How affordable are yaur bills? 57 18,33 Pa.5, P15.3 THID
: . 11,12,1.3,3.1
: 7 1.2,13.3.1,
2| Haw is your health in general? 6.7 37.94.36.98 P10.7 PCT
fire your day-to-day activities limited because of 2 health problem or a disability that has ™
alth equ - - PCT
24 2 lasted, or expected ot last, atleast 12 months?
28 | - Owerall, how satisfied are you with your life now adays? BT 11.12.14
26 ealth 170 Ouerall, to what extent do you feel the things you da in your lite are worthwhile? 67 11,1214
« » .. | Quality of Life Tracker | Quality of Life Themes Demographics (2022) Thriving Together

2022 Baseline
Data

Harlow
Residents
Survey
(Sept

2023

Quality of Life
Mapping

o4 o
st
or 2

S0

2004

265
5T
33

15

B

s
35
334

Bt

6.3
Tl

HGGT Stewérdship .

National Benchmarks

Diats fuerage Source
- -
= EommuniuLte Survey (7%
o7 Cammunity L|2F§]Suwey (202t

Perceptions of persanal safety

Baseline Metric

Totalpsncantaga of e strongls "and' Faikomrongl sesponnas
Foraloencentags of Savsfiag and e Sawifiad responses
Totalporsantage of "agras " and Sronglagres “responses
Totalparconiaoa of "amas " and Srongly agras " rasponses
Fotalnarantama of “agras " and Hrongly 2oree "rasponses
Totaloorcantags of "agras "and Stronglagres “responses

Totatperosnsags of "Tandtto agres “and Dafinteis agan "wsponses
o Vi

Tovalparssatags of ‘agres "and songl.agres "reagnonses

Fovalponseniaps of agree " and’ Sirongls agree “responses

It and exp o}
Great Britain £727

82w 2021 Census
18 2021 Census

]
e e
TIT

) 4

Figure 13 - screenshot of part of the Tracker as of July 2024

o Waifs-sadin s ongy sade “nasponsas

Totalourcantaps of “agras s “Sronglagnes "rasponses

o ing & or igheron the woala
o ing & or higheron the soale
of "t s G

Totaloenrantage of Vi, 2 ik e i 2 bt “responses
AR rasana e o BT
Auesraizs nagoonmne vutof B




cp obed

UALITY
H G gow-!:.mou gF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

D. Quality of Life Indicator Questions

Below is a table containing all the questions that are used to identify indicators for the 2022 Quiality of Life Monitoring Strategy and benchmarking sources.

Quality of Life
Theme

Question

Benchmark source

How strongly do you feel you belong to your immediate neighbourhood?

Generally, how satisfied are you with the local services and amenities in your local area?

Community Life Survey

“People in my local area pull together to improve the local area”

“l have access to everything | need in my day to day life within a 10 minute walk or wheel from my home”

“I have access to plenty of opportunities to learn new skills easily and locally”

“There are plenty of good quality local jobs in my area”

n/a

To what extent do you agree or disagree that you personally can influence decisions affecting your local
area?

Community Life Survey

At this present moment, do you see yourself living in your area long term?

“If | wanted to, | know who | can speak to about the places | care about in my local area” n/a

“I have a say in how local community projects are run”

“Thinking of your personal safety, how safe or unsafe would you feel walking on your own during the Opinions and Lifestyle
day in a quiet street close to your home?” survey

D-1




76 obed

— G G T QUALITY

HARLOW & GILSTON OF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

Quality of Life | Question

Theme

Getting
around

“I feel safe walking around my area after dark”

Benchmark source

Social Capital in the UK

How affordable is the amount you pay in rent or mortgage?

How affordable are your bills?

n/a

How is your health in general?

Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a health problem or a disability that has lasted, or
expected to last, at least 12 months?

2021 Census

Overall, how satisfied are you with your life nowadays?

Overall, to what extent do you feel the things you do in your life are worthwhile?

Overall, how happy did you feel yesterday?

Overall, how anxious did you feel yesterday?

Annual Population Survey
(2022)

Are you satisfied with the public transport connections to your area?

Do you think you generally do more, less or about the same amount of cycling now as you did this time
last year?

“Cars dominate the streets in my area”

n/a

How satisfied are you with the provision of walking options in your area?

D-2




G6 obed

UALITY
H G QOVI.LSTON gF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

Quality of Life
Theme

Question

How satisfied are you with the provision of local buses in your area?

Benchmark source

How satisfied are you with the provision of cycling options in your area?

National Travel Survey
(2021)

“My local green spaces are accessible and inclusive in their design” (For example, prams, wheeled and
seated mobility devices can get in and around these green spaces)

Have you taken part in any nature or wildlife projects near where you live? (Planting wildflowers in a
park or street, making wildlife habitats)

n/a

Thinking of the green and natural spaces close to where you live, have they improved or reduced in the
last 5 years, or have they not changed? The quality has...

“My local green and natural spaces are within easy walking distance”

“My local green and natural spaces are good places for mental health and wellbeing”

“My local green and natural spaces are a high enough standard to want to spend time in”

The People and Nature
Survey (2022)

Do you engage with the local arts and culture? (For example, local sculptures, music and any markets)

“My local area offers people of all ages opportunities to enjoy themselves”

“I can easily visit a range of arts, culture and leisure amenities (places to enjoy a day or a night out) from
my home”

How satisfied are you with your local arts and culture?

“There are lots of different things to do without spending too much money in my neighbourhood”

n/a

D-3




s HGGT UALITY
S T §f~ i
O

o

Quality of Life | Question
Theme

“I feel a sense of pride and care for the places in my neighbourhood”

Benchmark source

“There are interesting new projects happening near where | live for a variety of ages and interests” (i.e.
pop-up cafes or shops, rain gardens, community allotments)

D-4




QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

E. Using QoL Indicators as a Document Alignment and Checking Tool

Identifying outcomes, outputs and indicators

Outcomes often describe a broad change which are a result of a collective set of circumstances,
rather than one specific change. For example, the improvement in biodiversity in a region, or the
reduction of wider social discord.

Outputs are quantifiable changes that relate to those outcomes, but can be measured directly via
quantitative or qualitative data. For example, the number of new sign ups to a local community website
per month (output) indicates increased community involvement in their local area (outcome); or the
number of trips taken via bicycle in a week (output) indicates both health and community activation
outcomes.

Outcomes and outputs are used to define, understand and measure impact, and in this instance, to
measure the social impact of projects, strategies and frameworks.

Outcome Output

Number of new attendees at community
engagement events

Increased participation in decision making
processes

Improvement of biodiversity Number of new species in a community park

Reduction of personal impact on the Number of trips taken via a personal vehicle

environment

Figure 14 - Examples of how outcomes can translate into outputs that can be easily measured.

By reviewing a framework or a strategy, understanding its intended outcome, you can identify
measurable outputs, which can be linked to Quality of Life Indicator questions. For example:

e Assets are properly safeguarded
in the public interest, in

decision making
and governance

they have a say
or influence their

Principle Intended Quantifiable Quality of Life
outcome(s) output indicator
question
4.4 A robust governance structure will Improved Number of ‘I have a say in
ensure it achieves the following community residents who how local
objectives: involvement in report feeling community

projects are run”

perpetuity processes local community
e Community development and decision process
asset development are
progressed together to optimise
E-1

Page 97




H G G T QUALITY

HARLOW & GILSTON oF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

value

e Services delivery is effective and
of a high quality

e Resilience is integrated to be
able to deal with changing
circumstances

e The community is empowered
and accountability is maintained

Figure 15 - Example of how indicators are aligned to outcomes sought in the HGGT Stewardship Charter.

Proxies

When outcomes aren’t easily or directly measurable, proxy measures can indicate a change in the right
direction. The use of proxies to measure outputs, and thus progress against outcomes, should only be
done when direct measurement is particularly challenging or unreliable. Often, multiple proxies are used
to denote progress against an outcome.

Outcome Potential proxies

Improved environmental quality e Air quality
e Light pollution
¢ Noise pollution

Improvement of biodiversity e Number of new species
¢ Density of species per square kilometre

Improved community health e Number of visits to GP
¢ Number of activities per week

Figure 16 - Examples of how proxies can be used to understand progress against certain outcomes.

Page 98 E-2



UALITY
H G rgovIuSTON gF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

F. Case Study — HGGT Stewardship Charter Recommendations

The thematic connections between the HGGT Stewardship Charter (2024) and the Monitoring Strategy
don't all translate directly, so a more complicated aligning process has been applied. A summary of this
process is provided in the Tracker.

Should the Stewardship Charter be updated in future, suggestions to make it more measurable to track
stewardship performance are:

Added granularity in the formatting

Adding paragraph numbers to clauses would allow aims of the Charter to be aligned more easily. For
example, where principles link to several indicators or touch on several themes and areas, being more
specific about which paragraph these relate to will make aligning strategies, and identifying impacts,
easier.

Include more specific, actionable and quantifiable outputs for desired outcomes

For example, adding more detail to the Principles’ Checklist regarding the intended outcomes of a
principle, would help remove subjectivity and make the monitoring aims clear. This can be achieved by
using language that suggests an increase or a decrease in a particular outcome, for example, to
“Improve community engagement and participation in decision making”. This same principle can also
be applied more widely throughout the document.

CHECKLIST
What By When Outcome
Engagement Strategy Early engagement, pre- Improve community engagement

application or Strategic Master | and participation in decision making
Planning stage

Delivery Programme Early engagement, pre- Improve community engagement
application or Strategic Master | and participation in decision making
Planning stage

Draft Ecological and Outline planning application Improve community engagement
Biodiversity Net Gain stage and participation in decision making
Strategy

Improve biodiversity in the Garden
Town Area

Figure 17 - Example of how the checklist could be updated to provide aims that allow parts of the principle,
and relevant documents, to be mapped more easily.

F-1 Page 99



HGGT QUALITY

HARLOW & GILSTON oF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

Define community participation outcomes for each principle

The Stewardship Charter focuses on the ways in which community agency and participation should
inform the process of managing and delivering community assets. As above, defining measurable
outcomes relating to community participation for each Principle will provide a clearer understanding
of whether this principle aim is contributing to the overarching improvements to quality of life via the
Stewardship Charter.

Use the Gilston Area Principles and Objectives (2022) as a medium to update the Charter

The HGGT Stewardship Charter was informed by the Gilston Area Stewardship Principles and
Objectives (P&Os). These P&Os are more holistic and have clear directive outcomes linked to each of
the quality of life themes, therefore providing a much closer fit across the Quality of Life Indicators.
Provided that the outcomes identified in the P&Os are still sought by the HGGT, using the outcomes
identified in them will make the Charter more directly measurable for quality of life.

Page 100 F-2



TOT abed

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

G. Aligned Documents and Future Alignments Template

Aligned Documents

The following initiatives have been aligned to the Quality of Life Monitoring Tracker so far, and further initiatives will be aligned over time, as set out in

Appendix A - Detailed Step by Step Guidance and Delivery Timescales

Aligned strategies are based primarily on anticipated impact, time sensitivity and resource capacity. The following documents which have been aligned have

been chosen for anticipated impact, and to illustrate versatility of the Strategy.

In addition to impact considerations, both the HGGT Stewardship Charter and EHDC Thriving Together Strategy were in development and so there was
additional opportunity for these to be updated to be more measurable, before they are finalised.

A similar approach is recommended for future alignments, both by building in time for this in advance, and by using the Tracker as a checking tool for strategies

and documents as they are drafted.

There is no limit for aligning further documents later — this can be done as capacity allows.

Guidance, Policy or Commitment Document

Author(s)

Rationale

The HGGT Stewardship Charter, supporting
quality monitoring of stewardship;

Harlow and
Gilston Garden
Town

The Stewardship Charter’'s key themes of healthy growth sit across each of the
Quality of Life themes, and the HGGT Vision, so monitoring stewardship will provide
an indication of performance of the Garden Town. Establishing HGGT Stewardship
Charter Quality of Life indicators is therefore a way to monitor both stewardship
outcomes; and indicate performance of the Garden Town.

G-1



https://eprints.leedsbeckett.ac.uk/id/eprint/8016/

20T abed

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

Guidance, Policy or Commitment Document

Author(s)

Rationale

East Herts District Council’s Thriving Together

Strategy, supporting quality monitoring of health and
wellbeing

East Herts
District Council

By linking quality of life indicators to health and wellbeing initiatives, this
demonstrates the versatility of Quality of Life Monitoring to be useful beyond the
Garden Town, with opportunities to scale across all partnering authorities. A similar
principle could be applied to Developer Strategies.

HGGT Garden Town Spatial Vision (2018): setting
out the vision for the Garden Town and the Principles

that will inform its growth and management

Harlow and
Gilston Garden
Town

As with the Charter, due to its thematic similarities with the Quality of Life themes; being
of an appropriate scale/level of precision in its aims and objectives; and, like the
Stewardship Charter, will provide indications of overall performance of development.

Harlow District Council Corporate Plan: Setting

out the mission for Harlow over the next four years

Harlow District
Council

This plan was aligned due to its similarity in methodology (the collation of different
metrics from a variety of sources both primary and secondary to understand
progress against goals over a few years); scale as a means to measure progress
across different aims, objectives and themes; and because it represents the largest
proportion of residents within the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town. The same is
recommended for all partnering authorities’ Corporate Plans.

Harlow Residents Survey: A Harlow-wide survey to

understand residents’ perceptions of the local area,

the local council and their communication

preferences.

Harlow District
Council

Although this did not provide a large number of connections, this particular
document was aligned as it demonstrates that other surveys could also be used to
align and inform the Quality of Life Tracker, and vice versa; and because Harlow
represents the largest population in the Garden Town.

G-2



https://hggt.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/230215_QOLF-Your-Quality-of-Life-Project-Recs-Report.pdf?J=1
https://hggt.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/230215_QOLF-Your-Quality-of-Life-Project-Recs-Report.pdf?J=1
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/about-the-council/freedom-of-information-and-council-data/open-data-statistics-about-hertfordshire/what-our-priorities-are-and-how-were-doing/corporate-plan-2022-25.aspx
https://moderngov.harlow.gov.uk/documents/s25579/Appendix%20A%20-%20CP%20Delivery%20Plan.pdf
https://www.qolf.org/framework/

€0T abed

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

QoL -Documents to Align

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

The following documents have been identified by the HGGT to align over time, and will be reviewed and prioritised periodically as part of the Evaluation

process. As documents are aligned, they will be moved to the above list, so appearing in strategy updates over time.

Documents to align to Framework

Prioritisation Check

Guidance, Policy or Commitment Document
(Links to be added over time)

Author(s)

Rationale
To be completed during reviews. See examples above,
taking impact, timing, and resource capacity into account.

Document
Review Date

East Herts Corporate Plan 2024-2027

East Herts District Council

Epping Forest Corporate Plan 2023-2027

Epping Forest District
Council

Hertfordshire Corporate Plan 2022-2025

Hertfordshire District
Council

Essex Corporate Plan 2021-2025

Essex District Council

Harlow Corporate Plan 2024-2028

Harlow District Council

HGGT Sustainability Checklist

Harlow and Gilston
Garden Town

To increase build quality and demonstrate quality of build
impacts for quality of life.

Hertfordshire Connected Lives Model

Hertfordshire County
Council

G-3



https://hggt.co.uk/core-documents/
https://democracy.eastherts.gov.uk/documents/s64766/Enc.%203%20for%20Draft%20-%20Thriving%20Together%202024%20-%202027%20-%20a%20new%20health%20and%20wellbeing%20plan%20for%20East%20Herts.pdf#%3A~%3Atext%3DThe%20Corporate%20Plan%20is%20a%2C%2C%20economic%2C%20environmental%20and%20community
https://hggt.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/230215_QOLF-Your-Quality-of-Life-Project-Recs-Report.pdf
https://www.essex.gov.uk/about-council/plans-and-strategies/our-vision-essex
https://www.harlow.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Residents%20survey%20report%202023.pdf
https://hggt.co.uk/portfolio/sustainability-guidance-checklist/
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/media-library/documents/adult-social-services/news-and-campaigns/connecting-lives/connectedlives-practice-principles.pdf

H G G T QUALITY

v0T abed

HARLOW & GILSTON OF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION
Documents to align to Framework Prioritisation Check
Guidance, Policy or Commitment Document | Author(s) Rationale Document
(Links to be added over time) To be completed during reviews. See examples above, Review Date

taking impact, timing, and resource capacity into account.

HGGT Strategic Economic Framework Harlow and Gilston
Garden Town

Harlow Economic Development Strateqy Harlow District Council

East of Harlow Masterplanning Guidance SPD | Harlow District Council
Epping Forest District

Council
Latton Priory Strategic Masterplan Epping Forest District
Framework Council
Latton Priory Design Code Epping Forest District
Council

Water Lane Strategic Masterplan Framework Epping Forest District

(in development) Council
EFDC Health and Wellbeing Strategy Epping Forest District
Council

DEVELOPER CONSULTANT DOCUMENTS

Gilston Area Stewardship and Governance Places for People and = to make the dashboard / QoL Monitoring more
Strategy Taylor Wimpey relatable/valuable to Developers, helping secure funding,



https://hggt.co.uk/portfolio/strategic-economic-framework/
https://www.harlow.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Economic%20development%20strategy%202023%20to%202028.pdf
https://hggt.co.uk/portfolio/east-of-harlow-spd/
https://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/Latton%20Priory%20SMF%20Final%20Version.pdf
https://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/Latton%20Priory%20SMF%20Final%20Version.pdf
https://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/EFDC-LP-DESIGN-CODE-JULY24.pdf
https://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/10/Epping-Forest-Health-Wellbeing-Strategy-2022-26.pdf
https://www.gilstonparkestate.com/media/4m1bvi2k/gilston_stewardship_governance_strategy.pdf
https://www.gilstonparkestate.com/media/4m1bvi2k/gilston_stewardship_governance_strategy.pdf

GOT abed

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

Documents to align to Framework

Prioritisation Check

Guidance, Policy or Commitment Document
(Links to be added over time)

Author(s)

Rationale
To be completed during reviews. See examples above,
taking impact, timing, and resource capacity into account.

Document
Review Date

increase benefit and use

= example for Officers, Community, Members, Developers to
see how QoL monitoring also helps with developer
accountability (including for Developer benefit)

= enables monitoring of developer approaches to
stewardship

= value outweighs costs

Places for People Tenant Satisfaction
Measures Survey

Places for People

Aligning PfP and QoL Monitoring, benefitting both PfP and
the HGGT by streamlining.

Village 7 Masterplan & design code (in
development)

Taylor Wimpey, Stantec,
Alan Baxter

development)

Gilston Strategic Landscape Masterplan JTP Architects
SLMP & design code (in development)
Village 1 Masterplan & design code (in JTP Architects

EXTERNAL FRAMEWORKS GUIDING QUALITY OF LIFE OUTCOMES

United Nation’s Sustainable Development
Goals (SDGs)

United Nations

G-5



https://hggt.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/Stewardship-Charter-FINAL.pdf
https://hggt.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/Stewardship-Charter-FINAL.pdf
https://www.qolf.org/what-we-do/inclusive-engagement-toolkit/
https://www.qolf.org/what-we-do/inclusive-engagement-toolkit/

90T abed

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

Documents to align to Framework

Prioritisation Check

Guidance, Policy or Commitment Document
(Links to be added over time)

Author(s)

Rationale
To be completed during reviews. See examples above,
taking impact, timing, and resource capacity into account.

Document
Review Date

Wellbeing in Place Perceptions Scale (WIPPS)
2021

University of Liverpool

Health Inequalities Assessment Toolkit (HIAT)

National Institute for
Health and Care Research

National Planning Policy Framework

Ministry of Housing,
Communities &
Local Government

Expected updates include health to have greater weight in
planning considerations throughout.

G-6



https://cdn-eastherts.onwebcurl.com/s3fs-public/2024-03/EH%20Corporate%20plane%20poster%20AWF.pdf
https://cdn-eastherts.onwebcurl.com/s3fs-public/2024-03/EH%20Corporate%20plane%20poster%20AWF.pdf
https://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/your-epping-forest-2023-2027/
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework

H G G T QUALITY

HARLOW & GILSTON oF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

H. Engagement methodology

The Your Quality of Life consultation programme is a hybrid approach to engagement, using face-to-
face and digital methods in tandem to improve uptake and reach a broader and more representative
audience.

This approach tripled engagement in 2022 compared to previous HGGT Consultations'. To ensure
consistency and quality of feedback collected, a similar approach is to be used at each consultation,
building on lessons learned along the way. This list below is not exhaustive, nor prescriptive and
advancements in technology will allow the introduction of new methods:

In-person
o Pre-engagement workshops with identified underrepresented groups to inform
comms and engagement approaches
o Weekly pop-ups at different locations
o Targeted workshops speaking to underrepresented communities

Printed Communications

o Printed surveys to allow for those who don’t have digital access
o Flyers, banners and posters directing audiences to the digital survey
o Advertorials in local magazines, newspapers and newsletters

Digital
o Digital survey platform
Email newsletters
Targeted social media advertising and promotional content
Circulation within closed, existing groups and pages (e.g. Whatsapp and Facebook)

O O O

To ensure consistency and validity of collected data, whether that is through Your Quality of Life
consultations or other engagement programmes, the following steps need to be considered when
carrying out engagement and/or consultation for future data collection.

e Reduce number of questions for smaller surveys and increase impact: By asking fewer
questions that are more directly related to the outputs and desired outcomes for each
consultation, uptake will be more consistent across the entirety of the survey data.

e Emphasise spatial responses: Limitations by the consultation platform during the 2022
baseline collection exercise meant that the mapping element of the project and spatialising of
responses (ie themes by area) was not possible. This was partly because there weren’t always

" https://media.localdigital.gov.uk/uploads/2023/08/07205013/Prop Tech-Innovation-Fund-Round-2-
HGGT-Final-Report.docx.pdf

H-1 Page 107



H G G T QUALITY

HARLOW & GILSTON oF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

enough responses to identify a clear spatial pattern and partly because there was not a clear
enough relationship between point selection on the map and the questions that respondents
were subsequently prompted to answer. Future consultations will overcome this as numbers of
respondents increase, and as the HGGT Data Dashboard develops its map-based
communications.

e Improve demographic uptake: As is common with consultation programmes, the 2022 dataset
was skewed in its demographic make-up, containing a majority of older, wealthier and more
educated respondents. Further and more targeted consultations, especially smaller scale and
longer-term programmes, can begin to rebalance this demographic uptake to be more
representative of the area.

e Manage community expectations: It is also essential to ensure that community and resident
expectations are carefully managed, explaining how the feedback and communication process
will work. Refer to the Process and Workflow

e To gauge how statistically robust responses are, record the highest number of responses
across all questions on the tracker and note any questions that are equal to or less than 10%
of the most responded question

For more detailed information on best practice engagement approaches, refer to the Inclusive
Engagement Toolkit, produced by the Quality of Life Foundation in collaboration with Urban
Symbiotics in 2022; and with the HGGT Communications and Engagement Strateqy, which is
updated periodically to reflect adopted HGGT Engagement practice.

Page 108 H-2


https://www.harlow.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Corporate%20plan%202024%20to%202028.pdf
https://www.harlow.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Corporate%20plan%202024%20to%202028.pdf
https://www.google.com/url

UALITY
H G EOVI,LSTON gF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

I. Officer Feedback and how it has informed the Strategy
We received feedback from 13 respondents over the running of the survey. The following is a short
summary of the feedback received, and which helped to verify the approach taken in the strategy.

Officer Survey

Do you have experience in any of the following types of data processing? (e.g. this could be
through consultations and/or communicating statistics etc.)

Tracking data 30.77%

Evaluating data 84.62%

Updating data sets 38.46%

Communicating data 61.54%

None of these 15.38%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Are you currently measuring quality of life or health and wellbeing outcomes within their work
and department?
38.5% said “yes”
30.8% said “no”
30.8% said “not sure

63.6% of officers collect data to measure outcomes from secondary sources (ONS or GOV.UK for
example), but only 18.2% of officers felt that these measurements are robust or reliable

What is your current work area?

“Gilston new town” “Urban design and masterplanning”
“Development planning” “Sustainable transport”
“Health and wellbeing” “Planning/Garden Town”
“Planning and biodiversity” “Transport and planning”
“Public health and wellbeing” “Service improvement, data collection and
“GIS (Mapping) and digital” analysis”

“Infrastructure planning”

I-1 Page 109



UALITY
H G QOVI,LSTON gF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

Officers pointed out that there is a range of measures currently in place. However, the responses
highlighted that there is general lack of clarity regarding the robustness of the data that they are
using to benchmark performance.

Are there any gaps between the Quality of Life Framework themes and your work?
23.1% said “yes”
15.4% said “no”
61.5% said “not sure”

What’s missing from this framework?
“Sport, food production and historic connections”
“Active public engagement with the natural world or local food growing”
“Please refer to key headings in the NPPF and NPPG”

Themes concerning nature, movement and community resonated the most with Officer’s own areas
of work/focus. Whilst other themes are consistently rated by officers across the board. A few comments
by officers pointed out areas that were missing in the Quality of Life Framework themes, which have
since been included in the updated Framework.

Regarding the Indicators
92.3% of officers broadly agreed that the indicators are easy to understand
84.6% of officers broadly agreed that it is clear that these indicators can demonstrate a change in
quality of life
61.5% of officers broadly agreed that they would use quality of life insights to inform future
approaches, and to improve performance of development
When asked about the process of deriving indicators, officers generally felt that this process was easy

to understand. The benefit of these indicators and their association to quality of life metrics was also
well understood by officers.

Regarding the Tracker
53.9% of officers felt that the tracker looks easy to use and navigate

61.5% of officers would use the tracker to measure current and future performance of development
and other initiatives that are linked to health and wellbeing and quality of life

Page 110 I-1



UALITY
H G EOI,LSTON gF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

Thinking about the potential benefits of implementing the Quality
of Life Monitoring Strategy, which of the following would be the
most useful to your organisation? (Please choose at least 3
options)

Better access to community
insights (via digital tool, when
live, via reports in the interim)

69.23%

Enables informed approaches
according to the needs of
specific communities

76.92%

Better informed and more

0
transparent decision-making ST

Better understanding of our own
performance against national
and local benchmark

23.08%

Ability to communicate issues
and successes more easily to 69.23%
stakeholders

Enhanced credibility and
reputation through increased 7.69%
transparency and accountability

Opportunity to streamline
monitoring by aligning shared
interests

38.46%

Better measurement standards 23.08%

Cross departmental analysis 15.38%

Opportunity for more frequent

0,
measurement 23.08%

Opportunity for long term

0,
measurement 38.46%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
Percent

-2 Page 111



— G G T QUALITY

HARLOW & GILSTON OF LIFE
GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION
What do you see as a potential barrier(s) to the wider use of this
tracker to track performance of quality of life across the HGGT
area? (Select as many responses as you think are necessary)
Lack of time 76.92%
Lack of budgeting/resourcing 84.62%
Lack of technical know-how 53.85%
Poor legibility of the strategy 23.08%
Lack of buy-in 76.92%
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Percent

Officers’ comments reflected the need for the strategy to move beyond the Excel spreadsheet as a
means to input, manage and communicate the Quality of Life data. This is in line with other comments
that suggested that the Strategy remains simple and easy to use consistently.

Reflecting feedback across other parts of the survey, officers felt that the Quality of Life Tracker could
be helpful in understanding the communities that their organisations serve better.

Lastly, officers were broadly in agreement that resourcing and time constraints would be the major
hurdle to using the Strategy. Particularly, they ranked the option “Poor legibility of the strategy” as
the least likely barrier to the use of the Strategy to measure quality of life across HGGT.

Resulting changes to the Strategy and or Action Plan:

e The Tracker and its management are being integrated into the HGGT Data
Dashboard.

e The Strategy itself has been simplified further, reducing length and furthering ease
of use

o Noting that the strategy is the least likely barrier to the strategy, actions to address the
other barriers include: officer training, budget and resource planning, ensuring project
champion at senior officer level;

e Sport, food production, historic connections, and active participation with the natural
world all fall under current Quality of Life themes and indicator questions; and NPPF
is included as related framework to periodically check against, as it is updated. As the
NPPG is a guide to support interpreting the NPPF, only the NPPF has been included.
The list of related frameworks is non-exhaustive and will be updated periodically.

Page 112 -3



H G G T QUALITY

HARLOW & GILSTON OF LIFE
GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION
Officer Workshop

The Quality of Life Foundation ran a workshop with 21 partnering authority officers on Monday 18th
March 2024 to gather feedback about the Monitoring Strategy.

Summary Feedback

e Adding more visual elements would help explain the process more concisely

e Officer time and resource are scarce, an awareness of this as we develop the approach to
ensure that there is no double-work or inefficiencies is essential for officer buy-in, for example,
to consider existing policies and monitoring frameworks to get a sense of what is already being
measured to avoid further duplication of work

e There are already a range of different assessments that are providing data for local teams
periodically

e There is aninterest in capturing sentiments around aspirations, hopes and fears in the context
of local development and community perceptions

e The use of a spreadsheet to input and track data is not ideal in terms of user experience and
usability - with a few comments noting the benefit that spatialising the data (i.e. putting it on
a map) could help address this issue.

Resulting changes to the Strategy and or Action Plan:

o Visual elements, summary charts and workflows added

o Clarifications on how work and engagement will be coordinated to avoid duplication,
and maximise benefit, for example, timing of consultations and reviews to stay in step
with national benchmarks, and coordinated reviews of monitoring arrangements

ahead of consultations

o Scalability has been maintained, so that officers outside the HGGT may also benefit
from data

o As above, the Tracker and its management are being integrated into the HGGT Data
Dashboard.

-4 Page 113



H G G T QUALITY

HARLOW & GILSTON oF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

J. 2022 Your Quality of Life Consultation — Establishing Baseline Data

Data gathered from community and resident responses were used in tandem with datasets provided
by consultants, Stantec, and national benchmark data taken from past surveys carried out at national
and/or regional scales. The resulting combination provided a good measure of performance of quality
of life based on the thoughts and feedback of the local community, as well as a range of comparative
scores to gauge how well the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town area is performing nationally.

Data sources include:

Sustrans

Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport
Office for National Statistics

Natural England

Department for Transport

UK Government Disability Unit

O O O O O O

The core questions yielded the highest volume of responses. These drew mainly on the Taking Part
and Community Life (Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport) surveys. Benchmarks from other
surveys listed above were included but did not amass enough responses to be analysed and interpreted
meaningfully in the reporting for this project. However, these data points have been included in the
Quality of Life Monitoring Tracker with the view that future data points will build on the statistical
gaps in this first round of indicators.

International benchmarks have been omitted as there are limitations in drawing comparisons in
contexts that are culturally and socially different. Therefore, benchmarks have been drawn exclusively
from UK national surveys. Reviewing international benchmarks and keeping abreast of best practice
forms part of the strategy review process, and a task undertaken by the QoL Monitoring Team.

Questions relating to transport and movement that were asked in the 2022 consultation were limited
due to upcoming engagement on travel patterns through the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Travel
Diary survey, delivered by Stantec.

To avoid duplication, questions in this theme were minimal and focussed on qualitative elements
resulting in the comparatively smaller number of questions to provide a baseline. To address this gap,
questions from national surveys have been added to the most recent version of the Tracker to provide
a more balanced picture.

These new additions are not currently part of the baseline data for this version of the Monitoring

Strategy, but data will be captured in the next Your Quality of Life consultation or in any intermediate
consultations that are able to take place and collect data against these new questions.

Page 114 -1


https://arc-nwc.nihr.ac.uk/resources-old/hiat/
https://secureservercdn.net/160.153.137.14/647.f4f.myftpupload.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/190128_Vision-document_HIGH-RES.pdf

GTT obed

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON

GARDEN TOWN

K. 2022 Consultation Demographics

Table showing the breakdown of different demographic markers for respondents to the 2022 Your Quality of Life consultation. These questions were optional,

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

so not all respondents’ demographic information was captured but the majority of respondents did feed back on these markers. These demographics are also
included in the Tracker, where they are benchmarked against 2021 Census data to allow ease of comparison.

16-24:
25-34:
35-44:
45-54:

21 (7.61%)
29 (10.51%)
59 (21.38%)
50 (18.12%)
55-64: 65 (23.55%)
65-74: 39 (14.12%)
75-84: 9 (3.26%) *
85 or over: 1 (0.36%)
* (likely to be more
due to digital
exclusion / lack of
demographic data
from some physical
surveys may mean
data does not fully
reflect older group
participation)

Male: 45 (29.6%)
Other: 2 (1.3%)
Prefer not to say: 4
(2.6%)

from ethnic minorities and/or
under represented
communities: 16.22%

= Gypsy or Irish Traveller - 1
= Any other White
background - 5

= White and Black Caribbean
-1

= White and Black African -
2

= White and Asian - 2

= Any other Mixed/Multiple
ethnic background - 3

= Indian - 3

= Pakistani - 2

= Bangladeshi - 1

earn over £25k but
25% earn less

illness that impacts their
daily life.

- Vision (e.g. blindness or
partial sight): 3

- Hearing (e.g. deafness or
partial hearing): 10

- Mobility (e.g. walking or
climbing stairs): 11

- Dexterity (carrying things,
using keyboards): 5

- Learning, understanding
or concentrating: 4

- Memory: 1

- Mental Health: 16

- Stamina or breathing
fatigue: 7

Age Gender Ethnicity Employment and Disability Gender and Sexual
income orientation
13-15: 3 (1.09%) Female: 101 (66.5%) | Overall percentage of people | - Most respondents - 41.1% have a disability or | - 4.64% of

respondents said
their gender was not
the same as their sex
registered at birth or
they prefer not to say
- The sexual
orientation of
participants was
80.67% straight or
heterosexual / 4%
bisexual / 4.67% Gay
or Lesbian / 2% other
/ 8.67% prefer not to
say.




HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

oTT abed

QUALITY
OF LIFE

FOUNDATION

= Caribbean - 2

= Any other
Black/African/Caribbean
background - 1

= Any other ethnic group - 1

= Welsh/ English/ Scottish/
Northern Irish/ British - 124

- Social or behavioural
(Autism or ADHD): 5

- Other: 5

- Prefer not to say: 14

- No disability or iliness: 82

K-2




HGGT QUALITY OF LIFE ACTION PLAN

Revision History and Updates

Date Version Key updates

HG G T QUALITY

Purpose

HARLOW & GILSTON oF LIFE

GARDEN TOWN FOUNDATION

Oct 2024 2.0 Updated to reflect Progress and further recommendations following

development of the Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy

For Joint Committee Approval alongside Quality of Life
Monitoring Strategy.

Feb 2023 1.0 First issue — Endorsed by the HGGT Board

n/a

Introduction: The following Action Plan is based on, and to beread alongside, the HGGT Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy, which has been collaboratively
developed by the Quality of Life Foundation and the HGGT Team to enable quality of life monitoring for the HGGT and partners.

With sections A, B, C, Sand D, previously agreed by the HGGT Board in February 2023, these have since been updated to reflect progress and next actions. Actions
Al, Establish a Physical Presence; and D, Develop a Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy, are now complete.

Summary: Note that the recommendations and actions identified in Q) Quality of Life Monitoring will support all recommendations previously agreed by the
HGGT Board, including those which have not yet progressed. Where previous actions have not progressed, this is primarily due to lack of engagement resource,
which would be addressed should the QoL Monitoring Strategy be implemented. We therefore recommend actions in section Q which support QoL Monitoring

Delivery are prioritised.

Q) QUALITY OF LIFE MONITORING DELIVERY

QoLF and HGGT Recommendation

Reason / description

Current Status

Action / Programme (subject to funding/ resource

evaluation)

Q1. PROJECT MANAGEMENT

[0 Q1.1.ESTABLISH QOLMONITORING TEAM, allocating
D HGGT resource to meet delivery requirements of the
p Strategy and this Action Plan, includingto coordinate
| . Qolworkacross wider HGGT programmes and engage

To ensure resource is in place to deliver QoL
Monitoring, on time, with the right skills and
processes in place; ensures monitoring and

In progress, (QoL
Lead/ Data
Dashboard)

Scope for FY 24/25
- Identify project champions and existing resource

- include QoL as a regular agenda item with key




T
jb)

TT

QoLF and HGGT Recommendation

D
Y
Y

Reason / description

Current Status

Action / Programme (subject to funding/ resource

evaluation)

with key stakeholders.

programme approaches align to maximise value and
impact; and that key stakeholders are kept informed.
Also responds to officer survey feedback that time,
resource and buy-in are the primary barriers to
delivery.

identify further
resources in

2025

stakeholder groups and HGGT teams

- Review in QoL Strategy, QoL draft Budget and
HGGT budget

Q1.2.ESTABLISH A HGGT QUALITYMONITORING
TEAM ORSTEERING GROUP, and update frameworks
with standard phrasing to supportalignment

Quality of Life Monitoring falls under a wider
Quality Monitoring Framework, and so needs to be
coordinated across partnering authorities and with
developers.

Potential for this to be part of strategic
stewardship activities

In progress, via
SMG and EOG

Scope for FY 24/25

- Review in HGGT Strategic Stewardship, HGGT
Quality Monitoring Framework, Gilston Area

Strategic Monitoring Framework

Q.1.3.INVESTIGATE FURTHER FUNDING
OPPORTUNITIES, consideringboth the

Due to the wide arrayof benefits which QoL
Monitoringbrings to all stakeholders and aspects

In progress, all

Ongoing / immediate

followingYQoLConsultation Monitoringand
Evaluation reporting,

Monitoring

o . . . of developmentin the Garden Town (and beyond), phases - Review in HGGT QoL Monitoring Team
beneficiaries and the befits inapplying/seeking . .
. there will be many opportunities for grants and o I

funding. o . L - monitoring and/or S106 contributions
partnerships in emergingor priority areas. For
example, relating to climate change, modalshift, - MHCHLG, Optimal Cities, etc.
qualityhomes, healthand wellbeing, stewardship,
spatialapproaches to planning.

Q1.4.UPDATE THISACTION PLAN AT LEAST To reporton progress, and to reflect any Next Review Scope for FY 24/25

. . recommendations which arise asa resultof QoL
ANNUALLY, with more comprehensive updates 2025

- Review in Action Plan, QoL Monitoring Strategy,

Qol Reporting

Q2.INFORMING POLICY, STRATEGIESAND PROJECTS

Q2.1CHECK EMERGING AND EXISTING STRATEGIES
AND PLANSAND OTHER KEYDOCUMENTS, such as
master plansagainst QolIndicators, making
recommendations to make them more measurable for
achieving quality of life outcomes, as they are
developed and/or updated.

To support strategies to be more effective for
achieving quality of life outcomes.

By making these documents more measurable for
quality of life, this can lead to improvements in
quality of life over time.

Several are mapped already. Mapping more will
mean that data will support insights to be used
more readily for other teams.

In progress, via
QoL Monitoring
Phase 2, 3

Ongoing / Immediate

- Review timing and potential authority and

developer strategies via QoL Documents to Align

- No time limit, but timing this ahead of document

reviews will make this most effective.



https://business.esa.int/funding

QoLF and HGGT Recommendation

Reason / description

Current Status

Action / Programme (subject to funding/ resource

evaluation)

- Make the ‘QolL Indicator Check’ a requirement

for all strategic documents

Q2.2.IDENTIFYAND ALIGN OTHER SURVEYSAND
CONSULTATIONS with QolIndicator Questions

To maximise benefit and reduce duplication. This
will enable smaller scale and other consultations to
contribute to quality of life data in between HGGT
Qol consultations, and prevents multiple
consultations or surveys running at the same time.

These small scale consultations will also support
reaching wider demographics, giving a clearer
picture of quality of life over time, more equitably.

In progress, via
QoL Monitoring
Phase 2, 3

Ongoing / Immediate

- Review timing and potential authority and

developer strategies via QoL Documents to Align

Q2.3.SUPPORT STEWARDSHIP BODIESTO USE QOL
MONITORING, aligningstrategies, engagement, and
community development plansto QoLMonitoring

The HGGT Stewardship Charter is aligned, so
individual and strategic sites will also align,
providing more granular information about what
works in different areas.

Demonstrates how stewardship decisions impact
people’s quality of life; and vice versa, how
engaging people in stewardship and quality of life
monitoring will also lead to changes in how
stewardship decisions are made.

In progress, via
HGGT
Stewardship
Charter, QoL
Monitoring
Phase 2, 3

Ongoing / Immediate

- Review in: HGGT Strategic Stewardship, HGGT
Stewardship Charter, PfP/TW Stewardship and

Governance Strategy (+ others as they emerge)

- Gilston Area Stewardship (Shadow) Body (+

others as they emerge)

Q2.4. INCLUDE STANDARD REFERENCING TO QOL
MONITORING FORLINKED FRAMEWORKS, where

aligned, such as Developer post occupancy surveys;
and other partner frameworks, for example, Gilston
Area Quality Monitoring Strategic Framework

To support continuity in approaches and ease of
use and therefore impact.

In progress, via
QoL Monitoring
Phase 2, 3;
Gilston Area
Monitoring

Framework

Ongoing / Immediate

- Review in: HGGT Quality Monitoring
Framework; Gilston Area Quality Monitoring

Framework.

- Referenced in HGGT Stewardship Charter

Q3.COMMUNICATIONSAND ENGAGEMENT

6TT obed




T
jb)

kY

27T

QoLF and HGGT Recommendation

Reason / description

Current Status

Action / Programme (subject to funding/ resource

evaluation)

Q3.1.SHARE QOLMONITORING STRATEGYPUBLICLY,
with Members, Joint Committee, and other key
stakeholders, includingYQoLCommunity Participants

Closes the feedback loop with community following
YQol Consultation Feedback Report which sets out
aspiration to monitor quality of life; strengthens
accountability, benefitting all stakeholder groups;
and supports implementation by socialising content

In progress, via
QoL Monitoring
Phase 2, 3

Scope for FY 24/25

- Once agreed, share with Joint Committee

Q3.2.PUBLISH UPDATESFOLLOWING USERTESTING
to let people knowhowthe siteis evolving

Demonstrates accountability, furthers
opportunities for others to engage

In progress, via

QoL Monitoring

Scope for FY 24/25

- Following Data Dashboard development

Higsa 2, 8 (current ETA spring 2025)

- QoL Monitoring Phase 2
Q3.3.ENGAGE KEY STAKEHOLDERS INONGOING ':e}' to “ndetrStintd Ng User pTEffrebncesffatnd. . Begin 2025 Scope for FY 25/26
FEEDBACK BEYOND THE INITIALUSERTESTING to d"’:e'c‘i’sri'gﬁ ?n“a Eil; saijc;::;': ”i'(:s :mzr;‘; que 'Zn‘;rm
continueto develop communications which are secure fundingg BIeS, - Following Data Dashboard development
relevant and engagingto key groups (current ETA spring 2025)

- QoL Monitoring Phase 3

A Strat . . .

Q3.4.REPEAT YOUR QUALITY OF LIFE > per Strategy Begin 2026 - QoL Monitoring Phase 3

CONSULTATIONS EVERY 3-5 YEARS, ideally at regular
intervals, as per strategy.

Q4.TRAINING AND SCALING UP IMPACT

Q4.1.ENGAGE EXTERNALSTAKEHOLDERSsuch as
MHCLG, other local authorities and interested NGOs
via working groups, such as theHealthand Wellbeing
in Planning Network

To share and continuelearning on howthebuilt
environment and community involvement impacts
qualityof life, and increase potential reach

In progress, all

phases

Ongoing / Immediate

- Qol Lead to review and attend key relevant

working groups

Q4.2. ENGAGE PARTNERS AND OTHERKEY
STAKEHOLDERSTO EXPLORE POTENTIALTO SCALE,
includingEssex and Hertfordshire County Councils;and
EppingForest, Harlowand East Herts District Councils;
Developer Partners;and others, such as MHCLG, the

This is a key outcome sought from theproject, and the
potential to bringpositive impact at scale is very high. It
could also bringpotential future fundingopportunities.

In progress, all

phases

Ongoing / immediate



https://healthinplanning.wordpress.com/
https://healthinplanning.wordpress.com/

QoLF and HGGT Recommendation

Reason / description

Current Status

Action / Programme (subject to funding/ resource

evaluation)

TCPA, NHSand Homes England.

To support officer ability to report and make

WHICH CONTRIBUTESTO QUALITY OFLIFE, such as:

Watershed’s pollution map;.Gov housingquality; and
other emerging research, such as Spatial Plans asa
Critical Intervention in ImprovingPopulationHealth.

environment and ecology andquality oflife andpeople’s
health.

This will be an evolvingdata set as more research
emerges, so keepingabreast of evidence will help keep
this relevant. Note that the Strategy includes thisas one
of it's 9 steps.

Q4.3. TRAINING OFFICERS INHOW TO USE QOL recommendations. informed by auality of life data Begin 2025 Scope for FY 25/26
MONITORING DATAALONGSIDE OTHERDATA, such Respondsto ofﬁce’r feedback tf\:a?t tecP:/nicaI know-
as the HGGT Sustainability Checklist, Health Impact PS _ - Review in QoL platform of Data Dashboard
how is required.
Assessments, Local Plans and Developer Proposals
- QoL Monitoring Phase 3
Q4.4.TRAINING EXTERNAL STAKEHOLDERS in howto | [° |nderstand Qolchanges andhow engagement Begin 2025 Scope for FY 25/26
L . impacts strategies and projects
use the data dashboard, in including young people
- Review in QoL platform of Data Dashboard
- QoL Monitoring Phase 3
Q5.DIGITALDASHBOARD DEVELOPMENT
Toi il li lity of .
Q5.1.ENFORCE USE OF SUSTAINABILITYCHECKLIST ©increase build qualityand demonstratequality o Begin 2025 Scope for 25/26
. build impacts for quality oflife.
and include as layer on QoL Map
- prioritise in QoL Documents to Align
Q5.2. OVERLAYQOLMAP WITH FURTHER DATA To further evidence the links between qualityofbuilt | =5 . 505 Scope for FY 25/26

- Review in QoL platform of Data Dashboard, and

as part of periodic QoL Methodology Reviews

Recommendations for A, B, C, S and D endorsed by the HGGT Board in February 2023, based on the Quality of Life Recommendations Report, updated to reflect
progress and further actions to supportdelivery. Note that these will all be supported by actioning the recommendations in section Q above.

T2T abed



https://watershedinvestigations.com/home/find-out-whats-polluting-your-local-rivers-lakes-and-coast/
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-housing-survey-local-authority-housing-stock-condition-modelling-2020/english-housing-survey-local-authority-housing-stock-condition-modelling-2020
https://journals.sagepub.com/doi/10.1177/08854122241229565#table1-08854122241229565
https://journals.sagepub.com/doi/10.1177/08854122241229565#table1-08854122241229565
https://hggt.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/230215_QOLF-Your-Quality-of-Life-Project-Recs-Report.pdf

ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNICATION PRACTICES WITH COMMUNITIES AND ORGANISATIONS

zz1 dbed

QoLF Recommendation

Reason / description

Current Status

Action/ Programme (subject to funding/ resource
evaluation)

Al1.ESTABLISH A PHYSICAL PRESENCE:

A physical place is allocated and run through
HGGT for community engagement. This could be
a series of semi-permanent ‘pop-ups’ or
permanent space that could be staffed
occasionally.

This space would give the public the chance to
provide ongoing feedback, receive information about
proposed developments to their local area and feel
connected to the process of change in a way that is
visible and tangible.

Complete.

Harlow Discovery
Hub opened
November 2023

Scope for FY 23/24

- Review in Comms & Engagement

A2. INCREASE COMMUNITY CONVERSATIONS
AROUND PLANNING AND POLICY
DEVELOPMENT:

Involving the community more directly in
matters relating to planning, management and
policy development, through:

i) Regular follow-ups to keep residents
informed about the project, results of
consultations and outcomes

People felt concerned about their ability to shape
planning and development, often asking if their
comments and ideas would actually make a
difference. Providing more information on outcomes
and actions helps to demonstrate that theirinputs are
having an impact.

Progressing via
QoL Monitoring
and Digital
Dashboard; HGGT
Stewardship
Charter; Comms
and Engagement
Strategy

Scope for FY 24/25:

- Review how to better inform, empower and
involve communities to be reviewed in Comms &
Engagement, partner SCls, Stewardship, Data &
Digital

- Quality of Life Monitoring

A3. PROVIDE COMMUNITY LINKS OFFICERS:

The LAs/ HGGT partnership to provide
resourcing for a Community Engagement
Team. This could be in the form of community
links officers who: work to engage early with
stakeholders about local issues; work with
partner organisations, local people, and amenity
groups; liaise with in-house teams

To provide dedicated resources and capacity that can
support consultation processes and enable
engagement.

Not started

Scope for FY 24/25
- Review in Comms & Engagement, Stewardship

- Review engagement resource in Placeshaping &
Engagement workstream

- Via Harlow Discovery Hub and Community
Forums

A4. INCREASE DIGITAL INCLUSION AND
SUPPORT:

LAs/ HGGT partnership to support resources for
in-person engagement and support alongside
digital engagement. This could be in the form of
working with partner organisations that provide
digital support or access.

To support people who do not have digital access to
devices, to get online and to be involved in
conversations.

Progressing via QoL
Monitoring; Digital

Dashboard; Discoven
Harlow Hub

Scope for FY 24/25:

- Review in Comms & Engagement, partner SCls
Placeshaping & Sustainability, Stewardship,
Economic Growth, Data & Digital




QoLF Recommendation

Reason / description

Current Status

Action/ Programme (subject to funding/ resource
evaluation)

A5. EMBED LOCAL EVENTS INTO ENGAGEMENT: Local events provide an excellent opportunity to Not started Scope for FY 24/25

Embedding pop-ups deeper into future meet peOplg where they are ,'demonstr?te that - Review in Comms & Engagement, Active Travel
engagement is part of the fabric of local life and

engagement efforts. These should be well h a wid di - Explore via Discover Harlow Hub and pop-u

distributed and take into account the spaces reach a wider audience. si:’es Pop-up

that under-represented groups use most.

A6. PROJECT ENGAGEMENT PLANS ON ALL It's important to understand the context by Not started Scope for FY 24/25

PROJECTS:

Undertake a project engagement plan and
mid-point review on all projects. Methods to
agree and understand the impact of any
future outreach and engagement to be
agreed.

mapping out the stakeholders, tapping into local
people and resources, and finding out where people
go for information as part of an ongoing
programme.

- ldentify officer to create stakeholder map

- Review in Comms & Engagement; consultation
planning

A7.SENSE CHECKING OF MATERIAL BY THE
COMMUNITY:

That community stakeholders are involved in
sense checkingand scrutinising the outreach and
engagement materials. We recommend that
this also includes underrepresented groups so
that materials are relevant and relatable.

This approach ensures that materials are relevant and
relatable, avoiding jargon and increasing the
likelihood of meaningful interactions.

Progressing via QoL
Monitoring; Digital
Dashboard; and
HGGT Comms

Scope for FY 24/25

- Review in Comms & Engagement, Data & Digital,
QoL Monitoring Workshops

A8. SPECIFICENGAGEMENT WITH YOUNG
PEOPLE:

LAs to take a more active approach in involving
young people, through:

i) Pop-ups and dedicated events specifically for
young people

i) Using newsletters, digital platforms and social
media to provide informal feedback on the
current project progress.

In Harlow, Gilston and surrounding areas, 90% of 16-
24yr olds felt they were not able to have any
influence on their local area, and this is compared to
the national average of 73% for that age range.

Progressing via
HGGT Stewardship
Charter and
Design Code
workshops

Scope for FY 24/25

- Report back to young people about how their
input has informed the HGGT Stewardship
Charter and Design Codes

Establish group for engaging young people
beyond EFDC and HDC Youth Councils

- Review of Comms & Engagement, Stewardship,
partner SCls

Quality of Life Monitoring

c¢T abed




2T abed

QoLF Recommendation

Reason / description

Current Status

Action/ Programme (subject to funding/ resource
evaluation)

- Collaborate with Harlow College and Herts
University

A9. REDUCE RELIANCE ON PROFESSIONAL
LANGUAGE:

i) That terms that are commonly used by the
Local Authorities are defined and accessible

i) The adoption of the Crystal Mark for external
communications

The Crystal Mark is a standard for clear
communication established by the Plain English
Campaign. This mark has been adopted by a
number of UK Government departments as well as
corporations and is seen as a good standard for
communication across sectors.

Progressing via
QoL Monitoring
and Digital
Dashboard

Scope for FY 24/25

- Review in Comms & Engagement, partner
SCls, Digital Dashboard, Digital QoL
Monitoring Guide

- Formal adoption of Crystal Mark to be led by
EFDC as the Garden Town's lead authority

B) EMPOWERING EXISTING COMMUNITY GROUPS AND CREATING COMMUNITY-LED PROCESSES

QoLF Recommendation

Reason / description

Current Status

Action/ Programme (subject to funding/ resource
evaluation)

B1. BUILD TRAINING INTO FUTURE
ENGAGEMENT: The specifics of this depend on
engagement being undertaken. Rainbow Services
(Harlow) could be involved, as well as students
from Harlow College and volunteers at the
Princess Alexandra hospital.

Involving residents in this project has helped to
upskill both local partners and the wider community.
Taking such an approach to future engagement and
including training to support community involvement
in such processes will further build local capacity.

Progressing via QoL
Monitoring, Digital
Dashboard and
HGGT Stewardship
Charter

Scope for FY 24/25

- Review of Comms & Engagement, Stewardship,
Economic Growth

- Quality of Life Monitoring (Phase 3 - training
community and other key stakeholders)

- Via Community Forums, Developer engagement
initiatives

B2. TRANSFER OF MANAGEMENTTO
COMMUNITIES:

i) Management transfer strategy should be
developed along with local stakeholders to
identify areas, assets and opportunities.

ii) Local Authorities help to set up local
community bodies, resident councils, or

Increased sense of control and belonging through
buildinglocal capacity and in some cases transferring
decisions/ ownership over to the community.

Local community groups can mobilise interested
residents and businesses to generate community
funding. This is a step towards giving communities a
great sense of agency in the face of ongoing

Progressing via QoL
Monitoring, Digital
Dashboard and
HGGT Stewardship
Charter

Scope for FY 24/25

- Comms & Engagement

- Quality of Life Monitoring
- HGGT Stewardship Charter

- Developer stewardship approaches

8




QoLF Recommendation

Reason / description

Current Status

Action/ Programme (subject to funding/ resource
evaluation)

strengthen existing groups. These can in
turn assist with helping to raise awareness
around local issues and explain the
constraints under which LAs work

challenges around changes to Harlow, Gilston and
the wider area.

B3. MAPPING ROUTES TO INFLUENCE:

Set up a simple route map into the local
authority making clear how things like
maintenance of space, streets, transport and
perceived decline can be addressed

Most communities understand that money and
funds are tight for this sort of work/help, they
often just want to understand what can be done
and where they can help with local issues. Better
understanding of local authority structures and
contact points will give new communities some
contact and possibly input into decisions.

Progressing via QoL
Monitoring, Digital
Dashboard and
HGGT Stewardship
Charter

Scope for FY 24/25

- Reviewin Comms & Engagement, Data &
Digital

- Qol Monitoring
- HGGT Stewardship Charter

- Developer Communications

B4. FACILITATING AND EMPOWERING EXISTING
COMMUNITY GROUPS:
i) Active mapping and planning

- inclusivity or street audits alongside community
groups (see also Rec C1)

ii) Adopt tactical urban planning practices
alongside existing community groups

Engaging with community groups to respond to
queries relating to speeding, active travel, walking
and cycling will increase local understanding of the
issues and provide important insights to decision
makers.

Tactical or DIY Urbanism are short-term and flexible
options to prototype and evaluate ideas around street
safety, public space and community building. Taking
such an approach can help local people directly
engage with the issues and provide a visible
demonstration that action is being taken.

Not started

Scope for FY 24/25

- Review in Comms & Engagement, Sustainable
Mobility/ Modal Shift, Design Guidance,
Stewardship

- Quality of Life Monitoring

- Community Forums

B5. ADOPTING COMMUNITY CHARTERS:

i) The adoption of a community charter for the
Harlow, Gilston and surrounding areas.

These typically highlight the fundamental rights and
responsibilities that concern and direct the future of
that community, helping to provide a sense of
empowerment for the community and accountability
for decision makers.

Not started

Ongoing/ immediate
- Review in Comms & Engagement, Stewardship
- Quality of Life Monitoring

- Explore via Community Forums

o
jabl
Q

C

D

CONSIDERING LOCAL PRIORITIES IN PLANNING, REGENERATION AND GROWTH

N
ol




9zT abed

QoLF Recommendation

Reason / description

Current Status

Action/ Programme (subject to funding/ resource
evaluation)

C1. PRIORITISE TRANSPORT NETWORK
INVESTMENT:

i) The deployment of small-scale infrastructure
investments

i) Use of street and space audits, with
community groups, (see RecB4, alongside Local
Authority highways and transport teams
exercises

il Community transport - the establishment of a
local chapter that provides these services to
access travel for those who can drive but don’t
own a car

Existing road and transport infrastructure in the
area can be enhanced through strategicand small-
scale public infrastructure projects such as
junctions, surfacing and signage projects. See also
S2 Active Travel Routes. These can also be
beautification and greening projects, which can
improve perceptions around the state and
maintenance of town areas as well as improve
access to green spaces. A community-led shared
publictransport option that could take many forms,
from minibuses to car club services. Charities or
Local Authorities could help establish these
services, or subsidise them. See also $3 - Public
Transport.

In progress via
HGGT Modal
Transition
Delivery
Framework

Scope for FY 24/25

- Review in Sustainable Mobility/ Modal Shift,
Comms & Engagement

- Consider Champions

C2. CREATE MORE PLACES TO SIT:

i) Trialling of public seating arrangements
deployed in and around green and hard public
areas

Bench provision is always positive and is generally
a cost-effective way of improving walking
networks and increasing the use and natural
surveillance of public spaces and footpaths.
Improved lighting in some areas can also assist in
improving use and connectivity and reducing the
likelihood of these spaces becoming sites for anti-
social behaviour.

Progressing via
Strategic
Masterplans and
Design Codes

Scope for FY 24/25

- Review in Design Guide, Placeshaping,
Masterplanning

C3. CREATE SPACES FOR ENJOYMENT

i) Investing in meanwhile spaces

ii) Continuation of investment into the
maintenance and upkeep of the highly valued
green spaces.

iii) Encouraging, supporting and facilitating local
food cooperatives

Create flexible, adaptive, spaces that cater to the
community’s needs for commercial food and
entertainment needs. This can be a cost-effective
way to test out different kinds of offers and could
also be paired with local enterprises to help
support local businesses and entrepreneurs
through mentorships, start-up guidance and
reduced rent agreements. Promoting investment
into existing or potential green spaces in the area
could resultin projects such as community growing
and vegetable box schemes. This can help foster a

Progressing via
HGGT Stewardship
Charter

Scope for FY 24/25

- Review in Stewardship, Green Infrastructure,
Design Guide

- Seek in $106 Commitments

- Consider Champions

10




QoLF Recommendation

Reason / description

Current Status

Action/ Programme (subject to funding/ resource
evaluation)

sense of community cohesion while improving
health and wellbeing through a greater awareness
of food.

S) SPATIAL RECOMMENDATIONS

QoLF Recommendation

Reason / description

Current Status

Action/ Programme (subject to funding/ resource
evaluation)

S1. DENSITY AND ACTIVE FRONTAGE ANALYSIS:

Review the existing density of the urban area.
Review and analyse existing green space. Create
good density, enclosure, active frontages and
spaces with passive surveillance.

To address observations and community perspectives
around safety, antisocial behaviour, maintenance,
and critical mass for services.

Progressing via
Strategic
Masterplans and
Design Codes

Scope for FY 24/25

- Review in Design Guide, Masterplanning,
Green Infrastructure

S2. PROGRESS THE LOCAL CYCLING AND
WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN: Improve
accessibility through paving treatments, green
the route and improve lighting. Focus on
intersections between modes and between key
uses.

To address observations and community
perspectives around strong cycle connections,
legibility and permeability issues, limited passive
surveillance, needed improvement for key walking
and cycle routes, and improving satisfaction for
those with mobility issues.

Progressing via the
HGGT LCWIP

Scope for FY 24/25
- Review in Sustainable Mobility/ Modal Shift

- Seek in S106 Commitments

$3. PUBLIC TRANSPORT ANALYSIS AND ACTION
PLAN: Analysis to ensure PT provision targeted
and benefits are maximized. Needs awareness of
financial realities of sustainable transport
provision, focusing on and prioritising most
impactful interventions. Consideration to be
given to the difficulties that lower density
developments have in maintaining public or
sustainable transport options. Support higher

To address observations and community
perspectives around frequency and reliability of bus
provision, connections from public transport into
other modes, accessibility of wider destinations and
bus stops in terms of location and cost.

Progressing via
HGGT Modal
Transition Delivery
Framework

Scope for FY 24/25

- Review in Sustainable Mobility/ Modal Shift,
Design Guide, Masterplanning

/2T abed

11




QoLF Recommendation

2T obed

Reason / description

Current Status

Action/ Programme (subject to funding/ resource
evaluation)

densities and closer arrangements of blocks to
support public transport.

D) FUTURE QUALITY OF LIFE MONITORING RECOMMENDATION

QoLF Recommendation

Reason / description

Current Status

Action / Programme (subject to funding/ resource

evaluation)

D1) DEVELOP QUALITY OF LIFE MONITORING
STRATEGY: Progress work on quality of life
indicators and methodology for future quality of
life monitoring, alongside Quality of Life
Foundation and Stantec

To continue to monitor quality of life in the Garden

Town by updating the metrics assessed by the survey
and baseline data at appropriate intervals. In order to
be able to measure and monitor quality of life across

the Garden Town, and understand the impact of
growth and change.

Complete.

Strategy submitted
for Approval 2024.

Scope for FY 23/24

- Quality of Life Monitoring

12




H GA&ndf_ltem 9

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Agenda Item 9
Report to: HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT COMMITTEE

Title: Harlow & Gilston Garden Town (HGGT) Water Lane Strategic Site —

“Proposals For The Way Forward”

Report Reference:  JC-009-2024/25

Date: 10 February 2025

Report Authors: Peter van der Zwan - Principal Planning Officer (Epping Forest
District Council)
Adeola Pilgrim — HGGT Lead Liaison Officer (Epping Forest District

Council)

Enclosures: Appendix A — Water Lane Stakeholder Engagement Proposal

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

The HGGT Joint Committee is asked to:

A. Endorse the Water Lane Stakeholder Engagement Proposal as set out in Appendix A.

B. Agree to link any proposed consultation with the HGGT Quality of Life Indicators.

C. Delegate authority to the Acting HGGT Director to finalise the consultation arrangements
and programme as may be required, in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of the
Joint Committee.

Executive Summary:

Allocated within the adopted Epping Forest District Local Plan, the HGGT Water Lane strategic
site will provide around 2,100 new homes within the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town, alongside

(Easty Epping Forest o n
& District Council ~ [E=SN ~ OrOW ,
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk seiisiniiiceris Wisrkirne towcther for THariow P ag e 1 2 9



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

community facilities including a local centre, new primary school and strategic natural
greenspace. The site will be connected to Harlow Town Centre and the wider Garden Town via
direct pedestrian and cycle links as well as bus services which will run along a dedicated
Sustainable Transport Corridor.

The site is split into two main areas - West Katherines and West Sumners — and is being
promoted by Manor Oak Homes, Martin Grant Homes, Persimmon Homes and Taylor Wimpey
(the Developers). The Developers are collaborating to prepare a Strategic Masterplan for the
area, and a Planning Performance Agreement (PPA) is in place to provide a project
management framework for progressing this. The PPA is between Epping Forest District
Council (EFDC), Harlow District Council (HDC), Essex County Council (ECC) and the
Developers. The Strategic Masterplan will set out the key development, design and delivery
principles and guide future planning application proposals.

To enable the masterplanning process to progress, the developers have submitted a proposal
to engage with residents and businesses around the Water Lane Strategic Masterplan Area.
The aim of the stakeholder engagement is to establish how the development of the Water Lane
Strategic Masterplan Area could be successfully integrated into the existing neighbourhoods
and to ensure that the development delivers benefits for the wider community.

Appendix A contains the Water Lane Stakeholder Engagement Proposal which outlines the
developers’ proposed approach to interact and communicate with residents and businesses.

Reasons for proposed Decision:

The HGGT Vision is for early community engagement that brings local people into the
conversation about the planned growth across the HGGT area. The Water Lane Stakeholder
Engagement Proposal aims to enable the 5 Council partners and the developers of the Water
Lane strategic site to communicate effectively with communities and stakeholders in a way that
intends to build trust and ensures that the delivery of the Garden Town is the result of genuine
collaboration. It will also assist in monitoring the performance of the development overall, in
relation to Quality of Life.

Other Options for Action:

It could be determined not to agree the Water Lane Stakeholder Engagement Proposal and to
take no further action in relation to it. Community consultation would be delivered to meet basic
legal requirements of the planning system. This option as a course of action is not
recommended. It would not support and enable the approach of the 5 Council partners to
support the HGGT Vision with strong leadership and participative community engagement. It
would also leave landowners, developers, community representatives and other stakeholders

@ Epping Forest Ty "
(5% (Ebmcoms MM Horow RN
P ag e 1 30 www.eppinglorestde.gov.uk et A Wisrking topether for Harfow



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

without further guidance from the 5 Council partners of HGGT on the steps towards supporting
the delivery of this development proposal within the Garden Town.

I. Introduction

1.1 East Herts District Council, Epping Forest District Council, Harlow District Council and Essex
and Hertfordshire County Councils are working in partnership to bring forward
transformational growth in the form of the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town. The Garden
Town represents a major opportunity to accommodate around 16,000 homes up to 2033,
with a further 7,000 homes by 2040. The Garden Town will also provide a mix of
development, including employment, schools, transport infrastructure and community
facilities.

1.2 Harlow and Gilston Garden Town comprises the whole of Harlow together with four new
Garden Town neighbourhoods including East of Harlow, Latton Priory, the Water Lane Area,
and Gilston Area. Three of these neighbourhoods (East of Harlow, Latton Priory and Water
Lane Area) lie within or partially within Epping Forest District and are central to the Spatial
Development Strategy of the adopted Epping Forest District Local Plan.

1.3 The Water Lane Area allocation provides capacity for a minimum of 2,100 homes, alongside
community facilities, early years provision, a new primary school and appropriate
contributions towards a secondary school to serve the needs arising from new development.
In addition, five traveller pitches will be provided.

2. Background

2.1 Development proposals for HGGT strategic sites must reflect and demonstrate that the
principles set out in the relevant policy framework have been adhered to. One of the
requirements of the Epping Forest District Local Plan is that a Strategic Masterplan is
developed for each of the new Garden Town neighbourhoods prior to the submission of a
planning application, to guide the planning, design and implementation of any proposed
development. Strategic Masterplans will be produced by the site developers, in partnership
with EFDC and relevant stakeholders and will be taken into account as an important material
consideration in the determination of planning applications.

2.2 The delivery of the Water Lane Strategic Site is evolving via a developer-led Strategic
Masterplan Framework (SMF) which is being progressed under a Performance Planning
Agreement (PPA) agreed between EFDC, HDC, ECC and the developers of Water Lane. It
includes key milestones and actions that are required to ensure that all key planning issues
are properly considered and resolved at the earliest possible stage.

@ Epping Forest Ty "
& District Council ~ ESI  1ArIOW ,
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk seiisiniiiceris Wisrkirne towcther for THariow P ag e 1 3 1



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

3. Water Lane Stakeholder Engagement Proposal

3.1 The Developers understand that any development proposal for the Water Lane strategic site
needs to be designed to deliver benefits for current residents and businesses of both Epping
Forest and Harlow District Councils as well as integrate with existing services and
communities. They are therefore proposing to embark on a programme of stakeholder
engagement collaboratively with HGGT. The engagement will assist in understanding the
needs of the broader community, how those needs can be met in line with policy
requirements, as well as seeking to address concerns that residents may have about the
new development.

3.2 The proposed approach to engagement is supported by the HGGT Quality of Life Framework
as it would provide a baseline for measuring the social impacts of growth and change in the
area. It would also help establish community-led stewardship by building relationships and
social capital with local communities and increasing community influence in planning
decisions. It would therefore be beneficial to link any proposed consultation with the HGGT
Quality of Life Indicators.

3.3 This round of stakeholder engagement will be in ‘listening mode’ and is not intended to
present masterplans or other proposals. Rather, feedback from these discussions will help
inform and shape the masterplanning process. The expectation is that the programme will
engage existing Parish Councils, Ward Members, community groups and representatives
including resident groups and associations, and local businesses as a minimum. The
opportunity to develop a Community Panel which puts local people at the heart of decision-
making would also be explored.

3.4 This phase of the project is crucial for advancing proposals to develop the HGGT Water Lane
strategic site. The Developers envisage that early engagement with stakeholders would help
align development proposals with the needs of local residents and businesses which would
in turn demonstrate the wider benefits to the community.

4. Next Steps

4.1 Following the decision of the Joint Committee, a project plan will be prepared collaboratively
between the Developers and the HGGT partners, setting out a programme of events and
agreed milestones. This would enable the stakeholder engagement to commence in January
2025 as proposed.

4.2 The Developers have also agreed to appoint and work in partnership with a third-party
engagement consultant to help facilitate the stakeholder engagement process. This would

@ Epping Forest Ty "
(5% (Ebmcoms MM Horow RN
P ag e 1 3 2 www.eppinglorestde.gov.uk et A Wisrking topether for Harfow



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

ensure that the project receives the attention and expertise necessary for a successful

implementation.

Implications:

If approved, the Water Lane Stakeholder Engagement Proposal will lead to more informed
decision making and better outcomes and will also enable the delivery of the HGGT Water Lane

strategic site to advance to the next phase.

Resource Implications

There are no financial implications to HGGT for delivering the recommendations within this

report.
Equalities and Diversity

Equality Impact Assessment

Is this a new policy (or decision) or a change to an
existing policy, practice or project?

Yes

Describe the main aims, objectives and purpose of
the policy or decision

To understand and consider the impacts on
those affected by the Water Lane
development proposals in line with the
HGGT Communications and Engagement
Strategy.

What outcome(s) are you hoping to achieve (ie
decommissioning or commissioning a service)?

Allow the local community to provide
feedback to inform planning decisions.

Does or will the policy or decision affect:
e service users
e employees
e the wider community or groups of
people, particularly where there are
areas of known inequalities?

Service users and the wider
community will be given a platform to
express their opinions and empowered
to influence decisions that affect their
lives.

Will the policy or decision influence how No
organisations operate?
Will the policy or decision involve substantial No

changes in resources?

@ Epping Forest —
H{C_fs/ District Council =
www.eppingforestde. gov.uk ki

Harlow

—_ Council

Working sowether for Harlow

il
Hertfordshire|

Page 133



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Is this policy or decision associated with any of
the Council’s other policies and how, if applicable,
does the proposed policy support corporate
outcomes?

The project is aligned with the HGGT
Communications and Engagement
Strategy as well as the strategic
objectives and corporate policies in
place across the 5 Council partners of
HGGT.

What does the information tell you about those
groups identified?

N/A

Have you consulted or involved those groups that
are likely to be affected by the policy or decision
you want to implement? If so, what were their
views and how have their views influenced your
decision?

This report proposes to consult with
residents in Epping Forest and Harlow
District Councils regarding the Water Lane
development.

If you have not consulted or engaged with
communities that are likely to be affected by the
policy or decision, give details about when you
intend to carry out consultation or provide
reasons for why you feel this is not necessary:

Extensive consultation took place on the
HGGT Communications and
Engagement Strategy that sets the
policy context for this project. Further
feedback will be acquired as an outcome
the project.

Use this section to assess any potential impact on equality groups based on what you

now know.

Age, Disability, Gender, Gender reassignment,
Pregnancy/maternity, Marriage/civil partnership,
Race, Religion/belief, Sexual orientation

There is no impact on any protected
groups.

Does the EqlA indicate that the policy or decision
would have a medium or high

No

HGGT Vision Assurance

1. What principles of the HGGT Vision does this seek to achieve?

The project seeks to address several key principles under Placemaking and Homes and is
aimed at creating vibrant, inclusive and sustainable communities.

2. What steps have been taken to ensure the HGGT Vision is embedded into the project?

The project aligns with the HGGT Communications and Engagement Strategy which is
designed to support the HGGT Vision by setting out how commitments to inform, involve and
empower stakeholders through effective and meaningful engagement.

Page 134

Epping Forest

East ppIr . —
H{"_fs/ District Council =
-_— Essax County Councl
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk

Harlow

— Council

Working sowether for Harlow

m




HG

APPENDIX A

Epping Forest
District Council

www.eppingforestde.gov.uk

Harlow

—_ Council

Wisrkime sowerher for Harlow

GT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Page 135



y manor ~
Oak & & (@ persimmon  Taylor
H O Together, we make your home

Wimpey

ME S Maortin Gront Homes

Water Lane, Harlow

Stakeholder Engagement
Proposal

October 2024




Introduction

1.

This proposal is submitted by Manor Oak Homes, Martin Grant Homes, Persimmon Homes and Taylor Wimpey (the
Developers) who are collaborating in the preparation of a Strategic Masterplan for Water Lane, West Harlow.

The proposal is submitted with the aim of agreeing a programme of stakeholder engagement with the Harlow &
Gilston Garden Town Joint Committee (JC).

The programme will be focused on the residents and businesses of Katherines and Sumners — the neighbourhoods
located in West Harlow closest to the Water Lane Strategic Masterplan area.

The purpose of the engagement is:

1. Tointroduce the Developers and establish a constructive dialogue with local residents and businesses.

2. To understand initial views and opinions on the Water Lane Local Plan allocations adopted with the Epping Forest
District Council Local Plan.

3. Toinform the future preparation of the Strategic Masterplan for Water Lane.



Background

In the promotion of land at Water Lane for development, Martin Grant Homes, Persimmon Homes and
Taylor Wimpey (the Consortium) are in formal consortium with one another.

2. They have been in collaborative discussion with Manor Oak since at least 2019 when the group
presented to the Quality Review Panel (QRP).

3. Manor Oak control land south of Water Lane. The Consortium control land to the north of Water Lane.
4. The group have:-

1. Together completed a Planning Performance Agreement (PPA) with Epping Forest District Council
(EFDC), Harlow District Council (HDC) and Essex County Council (ECC) in support of a Strategic
Masterplan for the Water Lane area.

2. Been actively engaged with the Councils and the Garden Town team throughout the Local Plan
process.



Epping Forest Local Plan

1. EFDC adopted its Local Plan on 14t March 2023.

2. This completed the Local Plan adoptions in the Harlow & Gilston Garden
Town; following:-

e Harlow Local Plan — adopted December 2020
* East Herts Local Plan- adopted October 2018

3. The key policy for Water Lane is SP4 (overleaf) with the following also of
relevance

* Water Lane Strategic Masterplan area (SP3)
* Sustainable Transport Corridor

4. Crucially, the EFDC Local Plan releases land west of Harlow from the Green
Belt and allocates the land for future development.

, Eppmg Forest”
DIStI'ICt Council :
www gpplngforestdc gov uk

- e _;,-;w fom SR -.,.—- :
D e g = St

Sk e e . St - e e



Policy SP4 - requires

1.

N o A W N

A minimum of 2,100 homes

. Five traveller pitches

A local centre

. A new primary school with early years and childcare provision on an education site of at least 2.5 hectares

Contributions towards new secondary school provision within the Garden Town

. The provision of appropriate community and health facilities

. Highway and transport improvements including contributions towards Sustainable Transport Corridors; works

to Water Lane/A1169 roundabout; A1025/Abercrombie Way signals and traffic calming along the Southern
Way corridor;

. Satisfactory utility infrastructure including water, wastewater, solid waste, gas, electricity and

telecommunications for occupants

. Bus services and direct pedestrian and cycle links between homes, the facilities that serve them and other key

destinations



Policy SP3 - requires

1.

That Strategic Masterplans will be developed for
each of the Garden Communities setting out the key
development, design and delivery principles and to
guide proposals.

. Planning applications and any other consenting

mechanisms for the Garden Communities should be
accompanied by Strategic Masterplans which
demonstrate that the development requirements set
out in the Policy have been accommodated and
which have been endorsed by the Council and where
appropriate Harlow District Council.

. Endorsed Strategic Masterplans will be taken into

account as an important material consideration in
the determination of any planning applications.

SP4.2

Water Lane !
Strategic
Masterplan'Area

s
L\..‘_




Map & 7 Sustanable Transport Comdors o the Harow and Gilston Garden Town

Sustainable Transport
Corridors

1. The Garden Town has been built on the premise of high
frequency, priority bus routes providing an attractive alternative
to private car use - linking to employment areas, the Town
Centre and public transport hubs.

2. Theseroutes are called Sustainable Transport Corridors (STCs)
and as well as public transport, they are to provide attractive
pedestrian and cycle routes.

3. The routes of the STCs are within both the Epping Forest and
Harlow adopted Local Plans.




Stakeholder Engagement

1.

It is understood that the development of the Water Lane Strategic Masterplan area requires the active
engagement of the existing residents and businesses that will be affected.

The Developers fully appreciate this and are committed to a programme of stakeholder engagement.

It is proposed to embark on this programme collaboratively with the Garden Town JC and its Officers.
Initially, the programme will engage:

1. Existing Ward Members — Great Parndon and Sumners & Kingsmoor
2. Community representatives — residents groups and associations, community groups
3. Local businesses

The opportunity will be taken if possible to develop a “Community Panel” in each area (Katherines and
Sumners) of interested resident and business representatives.



Listening Mode

1. This will be very much in a “listening mode” — to understand as much as possible the existing
neighbourhoods, what matters to local residents and businesses, what concerns them about new
development.

2. Reference will be made to the EFDC Local Plan and its Water Lane allocation policies.
3. Itis not proposed to present masterplans or other proposals — this would be rightly seen as premature.

4. Manor Oak will lead on engagement with Sumners residents and the Consortium will lead on engagement
with Katherines residents — regularly exchanging notes with one another as well as the Garden Town team.

5. The aim would be to establish how the development of the Water Lane Masterplan area could be
successfully integrated and add value to the existing neighbourhoods, concerns with development allayed
and community support generated.



Concerns with Development

1. From experience, the Developers would anticipate the following areas of community concern: -

1. Traffic impact. This is a function of:
1. Existing congestion.
2. Theincrease in local population that comes with new housing development.
3. Active travel and public transport services — accessibility, appeal, reliability.
4. Accessibility of schools, shops, leisure facilities etc

2. Pressure on existing community infrastructure
1. School places
2. Access to health services, community, sports and leisure facilities

3. Loss of employment land.

4. Landscape impact.

5. Construction disturbance.



Addressing Concerns

1. As noted above, central to the Water Lane proposal is the STC. This will provide travel options — public
transport particularly — as an alternative to the private car.

2. The Water Lane allocation requires new school, community and health infrastructure — either directly or
through contributions.

3. General development plan policies will mitigate landscape impact and construction disturbance.

4. Existing employers will be supported in their relocation to suitable, alternative premises in the District.



Benefits

1. Of course, the Water Lane development offers many benefits to a local community:

Access to new housing - particularly affordable housing to those in housing need.
New employment and training opportunities.

Investment in the local economy.

New schools.

New community, health and sports facilities.

S Y e

2. A key focus of the engagement will be how these benefits — and other benefits to be identified — can be
nurtured and realised in a form that are clear and tangible for the residents, stakeholders and businesses of
Katherines and Sumners.



Next Steps

1. If supported by the Garden Town JC, the stakeholder engagement is proposed to commence in January 2025
and be completed within an agreed timescale (TBC)

2. Phase One will focus initially on elected and community representatives in:
1. Sumners - led by Manor Oak.
2. Katherines — led by the Consortium.
The outcomes of these discussions will inform the scope of work and timescales for the future work

3. The engagement will be very much in a “listening mode” and to establish relationships in the two
neighbourhoods.

4. The opportunity will be taken if possible to develop a “Community Panel” in each area of interested
residents and business representatives.

5. Following this first phase, a report will be submitted to the Garden Town JC with proposals for the next stage of
engagement work.



Q‘] - Taylor

f{ Persimmon
HoMEs  Maortin Grunt Homes \ﬂ' Together, we make your home Wlmpey




Agenda Item 10

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Agenda Iltem 10
Report to: HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT COMMITTEE
Title: HGGT 3 Year Business Plan (2025-2028)

Report Reference: JC-010-2024/25

Date: 10 February 2025
Report Author: Osian Evans — Acting Director Harlow & Gilston Garden Town
Enclosures:

Annex A — HGGT 3 Year Business Plan (2025-2028)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

The HGGT Joint Committee is asked to:

A. Approve the HGGT 3 Year Business Plan (2025-2028), noting that this is an unfunded
proposal.

B. Approve the proposed 2025/26 HGGT Programme of Work set out at Appendix A in
principle.

C. Ask the HGGT 5 Council partners to agree a contribution of £120,000 per partner for
2025/26 as set out in Appendix A The HGGT Business Plan - Section 5.

D. Note and comment on the Strategic Objectives and 2025/26 Annual Programme of Co-
Ordination & Enabling Work, specifically to agree alignment with the HGGT Vision.

Executive Summary:

This 3 Year Business Plan sets out how HGGT can work towards its Vision through prioritised
co-ordination and enabling activity. A three-tiered approach is set out with the Vision at the
top, which informs the strategic objectives and consequently the programme of co-ordination
and enabling work. This is prioritised to present a financial plan that can be adapted to a wide
range of potential funding scenarios.

This report sets the context for the HGGT 3 Year Business Plan (2025-2028) which is included
in Annex A.

(Easty Epping Forest o n
(5% (Eomcons MM Hoow R
P a.g e 1 5 O www.eppingforestde.gov.uk ki Wowiiee sopether for Hlarfew



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Reasons for proposed Decision:

To give members confidence that the strategic objectives could be met for the next 3 years
and that they align with the HGGT Vision, subject to availability of funding. Additionally, to
comply with terms set out in the Inter Authority Agreement (1AA).

Other Options for Action:

Not to approve the HGGT 3 Year Business Plan (2025-2028). This option as a course of action
is not recommended. Clarity within the HGGT partnership on the co-ordination and enabling
activities that could deliver the HGGT Vision will allow efficient allocation of resources if they
become available.

1. Introduction

1.1 The HGGT 3 Year Business Plan (2025-2028) is a plan of the Executive Officers’ Group
led by the HGGT Director. It sets a course for HGGT to work towards its Vision in the short
term through prioritised co-ordination and enabling activity with financial projections.

1.2 This approach to Business Planning allows the Joint Committee to meet its formalised
governance responsibilities set out in the IAA and to have an agreed approach to delivery,
subject to resource availability.

2. Background

2.1 The overarching objective of the HGGT project is to co-ordinate and enable the delivery of
16,000 homes by 2033, along with associated infrastructure, delivering the Garden Town
Vision, principles and guidance that has been agreed by the 5 Council partners.

2.2 The key delivery themes for 2025/26 are:

Delivering the Garden Town Vision of quality, beautiful and sustainable places
Enabling the Infrastructure Foundations for Growth

Maximising and Accelerating Delivery with a focus on outcomes by 2025
Ensuring our Governance is Fit for the Future

3. Proposals

3.1 The HGGT 3 Year Business Plan (2025-2028) is set out in Appendix A. The three areas of
the plan that require approval are the strategic objectives, the financial plan, and the annual
programme of enabling work for 2025/26.

3.2 The strategic objectives section includes delivery themes and 3-year objectives for each of
the key workstreams in the enabling programme of work. This section connects the Vision
with the Programme’s initiatives and is also a requirement stipulated in the 1AA.

@ Epping Forest —
H{’f} District Council =g Harlow

Essex County Councl ]

www.eppingforestde.gov.uk Wisrking topether for Harfow P ag e 1 5 1



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

3.3 The financial plan assumes, for the purposes of modelling, that contributions are
maintained at £120,000 per Council partner for 2025/26 and maintained at £150,000 per
Council partner for subsequent years. It is important to note however - that the contributions
from each Council partner are diminishing year on year.

The HGGT Annual Programme of Work 2025-26

3.4 The HGGT Programme of Co-ordination and Enabling Work 2025/26 has been created and
refined by the Executive Officers’ Group with support from HGGT Lead Officers. It can be
found at Appendix A with commentary found at Section 5.

3.5 The HGGT officers assessed the co-ordination and enabling work required to meet the
HGGT agreed delivery themes as set out in the Business Plan.

3.6 This shows that, assuming £120,000 contribution from the 5 Council partners, income
covers staff and running costs, as well as committed contracts, leaves no reserve to fund
enabling new initiatives.

Implications:
Resource Implications:

Central Government Funding has been made available to date to support the work of the
HGGT partnership. This is the result of annual bidding rounds and while the funding is both
welcome and essential, this approach creates uncertainty in planning for enabling and delivery
work. In addition, significant resources are required to deliver the infrastructure both in
advance of development and during the development period, not all of which is identified.

Equalities and Diversity:

Equality Impact Assessment

Is this a new policy (or decision) or a change to an | No
existing policy, practice or project?

Describe the main aims, objectives and purpose of | To agree a 3-year Business Plan for
the policy or decision HGGT

What outcome(s) are you hoping to achieve (i.e.  |Agree 5 Partners Contributions. Set
decommissioning or commissioning a service)?  objectives for 3 years and agree the
enabling programme for next year.

Does or will the policy or decision affect: Yes - contributes to the delivery of the
e service users HGGT project to deliver over 20,000
e employees new homes and associated
e the wider community or groups of infrastructure in and around Harlow
people, particu|ar|y where there are which will affect existing and future
areas of known inequalities? residents.

@ Epping Forest —
(5% (Eomcons MM Hoow R
P ag e 1 5 2 www.eppingforestde.gov.uk ki Wowiiee sopether for Hlarfew



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Will the policy or decision influence how No
organisations operate?

Will the policy or decision involve substantial No
changes in resources?

Is this policy or decision associated with any of No
the Council’s other policies and how, if applicable,

does the proposed policy support corporate

outcomes?

What does the information tell you about those N/A
groups identified?

Have you consulted or involved those groups that | N/A

are likely to be affected by the policy or decision
you want to implement? If so, what were their
views and how have their views influenced your
decision?

If you have not consulted or engaged with
communities that are likely to be affected by the
policy or decision, give details about when you
intend to carry out consultation or provide
reasons for why you feel this is not necessary:

The work of HGGT has been subject to
public consultation and will continue to be
so in the future.

Use this section to assess any potential impact on equality groups based on what you

now know.

Age, Disability, Gender, Gender
reassignment, Pregnancy/maternity,

Marriage/civil partnership, Race, N/A

Religion/belief, Sexual orientation

Does the EqIA indicate that the policy

or decision would have a medium or No See comment above

high

HGGT Vision Assurance

1. What principles of the HGGT Vision does this seek to achieve?
The objective of the HGGT Programme is to deliver the HGGT Vision.

2. What steps have been taken to ensure the HGGT Vision is embedded into the project?

The HGGT Programme ensures that the individual projects remain aligned to the HGGT

Vision.

Epping Forest
District Council

www.eppingforestde.gov.uk

.
.
-

Essex County Councl

Harlow

—_ Council

Working sowether for Harlow

il
Hertfordshire|

Page 153



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

ANNEX A
HGGT 3 Year Business Plan (2025-2028)

INTENTIONALLY
BLANK

(Easty
Page 154 = E Seins conns

il
Hertfordshire|



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

3 Year Business Plan
2025-2028

6
East Epping Forest -
Hers'® District Council Harlow i
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk mmj,m e 155



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Contents
Foreword 8
Overview 8
Introduction 8
Purpose 9
Organisational Strategy 10
Vision 10

Governance Structure I

Strategic Objectives 12
Delivery Themes for the next 3 Years 12
2025-28 Programme Priorities for the HGGT Partnership 12
Financial Plan |5
Funding Requirements |5
Appendices

Appendix A - 2025-26 Annual Programme of Enabling Work 18
Appendix B - 2025-28 Programme Pipeline 19

7

District Council

N = Essex County Councl —

Pag e www.eppingfarestde.gov.uk

ﬂ Epping Forest
(e =3 Horow ER

Hertfordshire

=
Winrlirne pogvether for Harfon



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

1. Foreword

The Harlow and Gilston Garden Town (HGGT) represents a transformative vision for sustainable
growth, innovation, and adaptable, healthy places. Through this Business Plan, we reaffirm our
commitment to delivering on that vision to bring benefits to existing and new communities.

This document outlines the strategic objectives, delivery themes and programme priorities for the
years ahead, detailing how we will build on our progress and address challenges in the Garden
Town. As one of the most ambitious development projects in the country, HGGT is constituted as
a Joint Committee structure to help meet the housing, economic, and environmental needs of
today while planning with resilience and adaptability for future needs.

The foundation of our approach is collaboration. By bringing together the expertise and
aspirations of local authorities, developers, businesses, and community stakeholders, we are
ensuring that Harlow and Gilston Garden Town becomes a model for an integrated and planned
approach to strategic growth. Our priorities for this year are guided by core values:

¢ Delivering the Garden Town Vision of quality, beautiful and sustainable places
e Enabling the Infrastructure Foundations for Growth
¢ Maximising and Accelerating Delivery of homes and jobs

o Ensuring our Governance is Fit for the Future

The Business Plan serves as both a blueprint and a call to action. It reflects the collective
determination of our partners to deliver on ambitious targets while ensuring that public
engagement shapes the role of communities as long-term stewards of new neighbourhoods with
new assets.

This plan will guide investments, monitor progress, and ensure that we maintain transparency
and accountability in all that we do. We encourage all stakeholders to explore the workstreams
proposed. We recognise that we will strengthen outcomes for Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
through inclusive approaches, achieving broad contributions towards our collective work.

The HGGT Executive Officer Group

8
(Easty Epping Forest —
@ District Council = Harl ow -
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk S Riwking oerher-for Harfew rifof X< e e 157



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

2. Overview

2.1. Introduction

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town provides one of the most exciting growth opportunities of any
place in the UK. It will create exciting new communities in Harlow with over 20,000 new homes
and transformational supporting infrastructure. The Garden Town will support regeneration of
Harlow town centre and provide significant new job opportunities.

When Harlow was created as a New Town some 70 years ago, it grew from a vision shaped by
Sir Frederick Gibberd, acknowledged as one of the leading architect planners of his time. Gibberd
saw the town as ‘an organism which would go on changing and being rebuilt as the needs of the
people changed.’

Since then, Harlow has grown and so has its ambition, its demands, and its needs. The Garden
Town proposals respond to these changes and grasp the opportunity that its location at the heart
of the UK’s Innovation Corridor presents — with exceptional links to London, Stansted Airport and
Cambridge.

The extract below is a diagrammatic representation of the location and scale of new development
in relation to existing Harlow.

To Stansted Airport /
Cambridge

GILST VILL'ES
Py qﬂ.\ Il

=
iTM Harvey Cmm)\:"__:‘__—-—

Public Heath England

EAST OF
HARLOW

LATTON To London

PRIORY

Harlow A

Wowkine sasecher for Ttow Hertfordshire

East Epping Forest
Herts District Council
Pag e wenw.eppinglorestdc.gov.uk



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

2.2. Purpose
As part of the governance set out in the Inter Authority Agreement (IAA), HGGT must prepare
and maintain a 3 year Business Plan to the Joint Committee (a Proposed Budget) setting out:

1. The proposed level of Partner Authority Contributions;

2. How those contirbutions and any other income for the Garden Town is allocated in respect
to those 3 financial years. (defined as the Recoverable Cost Funding and Project Funding
in the IAA); and

3. The Annual Programme of enabling work to be carried out by the HGGT Delivery Team
with objectives for years 2 & 3.

This Business Plan details a structured 3-level approach, starting with the HGGT vision, which
guides the strategic plan and then breaks down into annual focus areas and action plans.

Strategic Plan

Annual Programme of Co-
Ordination & Enabling Work

East Epping Forest
Hers'® District Council Harlow r
www.eppingforestde.goviuk ;r::;.,_rm-,,ﬁ.-m e 159



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

3. Organisational Strategy

3.1. Vision

The Vision' of the Garden Town was agreed by the 5 Council partners of HGGT in November
2018. It aims to ensure plans for the Garden Town support sustainable living and a healthy
economy; provide a good quality of life for existing and future residents; and respond to local
landscape and character. It is informed by the Town and Country Planning Association’s (TCPA)
Garden City Principles and from input from our stakeholders and the local community.

Four themes have been identified and each of these have a set of principles to help guide
development and growth across every aspect of the Garden Town. A series of indicators sit
beneath these principles to shape and inform strategic decisions and support the transformation
of the Garden Town.

Harlow and
Gilston
Garden Town

P19

P16 P15

A dicgrc]m sefling out the infer—re\alicnship between the four themes, their set of re|cﬂng princip|es and the page numbers
to find them in this document. Long term stewardship ties these themes together. New facilities will not be sustainable
without well organised management structures supporfed by consisient revenue streams.

1 Vision Document — Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

Epping Forest
""’g@ @ District Council Harlow
Page www.eppingforestde.gov.uk e Hertfordshire


https://hggt.co.uk/portfolio/vision-document/

3.2.

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Governance Structure
HGGT has a 3-level approach to governance:

1. Joint Committee provides accountable and cross boundary leadership to deliver the
ambitious spatial growth proposals set out in the Local Plans of EFDC, EHDC and HDC and
supported by ECC and HCC, and to coordinate and maximise opportunities for new and
existing residents and communities. It maintains the HGGT vision and oversees its delivery
working to manage strategic risks in line with its delegated functions.

2. Executive Officers Group consists of a senior officer representative from each of the 5
Council partners and is chaired by the HGGT Director. The Executive Officers Group is a
delivery focused group that provides strategic officer leadership to the Joint Committee as well
as preparing any papers requiring approval by the Joint Committee.

3. Garden Town Delivery Team and Lead Officers are responsible for delivering initiatives
within the enabling programme as well as liaising with the appropriate stakeholders within their
respective Local Authorities to ensure recommendations to Joint Committee have been
through the appropriate channels to enhance quality decision making.

5 Partner Councils
o Future External Funding
3 District and 2 County
Councils Councils

HGGT Strategy,
policy & delivery
Inter Authority Agreements/Lead

Authority Model Nominees \

|

Approvals

HGGT Joint Committee (JC)

Leadership and Oversight

Liaison/ Recommendations
Direction

Joint Coordinating & Delivery Partnership

E 5 x Senior Officers Oversight Group E

Garden Town Delivery Team

Input/_ Coordination/
Formulation N
consultation

! '

5 x Garden Town Lead Officers

Future Stewardship Body
(FSB)

East Epping Forest
@ @ District Council Harlow r
wwweppinglorestde.gov.uk Working ogether o artow [Page 161



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

4. Strategic Objectives

4.1. Delivery Themes for the next 3 Years

2025-2028 Delivery Themes for the HGGT Partnership

¢ Delivering the Garden Town Vision of quality, beautiful and sustainable places
¢ Enabling the Infrastructure Foundations for Growth

e Maximising and Accelerating Delivery of homes and jobs

e Ensuring our Governance is Fit for the Future

4.2. 2025-2028 Programme Priorities for the HGGT Partnership

Our Programme Periorities for 2025 — 2028 are delivered through our 5 key workstreams.
The 2025/26 Year 1 Programme is set out at Appendix A with objectives for Years 2 & 3
below:

4.2.1. Workstream 1: Sustainable Mobility
Focusing on achieving transport Modal Transition through resident engagement and the
introduction/improvement of sustainable forms of transport.

42.2.

Page 16z

@9 @ DR g orest = Harlow

Year 1: Continue to develop the Action Plan from the Modal Transition Delivery Framework
(MTDF). Develop frameworks for the HGGT bike hire scheme and bus service improvements
to ensure they are ready for delivery in subsequent years.

Year 2: Begin the implementation of the bike hire scheme and enhancements to local bus
services developed in Year 1 collaborating with stakeholders to ensure they are effectively
integrated into the existing transport network and funded appropriately.

Year 3: Monitor the performance of the launched initiatives against the Modal Transition
targets, establishing clear metrics for evaluation, gathering user feedback, and conducting
assessments to identify areas for development & improvement, making necessary
adjustments to optimise the services for the community's needs.

Workstream 2: Policy & Strategy
Ensuring that plans are fit for purpose to underpin sustainable growth of the Garden Town

Year 1. Deliver key strategic policy initiatives including publishing the first HGGT
Infrastructure Funding Statement and refreshing the HGGT Local Cycling and Walking
Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) 2021; scoping the HGGT Infrastructure Delivery Plan refresh
and assessing the need for further studies supporting employment and commercial land
availability.

Year 2: Complete the HGGT Infrastructure Delivery Plan refresh and assess the need for
refresh of the HGGT Vision and Sustainability Guidance. As HGGT continues to move
towards delivery, funding will be redirected from this workstream towards supporting spades
in the ground.

13

District Council

www.appingforestde.gov.uk

Council

Essex County Councl

=
Winrlirne pogvether for Harfon




4.2.3.

4.2.4.

é,;s? Epping Forest o 5
=8 Harlow

EEJ District Council e ———_ Council
www.appingforestde.gov.uk

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Year 3: Complete any policy development initiated in Year 2. The HGGT Infrastructure
Funding Statement will be produced annually from hereon. HGGT will review which policy
and strategy documents need to be refreshed as required.

Workstream 3: Infrastructure & Delivery
Maintaining momentum of delivery, unblocking legal issues and ensuring continued funding
is available through the delivery of the Rolling Infrastructure Fund.

Year 1: The focus will be on maintaining legal support and land assembly advice for CPO
processes to assist resolution of planning consents and resolving land availability issues.

Year 2: The emphasis will shift to setting up the Rolling Infrastructure Fund (RIF), ensuring
it is structured to maximise drawdown of funding from the HIG. Additionally, the team will
continue managing land assembly and CPO processes.

Year 3: A focus on the effective administration of the RIF, ensuring that it runs efficiently to
ensure funding is made available to meet the evolving infrastructure needs of HGGT.
Oversee ongoing land assembly and CPO activities, adapting strategies as required to
support new initiatives.

Workstream 4: Place-shaping, Community Engagement
Communicating the benefits of the Garden Town, growing the local economy and
safeguarding community assets for the future.

Year 1: Finalise development of a robust stewardship policy, targeting the framework in place
by the end of the year. Maintain high-quality outputs in communications and public
engagement. Contribute to economic development by supporting efforts to grow 1,000 new
jobs within the local economy.

Year 2: The stewardship initiative will enter the feasibility phase, with a comprehensive study
to be completed by Q3. Public engagement will be strengthened through targeted campaigns
aimed at increasing awareness amongst residents of HGGT benefits. The economic
development goal remains a priority, with a target of generating another 1,000 jobs, focusing
on high-growth industries.

Year 3: The stewardship program will move into the delivery phase. Sustaining high
standards in communication, the team will begin to measure changes in public opinion
because of outreach efforts through the Quality of Life and Data Dashboard initiatives. The
economic target will continue, with the creation of 1,000 jobs focused on sustainable and
long-term employment opportunities.

14

=y
Sy

rtfur‘::'lo e 163

Winrlirne pogvether for Harfon



4.2.5.

Page

H/E;rfs? Epping Forest e~ Harlow

Cagaeil

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Workstream 5: Governance
Guaranteeing that management structures and processes run smoothly to allow timely and
robust decision making at all levels.

Year 1: Ensure effective PMO and programme management and administration of the Joint
Committee. Progress potential next steps to enhance governance and explore process
improvements that foster effective collaboration.

Year 2: The emphasis will remain on sustaining efficient programme management and Joint
Committee administration while remaining flexible to adapt governance practices as needed.
The team will work on refining processes and conducting targeted workshops for continued
development.

Year 3: The workstream will continue to provide effective programme management and
support the administration of the Joint Committee, remaining flexible and adjusting to meet
the evolving needs of HGGT. Regular assessments will ensure governance practices remain
relevant and responsive to changing circumstances.

=y

Council il
Essex County Councl —
Wesrllinns pagerier fie Harlon

District Council

www.appingforestde.gov.uk

Hertfordshire



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

5. Financial Plan

5.1. Introduction

5.2.

5.3.

The Garden Town funding model is essentially one of a ‘commissioned service’ meaning funding
is agreed on an annual basis by the 5 council partners supplemented, peripatetically, by central
government funding. This annualised cycle creates instability in resourcing meaning the HGGT
programme and staffing must be reviewed and scaled appropriately every six months.

The HGGT Inter Authority Agreement requires the 5 council partners to agree their contributions
to the partnership. A 3-year business plan is also required which is anticipated to be presented to
the HGGT Joint Committee by the Executive Officer Group (EOG) on 10 February 2025.

This HGGT Business Plan runs from April 2025 to March 2028 in line with HGGT’s Inter Authority
Agreement.

Assumptions

e Partner contributions will be £120,000 per Council partner for 2025/26 and will revert back
to £150,000 per Council partner for subsequent years.

e £0income is assumed from other sources in, but the partnership will continue to pursue
other sources of funding

e There is an uplift of 5% on staff and running costs

Funding Requirements

5.3.1. Year 1: 2025/26

The HGGT officers have assessed the co-ordination and enabling work required to meet the
delivery themes identified above. This has been done within in each individual workstream and
brought together through a series of workshops.

The guiding principles have been the delivery theme objectives combined with analysis of the
current master programme resulting in forecasting activities to allow milestones to be met. There
is then an assessment of what requires progression by the 5 Council partners in partnership rather
than what can and/or should be done by 1 Council partner alone. It is the former activities that
then form the basis of the business plan recommendations for the 2025/26 Programme. This will
continue to accelerate delivery of the HGGT initiative of creating over 20,000 new homes and set
out at Appendix A with costs set out at Table 1.

This shows that, assuming £120,000 contribution from the 5 Council partners, income covers staff
and running costs, as well as committed contracts, leaving no unallocated funds, to fund new
enabling initiatives.

Given HGGT is operating on a ‘commissioned service’ model it outsources key programme
management activities, rather than operate through permanent staffing resource contracts. These
includes programme management functions, maintaining the Master Programme and the FTE
Head of Delivery. These costs are contracted until end Quarter 1 2025 at which point a decision
must be made on how those functions are delivered.

16
(Easts Epping Forest o .
“@ District Council = ﬁﬁjgﬂ -
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk S Wovkisuz begesher for Harfow rtl‘ur.‘.s‘::'le 165



Table 1: 2025/26 Annual Programme of Co-Ordination & Enabling Work

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Income

Income Title

Carry Forward from 2024/25 £252,509.80 £- f- £- £252,509.80

LA Contributions (5 x £120k) £600,000.00 £- £- £- £600,000.00

Total £852,509.80 £- £- £- | £852,509.80

Expenditure

Work Title Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total

Staff Costs (Director starting Q2) £37,996.74 £76,600.26 | £76,600.26 £76,600.26 | £267,797.51

Committed costs £31,997.25 £31,997.25 | £31,997.25 £31,997.25 | £127,989.00

Operational Costs £160,471.35 £98,750.65 | £98,750.65 £98,750.65 | £456,723.29
Total | £230,465.34 | £207,348.15 | £207,348.15 | £207,348.15 | £852,509.80

Budget for allocation 2025/26

£0

5.3.2. Years 2 & 3 Programme Cost Projections

The HGGT officers have projected the likely enabling work required to progress the delivery
themes identified above, relating this to the HGGT Master Programme which is maintained.

For the purposes of modelling, the 5 Council partner contributions are maintained at £150,000
each. Table 2 below shows how much funding will be available to deliver initiatives each year:

Table 2: Years 2 & 3 Programme Cost Projections

Income

Annual Contributions £ 750,000.00 £ 750,000.00

Allocated Budget

2026/27

2027/28

Staff & Running Costs £ 395,394.12 £ 415,163.83

Unallocated Budget

Unallocated Headroom

£ 354,605.88

£ 334,836.17

Additional funding from various government and other sources is sought throughout the year but
£0 income from other sources is included as an assumption in this financial forecasting. For this
reason, HGGT adopts an agile approach to its programme of enabling activities. A pipeline of
initiatives is generated, costed and assigned a priority and placed in a tier from 1-4, this is set out
at Appendix B for information. As funding becomes available throughout the year, initiatives can

be brought forward.

The Funding Gap Analysis at Table 3 expands on the unallocated budget figures from Table 2
and shows the funding gap that would need to be satisfied in order to deliver all of the enabling

initiatives in a given tier.

Epping Forest
District Council

www.eppingforestde.goviuk

Harlow

Council

East
Herts
Page

m

——
Winrirne pogerher for Harfon

Hertfordshire



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Table 3: Funding Gap Analysis

Funding Gap Analysis
2026/27 2027/28

Unallocated Headroom £ 354,605.88 £ 334,836.17

Scenario 1

Tier 1 Initiatives

£773,434.43

£ 787,656.15

Deficit

Tier 1 - 2 Initiatives

-£ 418,828.55

£ 1,024,884.43

-£ 452,819.98

£ 957,128.65

Deficit

Tier 1 - 3 Initiatives

-£ 670,278.55

£1,798,318.86

-£ 622,292.48

£ 1,744,784.80

Deficit
Scenario 4

Tier 1 - 4 Initiatives

-£ 1,443,712.98

£ 2,049,768.86

-£ 1,409,948.63

£1,914,257.30

Deficit

-£ 1,695,162.98

-£1,579,421.13

It is evident from above that programme ambitions will need to be scaled back and/or additional
sources of income found. If this is not possible, it is likely that delivery of new homes will be
slower, including increased risks of infrastructure shortfalls which are likely to serve as a
constraint on sustainable growth.

5.4. Opportunities for Income Generation

Early optioneering has been undertaken to identify potential income from services and/or assets
that may operate within the HGGT area. However, this work is still at an early stage.

Government grants, available periodically over recent years have been an essential source of
underpinning income and programme delivery for HGGT. However, the amounts of funding,
timing of payments, and stipulations regarding payment have changed from year to year. The
HGGT team proactively research and apply for government and other sources of funding on a
continual basis.

It was proposed in the 2021 Business Plan that a portion of developer contributions could be used
‘to fund the Garden Town’s operational costs where pooled contributions have a direct
relationship to the delivery of infrastructure necessary for a development to be taken forward.’
This method of income generation was not taken forward by partners and was not built into the
Infrastructure Development Plan in 2019 or its refresh in 2024. None of the Local Planning
Authorities currently operate a Community Infrastructure Levy.

East Epping Forest
@ @ District Council Ha rlgﬁ, L
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk R e e 167



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

5.5. Next Steps

The commissioned service model of HGGT contains inherent instability which in effect means
that funding is agreed on an annual basis by the 5 council partners supplemented, peripatetically,
by central government funding. This annualised cycle creates instability in resourcing meaning
the HGGT programme and staffing must be reviewed and scaled appropriately every six months.

This creates a stop-start cycle which inhibits capacity-building work and creates a barrier to
employing staff into the team on a permanent/fixed term basis — making roles less attractive to
talent. A longer-term settlement of funding would create efficiencies in cost and implementation
of the work identified as priorities to deliver long-term large-scale growth.

The HGGT Business Plan requires cyclical in-year review to adjust to changes in income during
the financial year and to plan for future financial years.

19

ﬂ Epping Forest
(e =3 Horow ER

District Council

WAl Essex County Councl —

Pag e www.eppingfarestde.gov.uk

Hertfordshire

=
Winrlirne pogvether for Harfon




HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Appendix A
2025/26 Annual Programme of Co-Ordination & Enabling Work

As mentioned in the financial plan, the funds available for enabling initiatives, after staff and running costs, only cover the contractually committed initiatives.
This Programme shows only the contractually committed and Tier 1 initiatives. It should be viewed in conjunction with the Programme Pipeline in Appendix B.
As funding becomes available throughout the year, initiatives from the Programme Pipeline will be added to the Enabling Programme of work.

Programme Item

Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl
Transport Planner
y y y y y y y y
. B rvice Improvemen Design Development Deliver
NI Pe Bus Service Improvement - e P y
Mobility TRG Finalise p;e)!rov Publish
. . o . Approv . .
Bike Hire Schemes Feasibility Stage 2 Analysis o Design Development Delivery
Design Guide Refresh Finalise Approve  Publish | |
LCWIP Scope Research Approve | Publish
LTS5BS Economic Case Evidence for ,
. Scope Research Approve | Publish
Strategy safeguarding Employment Land
IDP Delivery Plan Refresh Scoping procurement brief | Procure Refresh Approve | Publish
IFS Scope Research Approve | Publish

External Legal Advice and Support As required

LERREE IS | and Assembly & CPO (Cushman’s) As required
and Delivery . Monthl  Monthl Monthl | Monthl | Monthl
Head of Delivery
y y y y y
Quality Review Panel As required
. . Approv .
. HGGT Stewardship Scope Procure Consult Refine Publish
Placeshaping E
& Community Comms Engagement Monthl | Monthl [ Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl
Engagement y y y y y y y y y y y y
Garden Town Placemaking & Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl | Monthl
Marketing y y y y y y y y y y y y

East @ Epping Forest "
@ Dis.tric‘t Gouncil Esaesx County Cioinc "-_H__-E“r:-l gkﬂl "'

ww.eppingforestde.gov.uk Working sopether for Harfow Hertfordshire

69T abed



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWMN

Monthl
y

T
jab)
Q

Monthl
y

Monthl
y
Quarterly

Monthl
y

PMO & Master Programme

sovernance

Quarterly Quarterly

Joint Committee SLA Quarterly

rey Initiatives are not yet committed and therefore subject to funding

Appendix B

Programme Pipeline

Iltems currently not guaranteed to be undertaken - kept in Pipeline until additional funding/resources available

2025/26 Pipeline Items

Workstream Tier 2 Tiers 3 & 4

Bus Service Improvement

Sustainable Bike Hire Scheme - implementation
Mobility Transport Planner

Active Travel - Staff Costs & Initiatives Costs

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan HGGT Vision Refresh

Employment Land Study Strategic Sites’ Viability Assessment

Infrastructure Delivery Plan Refresh

Infrastructure Funding Statement

Policy & Strategy

Digi -
Head of Delivery igital Infrastructure & Community

Infrastructure & Energy
Delivery External Legal Advice and Support
Land Assembly & Compulsory Purchase Order
Quality Review Pannel Inward Investment Construction engagement app
Placeshaping, HGGT Stewardship Video Production
Community Garden Town Placemaking & Marketing
Engagement Go Vocal

Data & Digital Dashboard

East Epping Forest
HE.@ District Council

ww.appinglorestde. gov.uk

Morking wescher for T tow Hertfordshire




HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWMN

PMO & Master Programme Development workshops

2026/27 Pipeline Items
Workstream Tier 2
Healthy School Streets

Tiers3 & 4
STC Service Provision Spec

Sustainable Transport Planner

Mobility Active Travel - Staff Costs & Initiatives Costs

L SRS ELCET )2 Infrastructure Delivery Plan Refresh Strategic Viability Assessment Sustainability Guidance
Infrastructure Funding Statement

Setup and deliver the Rolling Infrastructure Fund | Administer Transport Review Group

Infrastructure & Head of Delivery Site Selection Feasibility Studies
Delivery External Legal Advice and Support
Land Assembly & Compulsory Purchase Order
QRP Quality of Life Website Refresh
Community Engagement Officer Conference Attendance Construction engagement app
Pzza:rensr:zﬁ:ryg, HGGT Stewardship Investment Prospectus Video Production
Engagement Garden Town Placemaking & Marketing Harlow Place Proposition
Employment Land Evidence Skills Audit
Data & Digital Dashboard

PMO & Master Programme Development workshops

Governance

T/ 9bed

East Epping Forest "
@ @ District Council Hl Qj{g{ a
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk I';:i;“'mm‘"nrm Hertfordshire




HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

2/ abed

2027/28 Pipeline Items

Workstream Tier 2 Tiers3 & 4

Sustainable Transport Planner Healthy School Streets Mode share monitoring plan
Mobility Active Travel Officer
S [[GTRRSTETELA . Infrastructure Funding Statement Sustainability Guidance
Head of Delivery Administer Transport Review Group
Infrastructure & Setup and deliver the Rolling Infrastructure Fund
Delivery External Legal Advice and Support
Land Assembly & CPO
QRP QoL Community Engagement Officer
ng:::zz::‘yg’ HGGT Stewardship Conference Attendance Entrepreneurship Officer
Engagement Garden Town Placemaking & Marketing Construction engagement app
Data & Digital Dashboard Video Production
PMO & Master Programme Development workshops

East Epping Forest "
@ @ District Council Hl Qj{g{ a
waw.appingfsestci. gav.uk Workine tosether for Harfow Hertfordshire




H GA&ndf_ltem 11

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Agenda Item 11
Report to: HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT COMMITTEE
Title: HGGT Programme Management Report

Report Reference: JC-011-2024/25

Date: 10 February 2025
Report Author: Osian Evans - Acting Director Harlow & Gilston Garden Town
Enclosures: Appendix A — 2024/25 HGGT Programme of Work

Recommendations/Decisions Required:
The HGGT Joint Committee is asked to:

A. Consider and comment on the Programme Management Report, as set out in Appendix A,
providing progress updates against the agreed HGGT 2024/25 annual work programme.

Executive Summary:

The purpose of the Joint Committee is to provide unified leadership to deliver the ambitious
spatial growth proposals set out in the Local Plans of Epping Forest, East Herts and Harlow
District Council, supported by Essex and Hertfordshire County Councils and to align and
maximise opportunities for new and existing residents and communities.

The HGGT Joint Committee holds the responsibility to deliver the agreed HGGT Vision to
promote healthy, sustainable communities and co-ordinate and facilitate the delivery of 16,000
new homes in the HGGT by 2033, and 7,000 new homes in the years after that, along with
associated transport, community, and environmental infrastructure.

This report provides the Joint Committee with oversight of progress against its agreed
programme of work for 2024/25 which aims to progress delivery of its HGGT Vision.

Reasons for proposed Decision:

To adhere to governance procedures set out in the Terms of Reference of the Joint Committee
for the HGGT Joint Committee to have oversight of the HGGT programme.

@ Epping Forest Ty "
& District Council ~ ESI  1ArIOW ,
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk seiisiniiiceris Wisrkirne towcther for THariow P ag e 1 7 3



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Other Options for Action:

Not to receive programme reporting information. This option as a course of action is not
recommended. Oversight is required to mitigate risks and maintain quality of decision-making
and delivery amongst the five Council partners and the HGGT Team.

1. Introduction

1.1 This report provides the HGGT Joint Committee with key reporting benchmarks setting out
at Appendix A the progress of the 2024/25 work programme noting the baseline programme
agreed at the Joint Committee meeting held on 22 July 2024.

1.2 This approach to programme management will enable the Joint Committee to meet its
formalised governance and audit responsibilities and to respond to key issues and emerging
risks.

2. Background

2.1 The overarching strategic objective of the HGGT Work Programme is to co-ordinate and
enable the delivery of 16,000 homes by 2033, along with associated infrastructure, delivering
the Garden Town Vision, principles and guidance that has been agreed by the five Council
partners.

2.2 The HGGT Work Programme is developed from across the five Council HGGT partnership
in line with the strategic objective, delivery aims, and programme priorities agreed by
the Joint Committee as set out below:

2.21 2024/25 Key delivery themes:

Delivering the Garden Town Vision of quality, beautiful and sustainable places
Enabling the Infrastructure Foundations for Growth

Maximising and Accelerating Delivery with a focus on outcomes by 2025
Ensuring our Governance is Fit for the Future

2.2.2 2024/25 programme priorities for the HGGT partnership:

Enabling the HGGT Strategic Sites to come forward

Enabling Achievement of HGGT Modal Transition Target

Demonstrating and engaging with the community on the benefits of growth
Delivery of the long-term stewardship arrangements

3. Delivery Highlight Updates

3.1 The following updates are provided for the HGGT strategic sites; the Housing Investment
Grant (HIG) and the 2024/25 HGGT Programme of Work:

(Easty Epping Forest o n
(5% (Ebmcoms MM Horow RN
P ag e 1 74 www.eppingforestde.gov.uk et A Wowiiee sopether for Hlarfew



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

4. Strategic Site Updates

4.1 Latton Priory — There is an allocation in the EFDC Local Plan for a minimum of 1,050
homes, as well as a primary and secondary school, local centre and Suitable Alternative
Natural Greenspace (SANG). The Strategic Masterplan Framework and Latton Priory
Design Code have been endorsed by EFDC Cabinet. Work by HGGT on the STC Connector
Route Study is complete for the STC connector from Latton Priory Masterplan Area to
Commonside Road. An Outline Planning Application was submitted to EFDC in September
2024 for up to 1,340 dwellings, 5 traveller pitches, and associated infrastructure.

4.2 Water Lane — There is an allocation in the EFDC Local Plan for a minimum of 2,100 homes,
a new primary school, local centre and strategic natural greenspace. A Planning
Performance Agreement for masterplan work is complete and has been signed by
developers, EFDC, HDC and ECC. Work is complete on the STC Connector Route Study
for the STC connector from Water Lane Masterplan Area into the Pinnacles. The site
developers are working on a programme of stakeholder engagement to enable the master
planning process to progress.

4.3 East of Harlow — There is an allocation in the HDC Local Plan for 2,600 homes and an
allocation in the EFDC Local Plan for 750 Homes. HGGT partners have drafted an East of
Harlow Masterplanning Guidance Supplementary Planning Document which was adopted
by EFDC on 28 May 2024 and HDC on 12 September 2024. The site continues to await
appointment of a lead master developer.

4.4 Gilston Villages — Subsequent to the resolutions of the East Herts Development
Management Committee to resolve to grant outline planning permissions (in early 2023),
the details of the associated Section 106 Agreement has now been published. The Section
106 agreement is being finalised, signed and the decision notices giving outline planning
permission for the Gilston area, released. Masterplanning activity previously paused whilst
the priority was to complete the Section 106 Agreement, has now started to recommence to
enable these to be moved ahead with speed once the decision notices are issued.

4.5 Harlow Town Centre — Arts & Cultural Quarter — The Ex-Occasio House site demolition
has been completed, and site cleared. Secured delivery partner of site via Harlow
Regeneration Partnership. Full planning permission granted in April 2024. Further detailed
designs have resulted in design changes. Procurement for the rest of the site is currently
underway with expressions of interest complete and tender exercise via National Framework
Partnership progressing with appointment expected early in 2025.

4.6 Harlow Town Centre — Broadwalk — Contractor appointed, and works have begun.
Construction to take place from August 2024 and scheduled completion June 2025. DLUHC
had approved project adjustment request, confirming £1.6m funding for Market Square.
Market Square proposals public consultation completed and informing detailed design,
RIBA Stage 3 designs completed Autumn 2024 and start on site Spring 2025, complete
December 2025.

4.7 Harlow TC Interchange & Hub STC Work — Demolition of toilets, kiosk and Terminus
House footbridge completed. Negotiating terms for full Design and Build JCT Contract, due
to complete Winter 2024. Value engineering complete, s.73 application submitted Summer

@ Epping Forest Ty "
& District Council ~ ESI  1ArIOW ,
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk seiisiniiiceris Wisrkirne towcther for THariow P ag e 1 7 5



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

2024 and due to be determined Winter 2024. Planning application for temporary bus station
approved in September 2024, construction is underway and operational from December
2024, which will include temporary stands and an information kiosk. Construction to start
early in 2025 and complete Spring 2026.

4.8 Walking and Cycling — Construction on a new pedestrian and cycle route from the Town
Centre to Pinnacles is due to be completed by November 2025 (ahead of schedule). Another
route from the Town Centre to Churchgate Street/East of Harlow is currently in the design
phase.

5. Housing Investment Grant (HIG)

5.1 Gilston HIG programme - As part of the Garden Town delivery programme, Hertfordshire
County Council is overseeing the delivery of £171 million of Homes England Housing
Investment Grant funding to deliver transport infrastructure that mitigates the impact of the
Gilston Garden town villages development on Harlow and the surrounding areas and
enables wider Garden Town development to come forward. This provides early enabling
and delivery of key transport and other supporting infrastructure to start mitigating the impact
of the development.

5.2 Stort Valley Crossings — As part of the HIG delivery programme, there are two key projects
to mitigate any increase in traffic across the Stort Valley between Gilston and Harlow due to
housing growth across the Garden Town. The first one, called the Central Stort Crossing
will enhance the existing A414 River Stort crossing with a significant increase in capacity for
sustainable modes such as walking, cycling and buses. The second one, called the Eastern
Stort Crossing, will increase general traffic capacity and provide an additional link into the
Templefields area.

5.3 North to Centre STC — Work has commenced on the North to Centre (Sustainable
Transport Corridor) STC. The programme is estimated to last approximately 18 months with
completion expected in late 2025. It is the first stage of a wider network of enhanced routes
to provide more sustainable modes of transport across the Town. It will link up with the new
Central Stort Crossing and provide the opportunity for quick journeys on sustainable travel
modes between Gilston and the Town Centre, as the most direct route into Gilston will be a
sustainable only mode access.

5.4 Cambridge Road Link — The Cambridge Road junction is the first project to be delivered
as part of the HIG programme and is both an early enabler for the Eastern Stort Crossing,
but also provides the benefit of providing an alternative route for HGV and other traffic using
the Templefields industrial area, diverting traffic away from Edinburgh Way. Work on
Cambridge Road junction is now complete; it is expected to open permanently in the near
future following resolution of land transfers.

6. 2024/25 HGGT Work Programme Updates

6.1 The 2024/25 HGGT work programme is set out at Appendix A annotated with key updates.
Highlights include:

@ Epping Forest Ty "
(5% (Ebmcoms MM Horow RN
P a.g e 1 7 6 www.eppinglorestde.gov.uk et A Wisrking topether for Harfow



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

6.1.1 Modal Transition Plan — The 5 Council Partners agreed to work together to continue to
develop an overarching programme plan of key activities required to deliver modal
transition, informed by the Framework. A progress update will be reported to the Joint
Committee in Q1 2025/26.

6.1.2 Parking Guidance — The Essex Planning Officers Association (EPOA) Parking
Guidance documentation has been approved by EPOA Chief Officers and sent to all
Essex LPAs who will make their own decisions on adopting the guidance. The Parking
Guidance has now been published in the Essex Design Guide.

6.1.3 Data Dashboard — The prototype data dashboard was recently presented to EOG
(Executive Officers Group) and received positive feedback. Development has also
commenced on a Quality of Life (QoL) Data Dashboard and User Guide, which has been
reviewed by the QoL team. The project is now looking into incorporating some data sets
such as pedal power GPS data and some Modal Shift monitoring data sets.

6.1.4 Bike Hire Scheme — An external advisor has been appointed to carry out the Phase 2
feasibility study to inform the ambition to introduce a bike hire scheme across the Garden
Town area, piloting initially in Harlow, subject to approval.

6.1.5 Harlow Train Station Study — Weston Williamson have been commissioned to develop
an opportunities and constraints study that examines the potential to make the Grade Il
Listed Station and its environs suitable for an expanding community with the sizeable
housing and employment growth anticipated by the development of HGGT. The study
has commenced and is forecast for completion by Q1 of 2025/26.

Implications:

Resource Implications:

Central Government Funding has been made available to date to support the work of the HGGT
partnership. This is the result of annual bidding rounds and while the funding is both welcome
and essential, this approach creates uncertainty in planning for enabling and delivery work.
Officers of HGGT will continue dialogue with HGGT partners and Government for future
arrangements in an attempt to establish multi-year revenue funding agreements. Each council
partner considers contribution to the HGGT partnership as part of the annual budget setting.

Equalities and Diversity:

Equality Impact Assessment:

Is this a new policy (or decision) or a change to an| No
existing policy, practice or project?

Describe the main aims, objectives and purpose off To provide budget and programme

the policy or decision information to deliver the aims of the
HGGT Joint Committee
(East Epping Forest = ;
ng,g? District Council = _H_q[ |8YY. i
\_/ www.eppinglorestde.gov.uk Soow: Cory Core) Workine wosecher S Tiow Page 177



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

What outcome(s) are you hoping to achieve (i.e.| Provide oversight of HGGT programme

decommissioning or commissioning a service)? and progress.
Does or will the policy or decision affect: Yes - contributes to the delivery of the
e service users HGGT project to deliver over 20,000
e employees new homes and associated
e the wider community or groups of people, infrastructure in and around Harlow
particu|ar|y where there are areas of which will affect existing and future
known inequalities? residents.

Will the policy or decision influence how| No
organisations operate?

Will the policy or decision involve substantial No
changes in resources?

Is this policy or decision associated with any of the | No
Council’'s other policies and how, if applicable,
does the proposed policy support corporate
outcomes?

What does the information tell you about those | N/A
groups identified?

Have you consulted or involved those groups that | N/A
are likely to be affected by the policy or decision
you want to implement? If so, what were their
views and how have their views influenced your
decision?

If you have not consulted or engaged with | The work of HGGT has been subject to
communities that are likely to be affected by the | public consultation and will continue to be
policy or decision, give details about when you | so in the future.

intend to carry out consultation or provide reasons
for why you feel this is not necessary:

Use this section to assess any potential impact on equality groups based on what you

now know.

Age, Disability, Gender, Gendern N/A
reassignment, Pregnancy/maternity,
Marriage/civil partnership, Race,

Religion/belief, Sexual orientation

H@ Epping Forest g Harlow

P
e

oo District Council vV B
P ag € 1 7 8 \_/ o eppingforesiac gov.uk e Th + o Harlors Hertfordshire|



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Does the EqIA indicate that the policy
or decision would have a medium or [No See comment above

high

HGGT Vision Assurance

1. What principles of the HGGT Vision does this seek to achieve?
The objective of the HGGT Programme is to deliver the HGGT Vision.

2. What steps have been taken to ensure the HGGT Vision is embedded into the project?

The HGGT Programme ensures that the individual projects remain aligned to the HGGT
Vision.

@ Epping Forest — Harl
He’!\ja District Council = ariow ']
\_/ P ———— Essex County Councl S, Councll Hertforhire Pa g e 179

www.eppingforestde.gov.uk Workimg soperher for Harlow




HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

08T abed

APPENDIX A
2024/25 HGGT Programme of Work — progress

Programme ltem

LCWIP Refresh
Bus & Op?ratlonal Services - Enhanced Bus Bus . Develop Operational Plan
Partnership Summit
Shared Mobility - Bike Hire Feasibility report finalised Feasibility Stage 2
Sustainable Mo‘,’?' Future Transport Review Group Procure _ TRG Recommendations -
Mobility Transition
Delivery |Active Travel Behavioural Change (Sustrans) Onboard Embed
Modal Transition Delivery Framework Take forward prioritised initiatives as per delivery framework
Parking Guidance for Garden Communities and Present to EPOA
Large Scale Development
Harlow Town Rail and Access Improvements Procure Develop
IDP Update 2024
Policy and . Scoping procurement
Strategy IDP Refresh 2026 Scoping brief
Design Guide Refresh Procure Prepare Report
Infrastructure
. Land Assembly and CPO Continued Delivery of the Land Assembly Programme
and Delivery
HGGT Stewardship Charter Consult Jom.t Embed
Committee
HGGT Strategic Stewardship Options Umbrella. Py kR & Review and Refine
Options Report
R End .
Communications Monthly [ Monthly | Monthly nPI:;se Publish | Monthly | Monthly | Monthly | Monthly | Monthly | Monthly [ Monthly
Placeshaping & _ . Testing Digital Dashboard . . . .
Community HGGT Data Dashboard and Insights (Local Digital Fund) orm Implementation Supplier Procurement|Consultantion & Guide|
Engagement Citizenlab Engagament Platform Continued Monitoring and Evaluation of the Citizenlab Platform and Adjusting Where Needed
QRP Ongoing drumbeat of QRPs
East of Harlow SPD EFDC & HDC Adopt
Publish
Latton Priory Design
Code
HGGT Joint Commitee Establish Joint Committee Operationalise Joint Committee
Governance
PMO & Master Programme Scope Milestones Maintain

East Epping Forest
@ @ Distriotcouncil  ESN  HOrow "
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk A ;;j:h'lwu;ﬂ_n*m: Hertfordshire|




	Agenda
	5 Minutes - 22 July 2024
	Minutes
	20 HGGT Quality Review Panel Annual Report
	22 "Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently" - A HGGT Framework (HGGT Modal Transition Delivery Framework)
	Slide 1:  HGGT Joint Committee Board Meeting Summary Presentation
	Slide 2: Presentation Purpose
	Slide 3: 1. Introduction
	Slide 4: Introduction
	Slide 5: Introduction
	Slide 6: 2. Context
	Slide 7: HGGT Context
	Slide 8: 3. The Challenge
	Slide 9: Delivering Growth
	Slide 10: Baseline Transport Profile 
	Slide 11: Baseline Transport Profile
	Slide 12: 4. Reimagining Travel
	Slide 16: Increasing Bus Use
	Slide 17: 5. Scenarios
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21: 6. Summary
	Slide 23: Summary
	Slide 24


	8 Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy and Updated Action Plan
	A.	Agree the HGGT Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy as set out in Appendix A.
	B.	Agree the updated HGGT Quality of Life Action Plan as set out in Appendix B.
	C.	Delegate authority to the Acting HGGT Director to make further minor amendments to the final HGGT Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy and Action Plan as may be required for final publication, in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Joint Committee.
	D.	Recommend to the HGGT Council partners that the HGGT Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy and Action Plan are used as a benchmark for aligning the approach to community engagement across the Garden Town area.
	In 2022, the HGGT Quality of Life (QoL) project was agreed by all HGGT 5 Council partners as a way of mapping quality of life and wellbeing, and to establish a baseline for measuring the social impacts of growth and change across the HGGT geography. It was the culmination of the
	5 Council partners work to identify the shared HGGT priorities for community engagement and community-led stewardship.
	This was done through the Your Quality of Life (YQoL) consultation, which was a public, digital- led consultation where HGGT asked local residents about their quality of life, and what they value, like, dislike or need.
	Following the success of the YQoL Consultation in 2022, the HGGT partners recognised the additional value that QoL monitoring and engagement has across all HGGT workstreams and this resulted in the HGGT Board endorsing the Quality of Life Action Plan in February 2023. The Action Plan set out recommendations and next steps for its implementation, including a commitment to develop a HGGT Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy and to make consultation data more digitally accessible.
	Appendix A contains the HGGT QoL Monitoring Strategy which provides a guide for measuring and tracking Quality of Life across the Garden Town, both within existing and new communities, in years to come. The HGGT QoL Action Plan has also been updated to reflect progress and further recommendations following development of the Monitoring Strategy, and is set out in Appendix B.
	The HGGT QoL Monitoring Strategy and Action Plan have been developed collaboratively by the Quality of Life Foundation and the HGGT 5 Council partners.
	The Quality-of-Life Indicators are performance indicators that are used to measure and evaluate health and wellbeing. The HGGT Joint Committee is tasked with monitoring reports on Quality of Life indicators in Harlow and the new neighbourhoods. By undertaking Quality of Life Monitoring, changes in quality of life can be monitored and the outputs from this can inform future policy and planning decisions.
	It could be determined not to agree the HGGT Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy and updated Action Plan and to take no further action in relation to it. This option as a course of action is not recommended. It would not support enabling the 5 Council partners to achieve the HGGT Vision informed by monitoring the health and wellbeing of current and future residents and to support better quality of life for the community. It would also leave landowners, developers, community representatives and other stakeholders without further guidance from the 5 Council partners of HGGT with respect to Quality of Life. With HGGT stewardship approach still under development, and limited engagement and monitoring policy, Quality of Life Monitoring helps secure enhancements to quality and social equity at scale through verifiable, data-driven
	approaches, which can be scaled further. All of these have been helpful in raising the profile of the HGGT and support seeking further funding opportunities.
	1.	Introduction
	1.1	Harlow and Gilston was designated as a Garden Town in January 2017. It will create new communities in and around Harlow with 23,000 new homes, 20,000 new jobs and transformational supporting infrastructure by 2033 and beyond. The Garden Town will support regeneration of Harlow town centre and provide significant new job opportunities.
	1.2	The HGGT 5 Council partners wanted to measure the impact of this long-term growth by establishing a Quality of Life baseline for the Garden Town area. By establishing the baseline, it enables monitoring of any changes to quality of life and social value in relation to the baseline and allows adjustment to policy and planning. The HGGT Quality of Life project therefore focuses on people’s quality of life in the town and surrounding areas and is part of ongoing efforts to enhance the health and wellbeing of current and future residents and to involve more local people in decisions affecting their area.
	2.1	In 2022, the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) PropTech Round 2 Digital Engagement funding was awarded to HGGT for mapping quality of life and wellbeing, to establish a baseline for measuring the social impacts of growth and change. This was done through the YQoL consultation which presented a set of QoL indicator questions to residents to understand how different areas of the Garden Town are performing. The questions were themed under the headings of Community, Nature, Movement, Health, Wonder and Control.
	2.2	The engagement included over 1000 contributions and 49 in-person events, which was a threefold increase in engagement compared to previous consultations. There was also an increase in engagement with under-represented groups, including both younger and older people, people from minority backgrounds and people with disabilities. Feedback from the YQoL consultation has been summarised in reports and shared back with the community, including a Community Feedback Report and the Reflections and Recommendations Report which have fed into the QoL Action Plan. These have and will continue to enable community feedback to influence both authority and developer-led proposals and policies, as well as long-term stewardship and governance arrangements. It has also provided a baseline to return to and inform approaches in the future.
	2.3	The HGGT Quality of Life Action Plan was endorsed by the HGGT Board in February 2023. It considers how to progress, resource and plan projects; develop potential wider collaborations; and to ensure the most value and learning from the Quality of Life project is drawn down and applied. It includes both short-term and longer-term actions and tasks, the delivery of which is dependent on appropriate resource and funding. The HGGT 5 Council partners have already begun delivering several actions, including opening the Discover Harlow Hub; updating the HGGT Communications and Engagement Strategy; progressing the Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy and developing a public facing digital dashboard.
	3.1	Quality of Life Monitoring is the process of measuring responses to the same set of Quality of Life questions over a period of time consistently and observing any changes in the feedback. As new data is collected over time, it will identify positive or negative trends in people’s responses - thus showing whether there is a positive or negative trend in residents’ perceived quality of life. The outputs from this can inform future policy and planning decisions, such as for social value, stewardship, engagement, and design quality; indicate priorities for investment; as well as monitor performance of development overall, in relation to quality of life.
	3.2	The primary purpose of the QoL Monitoring Strategy therefore is to enable future quality of life assessments against the 2022 baseline data – and then again against future years, including with future communities - so that quality of life data, aggregated over geographical areas and time, can inform policy and planning decisions to support better quality of life for the community.
	3.3	The Monitoring Strategy has been developed through workshops and discussions with officers from across the partnership representing a range of service areas. The Strategy consists of nine main steps requiring different levels of input, expertise and resources. These are summarised in Figure 1 below.
	3.4	The HGGT Quality of Life Action Plan outlines specific tasks and goals, with recommendations for implementation, and is to be read alongside the Monitoring Strategy. The Action Plan was formulated based on the Quality of Life Foundation’s recommendations to HGGT for how to improve and measure quality of life and the desire to turn these into actions for HGGT and potentially partners going forward. With sections A, B, C, S and D, previously agreed by the HGGT Board in February 2023, these have since been updated to reflect progress and next actions. Additional actions have also been recommended to support QoL monitoring as well as the recommendations previously agreed by the HGGT Board.
	3.5	The Quality of Life Action Plan is to be reviewed and updated at least annually, to report on progress and reflect any recommendations which arise as a result of QoL monitoring. With Your Quality of Life consultations recommended to take place every 3-5 years, the Monitoring Strategy itself is reviewed with each consultation to ensure it remains relevant.
	3.6	It will be important for each of the 5 Council partners to consider how their approach to community engagement aligns with the QoL Framework as there is the potential for the Quality of Life Consultation to replace or reduce the length of other surveys.
	4.1	The Quality of Life project is split into 4 phases. Phase 1 covered the YQoL Consultation and Monitoring Baseline which have now been completed. The approval of the Monitoring Strategy and updated Action Plan will round off Phase 2 of the project.
	4.2	Phase 3 is currently progressing and involves integrating Quality of Life monitoring indicators and consultation data into a digital consultation hub - the HGGT Data Dashboard. The dashboard is the platform where Quality of Life Monitoring will be consulted on, reported and shared back with the community. This will enable better sharing of consultation data across HGGT and partner boundaries, and supports better engagement, transparency and accountability with key stakeholders. Several outputs from Phase 3 have already been delivered or being progressed. The integration of QoL monitoring data into the HGGT Data Dashboard is now complete and expected to be accessible to the public by early 2025.
	4.3	Phase 4 of the project will be defined through the updated Action Plan and is expected to include a programme of both internal and external engagement covering elements such as user training on the data dashboard and future YQoL Consultation. Although the next YQoL consultation is not anticipated until 2026, some elements such as aligning further strategies to QoL indicators can be progressed now, enabling further benefits to be experienced sooner.
	4.4	The allocated budget for Phase 3 has been used up, with a few key tasks outstanding. Phase 4 is also currently unfunded, although, several elements can be progressed in the interim, as HGGT in-house resource allows. The project will therefore benefit from further budget allocations and funding opportunities. A key outcome the project is seeking to achieve is scalability, for increased and accelerated impact, which could support future funding opportunities.
	Once approved, the Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy and Action Plan will form part of the HGGT Quality Monitoring Framework. This will enable the 5 Council partners of HGGT to monitor quality of life at different levels and for different groups which would in turn help to shape policy and guidance, masterplans, development proposals, stewardship arrangements, etc.
	The Quality of Life project is already having impact across several HGGT workstreams, with references to the project embedded throughout the recently adopted HGGT Stewardship Charter which in itself will support long term Quality of Life Monitoring across the garden town.
	Whilst not a legislative requirement, it will also be a reasonable expectation of the local community and other stakeholders that the 5 Council partners of HGGT seek to secure the outcomes set out in the Monitoring Strategy and Action Plan.
	Whilst the delivery of actions identified within Monitoring Strategy and Action Plan would require some funding, there are no direct financial implications to approving the recommendations within this report.
	1.	What principles of the HGGT Vision does this seek to achieve?
	The project aims to address cross-cutting stewardship themes through meaningful, inclusive engagement and by measuring quality targets based on the principles of healthy growth.
	2.	What steps have been taken to ensure the HGGT Vision is embedded into the project?
	The HGGT Vision core principles for healthy growth align with the Quality of Life Foundation’s Monitoring Framework themes which form the basis for the HGGT quality of life indicators.
	This Strategy has been developed collaboratively by the Quality of Life Foundation and the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town (HGGT) team. The HGGT Quality of Life Action Plan has similarly been collaboratively developed and sets out recommendations and next steps for its implementation, and is to be read alongside this guide.
	page left intentionally blank
	Revision History and Updates


	2.	Quality of Life Framework
	3.	How it Works
	4.	Uses and Benefits
	5.	QoL Monitoring Delivery Team
	6.	Process and Workflow
	7.	Frequency and scale of consultations
	8.	Further resources
	Glossary
	Appendices (A-H: Detailed Delivery Guidance; I-K: Background)
	  Quality of Life Tracker
	 Further documents to align
	Added granularity in the formatting
	Include more specific, actionable and quantifiable outputs for desired outcomes
	Define community participation outcomes for each principle
	Use the Gilston Area Principles and Objectives (2022) as a medium to update the Charter
	Do you have experience in any of the following types of data processing? (e.g. this could be through consultations and/or communicating statistics etc.)
	Are you currently measuring quality of life or health and wellbeing outcomes within their work and department?
	What is your current work area?
	Are there any gaps between the Quality of Life Framework themes and your work?
	What’s missing from this framework?

	Regarding the Indicators
	84.6% of officers broadly agreed that it is clear that these indicators can demonstrate a change in quality of life
	Regarding the Tracker
	Summary Feedback
	Introduction: The following Action Plan is based on, and to be read alongside, the HGGT Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy, which has been collaboratively developed by the Quality of Life Foundation and the HGGT Team to enable quality of life monitoring for the HGGT and partners.
	With sections A, B, C, S and D, previously agreed by the HGGT Board in February 2023, these have since been updated to reflect progress and next actions. Actions A1, Establish a Physical Presence; and D, Develop a Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy, are now complete.
	Summary: Note that the recommendations and actions identified in Q) Quality of Life Monitoring will support all recommendations previously agreed by the HGGT Board, including those which have not yet progressed. Where previous actions have not progressed, this is primarily due to lack of engagement resource, which would be addressed should the QoL Monitoring Strategy be implemented. We therefore recommend actions in section Q which support QoL Monitoring Delivery are prioritised.


	9 HGGT Water Lane Strategic Site - "Proposals for the Way Forward"
	Agenda Item 9
	Report to:	HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT COMMITTEE
	Reasons for proposed Decision:
	1.	Introduction
	2.	Background
	3.	Water Lane Stakeholder Engagement Proposal
	4.	Next Steps
	Introduction
	Background
	Epping Forest Local Plan
	Policy SP4 - requires
	Policy SP3 – requires
	Sustainable Transport Corridors
	Stakeholder Engagement
	Listening Mode
	Concerns with Development
	Addressing Concerns
	Benefits
	Next Steps

	10 HGGT 3-Year Business Plan
	Agenda Item 10
	Report to:	HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT COMMITTEE
	Reasons for proposed Decision:
	1.	Introduction
	2.	Background

	11 HGGT Programme Management Report
	Agenda Item 11
	Report to:	HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT COMMITTEE
	Reasons for proposed Decision:
	1.	Introduction
	2.	Background
	5.	Housing Investment Grant (HIG)
	5.1	Gilston HIG programme - As part of the Garden Town delivery programme, Hertfordshire County Council is overseeing the delivery of £171 million of Homes England Housing Investment Grant funding to deliver transport infrastructure that mitigates the impact of the Gilston Garden town villages development on Harlow and the surrounding areas and enables wider Garden Town development to come forward. This provides early enabling and delivery of key transport and other supporting infrastructure to start mitigating the impact of the development.
	5.2	Stort Valley Crossings – As part of the HIG delivery programme, there are two key projects to mitigate any increase in traffic across the Stort Valley between Gilston and Harlow due to housing growth across the Garden Town. The first one, called the Central Stort Crossing will enhance the existing A414 River Stort crossing with a significant increase in capacity for sustainable modes such as walking, cycling and buses. The second one, called the Eastern Stort Crossing, will increase general traffic capacity and provide an additional link into the Templefields area.
	5.3	North to Centre STC – Work has commenced on the North to Centre (Sustainable Transport Corridor) STC. The programme is estimated to last approximately 18 months with completion expected in late 2025. It is the first stage of a wider network of enhanced routes to provide more sustainable modes of transport across the Town. It will link up with the new Central Stort Crossing and provide the opportunity for quick journeys on sustainable travel modes between Gilston and the Town Centre, as the most direct route into Gilston will be a sustainable only mode access.
	5.4	Cambridge Road Link – The Cambridge Road junction is the first project to be delivered as part of the HIG programme and is both an early enabler for the Eastern Stort Crossing, but also provides the benefit of providing an alternative route for HGV and other traffic using the Templefields industrial area, diverting traffic away from Edinburgh Way. Work on Cambridge Road junction is now complete; it is expected to open permanently in the near future following resolution of land transfers.


